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Registered Office: G-5 & 6, Sector-10, Dwarka, New Delhi– 110075, 
Tel: 011-25076536, Website: nhit.co.in, Email: nhiimpl@nhit.co.in 
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Corporate Office (Mumbai):  
609, Plot No. C-63, G-Block, A Wing, 
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Date: 27th May, 2023 

Corporate Relations Department, 
BSE Limited 
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 
Dalal Street, 
Mumbai - 400 001 

The Listing Department, 
National Stock Exchange of India Limited  
Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block G,  
Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East),  
Mumbai – 400 051 

 
Ref: Scrip Code: 543385; Scrip ID/Symbol: NHIT 
 
Sub: Outcome of Board Meeting of National Highways Infra Investment Managers Private Limited 
 
Dear Sir/ Ma’am, 
 
In furtherance to the intimation dated 18th May, 2024 and pursuant to applicable provisions of SEBI 
(Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 (“InvIT Regulations”), as amended from time to 
time, read with Regulation 51 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 (“SEBI LODR Regulations”) and circulars and guidelines issued thereunder, we hereby inform 
you that the meeting of the Board of Directors (“Board”) of National Highways Infra Investment 
Managers Private Limited acting in the capacity of Investment Manager to National Highways Infra 
Trust (“NHIT”) was held today i.e. 27th May, 2024, wherein the Board, inter-alia, considered and 
approved the following matters:  
 

1) Considered and approved the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Results 
(including Cash Flow Statements for both Standalone and Consolidated) along with the 
Auditor’s Report issued by the Statutory Auditors thereon, for the quarter, half and financial 
year ended 31st March, 2024. 

  
 Further, please note that the financial information of the Investment Manager is not disclosed  
 as there is no material erosion in the net worth. 
 
 We further hereby declare that in compliance with the provisions of Regulation 52(3)(a) of the  
 SEBI LODR Regulations, the Statutory Auditors i.e. A. R. & Co., Chartered Accountants, New 
 Delhi, have issued the Audit Reports with Unmodified Opinion on the Annual Audited Financial 
 Information/Results of the NHIT for the financial year ended 31st March, 2024. 
 

2) Considered and approved the quantum of distributions to be paid to the unitholders of Rs. 
0.705/- per unit for the quarter ended 31st March, 2024. The distribution will be paid as Rs 
0.687/- per unit as Interest pass through (subject to applicable withholding taxes, if any) and 
Rs 0.018/- per unit as other income on surplus funds at Trust level  
 
The said distributions shall be paid within 15 days from the date of declaration.    
 
Further, the Record Date is declared as 29th May, 2024 to ascertain the eligibility of Unit 
holders entitled to receive the aforesaid distributions. 
 

3) Took note of the Valuation Report prepared by independent valuer, RBSA Valuation Advisors 
LLP (“RBSA”) for the period ended 31st March, 2024 of the existing assets of the NHIT which 
provides the valuation as at Rs. 27,714.2/- Crores (Equity valuation of Rs. 4598.06/- Crores).  
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4) Pursuant to Regulation 10(21) of SEBI (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as 
amended from time to time read with circulars and guidelines issued thereunder, the Net 
Asset Value (“NAV”) of NHIT as of 31st March, 2024, as computed by the management based 
on the Valuation Report issued by Valuer is Rs 125.46/- per unit pre-distribution and Rs. 
124.75/- per unit post distribution.  
 

5) Re-constitution of the Committees of the Board of Directors and dissolution of Investment 
and Finance Committee and consequent amendment in the Corporate Governance 
Framework. 
 

6) Approved the appointment of M/s. Garg Vaibhav & Associates as the Secretarial Auditor of 
NHIT and NHIIMPL for the financial year 2024-25. 
 

7) Approved the corporate Identity (Logo) of National Highways Infra Trust (“NHIT” or “Trust”) 
 

The Board Meeting commenced at 04:00 p.m. and concluded at 07:00 p.m.  
 
You are requested to take the same on your record. 
 
Sincerely,  
 
For National Highways Infra Trust  
 
By Order of the Board  
National Highways Infra Investment Managers Private Limited 
 
 
 
Gunjan Singh 
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 



AR. & CO, Delhi Office: 
Chartered Accountants A-403, Gayatri Apartment Airlines 

Group Housing Society, Plot No 27, 
Sector -10, Dwarka, New Delhi -110075 
Cell No.-9810195084, 9810444051 
E-mail; ar_col981@yahoo.co.in 

pawankgoel1 @gmail.com 

Corporate and Correspondence Office: 
C-1, [] Floor, RDC, Raj Nagar, 
Ghaziabad-201001 Delhi-NCR National 
Capital region Of Delhi 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THE QUARTER, HALF YEAR AND 
YEAR TO DATE STANDALONE FINANCIAL RESULTS OF THE TRUST 
PURSUANT TO REGULATION 23 OF THE SEBI (INFRASTRUCTURE 
INVESTMENT TRUSTS) REGULATIONS, 2014, AS AMENDED 

To, 

The Board of Directors 

National Highways Infra Investment Managers Private Limited 
(Investment Manager of National Highways Infra Trust) 
G-5 & 6, Sector-10, 

Dwarka, Dethi- 110075 

Report on the audit of the Standalone Financial Results 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Statement of standalone financial results 
of National Highways Infra Trust (hereinafter referred to as “the Trust or 
NHIT"”), consisting ef the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other 
Comprehensive Income, explanatory notes thereto and. the additional 
disclosures in accordance with Chapter 4 of the Securities Exchange Board of 
India (SEBI) Circular No. SBI/HO/DDHS-PoD- ~2/P/CIR/2023/115 dated July 
06, 2023 for the quarter, half year and the year ended March 31, 2024 (the 
standalone statement of Profit & Loss including other comprehensive 
income, other comprehensive income, explanatory notes and additional 
disclosures together referred to as “the Statement”), attached herewith, 
being submitted by the National Highways Infra Investment Managers 
Private Limited (“Investment Manager”) pursuant to the requirements of 
Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 
2014, as amended from time to time read with SEBI Circular. 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 



explanations given to-us, the Statement: 

a. Is presented in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 23 of 
SEBI (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as 
amended from time to tinvé, read with Securities Exchange Board of 
India (SEBI) Circular No. SBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/115 
dated July 66, 2023, and any other relevant circulars inthis regard; 
and 

b. Gives a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting 
Standards, and other accounting ‘principles generally accepted in 
India, to the extent not inconsistent with SEBI InvIT Regulations; of 
the net profit and other comprehensive income and other financial 
information of the Trust for the quarter, half year and the year ended 
March 31, 2024. 

BASIS FOR OPINION 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs}, 
issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Our responsibilities 
under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Results’ section of 
our report. We are independent of the Trust in accordance with the ‘Code of 
Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together 
with the. ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone 
financial results under the provisions of the SEBI InvIT Regulations and we 
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance these 
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the Standalone financiai results. 

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF INVESTMENT 
MANAGER FOR THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL RESULTS 

The Statement has been prepared on the basis of the standalone annual 
financial statements. The Board of Directors of the Investment Manager is 
responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Statement that gives 
a true and fair view of the net profit and other comprehensive income and 
other financial information of the Trust in accordance with the requirements 
of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Infrastructure Investment 
Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time (“SEBI InvIT 
Regulations”); Indian Accounting Standards as defined in Rule 2(1}(a) of the 
Companies. (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amende 



other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not 
inconsistent with SEBI invIT Regulations. This responsibility includes the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Statemenit that 
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Statement, the Board of Directors of Investment Manager 
are responsible for assessing the ability of the Trust to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors of 
Investment Manager either intends to liquidate the Trust or to cease 
operations, or has no réalistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors of Investment Manager is also responsible for 
overseeing the financial reporting process of the Trust. 

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF THE STANDALONE 
FINANCIAL RESULTS 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
Statement as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on 
the basis of the Statement. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We 
also: 

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the 
Statement, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit eviderice that 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The 
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations; or the. 
override of internal control. 



* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing ah opinion on 
the effectiveness of the Trust’s internal controls. 

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made 
by Board of Directors of Investment Manager. 

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors of 
Investment Manager use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern. 
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in 
the Statement or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained 
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Trust to cease to continue as a going 
concern, 

2» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the 
Statement, including the disclosures, and whether the Statement 
represent the underlying transdctions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among 
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit 
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal contro] that we 
identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we 
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, 
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards. 

OTHER MATTERS 

1. The Statement includes the standalone financial results for the half year 
ended March 31, 2024 being the balancing figures between the 



figures in respect of full. financial year ended March 31, 2024 and the 
published unaudited year-to-date figures up to September 30, 2023, being 
the date of the end of the first half of the current financial year, which 
were subject to limited review as required under Regulation 23 of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Infrastructure Investment 
Trusts} Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time read with 
Securities Exchange Board of India (SEBI) Circular No. SBI/HO/DDHS- 
PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/115 dated July 06, 2023 

. The Statement includes the standalone financial results for the quarter 
ended March 31, 2024 being the balancing figures between the audited 
figures in respect of the full financial year ended March 31, 2024 and the 
unaudited year-to-date figures up to 31st December 2023, being the date 
of the end of the first half of the current financial year, which were subject 
to limited review as required under Regulation 23 of the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 
2014 as amended from time to time read with SEBI Circular No. 
SBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/115 dated July 06, 2023. 

Our opinion on the Statement is not modified in respect of the above matter. 

For A. R, & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN. 002744C 

CA Mohd Azam An 

Pariner 

Membership No: 511623 
UDIN: AMS W623 Be CSS GiZAY 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 27-05-2024



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
SEBI Registration Number :- IN/InvIT/20-21/0014 

Audited Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024 

(All amounts in @ lakh unless otherwise slated) 

1) Non - Current Assets 
(a) Financial Assets 

(i) Investments 3,80,163.52 

Particulars As at As at 
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

(Audited) (Audited) 
ASSETS 

1,39,553.52 (ii) Loans 22,40,043.05 8,96.606.66 (iti) Other Financial Assets 10,174.48 9,670.84 
(6) Other Non-Current Assets 95,43 - Total Non Current Assets 26,30,476.48 10,39,831.02 

2) Current Assets 

(a) Financial Assets 
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 30,718.41 14,080.38 
(4) Other Financial Assets (87,534.15 46,692.16 

(b) Current Tax Assets (Net) 7.04 
(c}) Other Current Assets 693.14 1,119.47 Total Current Assets 1,18,952.74 61,892.01 

TOTAL ASSETS 
27,49,429,22 11,01,723.03 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

EQUITY 
1) Unit Capital 14,67,093.46 741,604.32 2) Initial Setiiernent Amount 0.10 0.10 3) Other Equity 1,02,760.63 60,432.64 

Total Equity 
15,69,854,19 §,02,037.06 

LIABILITIES 
1) Non-Current Liabilities 

(2) Financial Liabilities 
Gi} Borrowings 11 ,63,394,94 2,97, 158,33 

Total Non Current Liabilities 11,63,394,94 2,92,158,33 

2} Current Lisbilities 
(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 10,054.00 2,000.00 
(ti) Trade Payables 

(a) Total Outstanding, dues of micro and small enterprises 36.17 3.88 
(b) Total outstanding, dues of creditors other than micro.and 

small enterprises 733.58 342.69 (iii) Other Financial Liabilities 3,162.05 5,129.59 (b) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) - 8.98 (c} Other Current Liabilities 194,29 42,50 Total Current Liabilities 16,180.09. 7,527.64 Total Liabilities AION 11, 79,575.03 799,685.97 TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES Viva a 27,49,429.22 11,01,723.03 
Tai en ” 
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NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
SEB] Registration Number :- IN/InvIT/20-21/0014 

Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the Year ended March 31, 2024 

fall anrounts are it % lakh unless otherwise shatect 

Year ended 

31 March 2024 
Year ended 

31 March 2023, Particulars 

faudited) faacdited) 
A, | Cash flows from operating activities 

Net Profit/fLoss) Before Tax 97, S14.31 77,706.92 
Adjustments: 

Finance Cost (net) 25,015.90 16,590.17 
interest Income on Bank FOR (786.74) (352.28) 
Interest Income on Long Term Loan given to SPV (1,23,103:51) (94/698,30) 
Profit on redemption of Mutual Funds (840,99) (422.20) 
Operating cash flows before. Working Capital Changes (2,201.03) (1,175.71) 

Movements in Working Capital 
Decrease / (Increase) ia Other Non Current Financial Assets (0.90) (15.42) 
Decrease / (Increase) in Other Current Financial Assets (292.14) (290,62) 
Decrease / (Incréage) in Other Current Assets 379.16 (834.96} 
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade & Other Payables (312.33) 393.13 
Increase / (Decrease} in Other Financial Liabilities ” (0.00) 
increase / (Decrease) in Other Current Liabilities 151,79 (57.30) 
Increase / (Decrease) in Current Tax Liabilities “ - 
Cash used in operating activities (2,075.45) (1,980.87) 
Ineorrie Tax paid (711.06) (626.67) 
Net Cash Flows used in operating activities -A (2,786.51) (2,607.54) 

B./Cash flows. from investing activities 
Long Term Loans given (13,49,436.40) (284,966.66) 
Purchase of Non Current Investments (2,40,610.00) - 
Investment in FOR (447.00) (6,299.18) 
Profit on redemption of Mutual Funds 840.99 422.20 
Interest received on Long Term Loan given $2,549.94 58,661.00 
Interest Received from Bank on FDR 734,73 168.40 
Net Cash Flows used in investing activities - B (15,06,367.74) (2,32,014.24) 

C./Cash flows from financing activities 
Proceeds from [ssue of unit capital 727,206.41 1.43,013.67 
Expense Incurred towards initial public debt offering - (1,689.00) 
Experise incurred towards institutional unit allotmené (1,471.46) (1,099.13) 
Processing Fee paid (1,482.16) (197.00) 
Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings -NCD - 1,50,000.00 
Proceeds from Long Term Loans from External Lenders 8.84,700.00 . 
Distribution paid to unit holders (54,491.29} (34,927.86) 
Repayment of Long Term Borrowings (3,759.73) (1,010.98) 
Finance Costs Paid {24.909.51)] (11,186.86) 
Net Cash Flows from financing activities -C 15,25,792,27 2,42,908,84 
Net Incredse/Decrease in Cash and Cash equivalents (A+B+C) 16,638.03 8,287.05 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Beginning of the year 14,080.38 3,793.33 
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 30,713341 14,080.38 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
SEBI Registration Nuniber :- IN/EnvI'T/20-21/0014 

Disclosures pursuant to SEBI circulars (SEBI Master Circular No. 
CIRSEBLYHO/DDUHS_Div3/P/CIR/2021/1673 dated 29th November, 2021 issued under the InvIT regulations} 

Statement of Net Distributable C:sh Flows (NDCF) 

{All amounts a 2 iakh unless othenvise stated} 
5. Particulars For the year ended 31st] For the year ended 31st 
No. 

Maireh 2024 March 2013 
1 | Profit after tax as, per Statement of profit and lessfineoine nd expenilituré (Standatone) 96,819.27 77,236.17 

(A) 
2 jAdd: Depreciation and amortization as per statement of profit and loss account. Inease off - 

Impairment reversal. same needs to be deducted from profit and loss. 
3 Add/Less: Loss/pain on sale af infrastructure assets - 
4 | Add: Proceeds from sale of infrastructure assets adjusted for the following: “ 

related debts sellled or due io be settled (rom gale proveeds: 
directly. attributiile transaction casts: 
proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 18(7Wa) of the InviT 
repvlations 

3. (Add: Proceeds from sale of infrastructure assets not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to-re- . 
invest. if such proceeds are not intended to be invested subsequently, net of any profit! (loss) 
recognised in profit and loss account 

6 [Add? Less: Any other item of none cash expense/ non cash inceme (net of actual cash flows lor (82,058.04) (45,002,003 
these tems), if deemed necessary by the Investment Manager. 
For example, any decrause/ jucrease in carrying amount of an asset or a liability recognised in 
prafit and loss income and expenditure on measurement. of the asset or the liability at fair value: 
Interest cost as per effective interdst tate method, defermed tax lease rents recognised on a 
straight line basis, ete. 

7 jLess: Repayment of extemal debt (principal) / redeemable preference shares ¢ dehentures, ete, (4.206,73) C.GMh98) 
{excluding refinancing) / net cash set aside to comply with OSRA requirement under loan 
digrcements, 

& lTotul Adjustment (B} (86,264.77) (46.012.98}| 
9 [Net Surplus (C) = (A+B) (NDCE) WLS5451 FA 275.19 
10 |Add: income recopnised in previous year and received in this year 46.6884 [0.651.413 
I) [Leas :~ Inerest expenses recogiised in previous veur und paid in this year {5,J 20.595 = 
12 | Distibutahte Cash Flow $2,113.55 AL S74 32 
13 [Less: Amount already distributed to Unitholders {for the period from April 33 to Jat 24 Y for 42,843.37 30,225.78 

the period from April-22 to Devember 22) 
14 [Balance Net Distributable Cash Flows forthe year ended Mareb 31, 2024 9,269,983 1164854 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS IN FRA TRUST 
SEBI Registration Number :- IN/Inv1T/20-21/0014 

Disclosures pursuant ‘to SEBI circulars (SEBI Master Circular No, 
CIRSEBI/HO/DDHS _Div3/P/CIR/2021/1673 dated 29th November, 2021 issued under the TavIT 

b. Investment manager fees 
i) The Investment Manager's fee as per agreement dated 21st October 2020 will initially be Rs. 1,£00 Lakh (Rupees 
Eleven Hundred-Lakhs) pec annum. 
ii} The Investment Management Agreement is tevised and the fee with effect tram Ist April 2023 has been agreed at Rs 
1,800 Lakhs (Rupees Eighteen hundred Jakhs) for the Financial Year 2023-24. 
ili) The management fee set out in paragraph (ii) above shall be subject fo escalation. on an annual basis at the rate of 10% 
of the management fee for the previous year. 
iv) Any applicable taxes, cess or charges, as the case may be, shall be in addition to the manageinent fee and shall be 
payable by National Highways Infra Trust (NHIT) to the Investment Mana ger (NHTMPL). 
Payment of frequency: Payment of management fee shall be made by National Highways Inffa Trust (NHIT) to the 
Investment Manager (NHUMPL) in advance ona quarterly basis at the beginning of each quarter of a financial year. 

c, Statement of earnings per unit (EPU’) 

Basic EPU amounts are calculated by dividing the profit gor the periad/ year attributable to Unit holders by the weighted 
average number of units outstanding during the period/ year. Diluted EPU amounts are calculated by dividing the 
profit(loss) attributable to unit holders by the weighted average number of units outstanding during the period/ year plus 
the weighted average number of units that would be issued an conversion of all the dilutive potential units into unit capital. 

(All amounts in % [akh unless otherwise stated) 
Particulars For the Year For the Year 

ended March | ended March 31, 
31, 2024 2023 

(Audited) (Audited) 
Profit for the period / year (% lakhs) 96,819.27 77,236.17 
Weighted average number of units outstanding for computation of basic and diluted] 75,36,14,276 65,66,68,738 
earming per unit. 

Earning per unit (basic and diluted) (2) 12,85 11.76 

d. Contingent Liabilities 
{Contingent Liabilities Nil j Nil | 
e. Other funding commitments 

Commitment for loen to Subsidiary Company (Project SPV- NHIPPL) 1,21,594.00 1,460,494 00 
Commitment for Joan to Subsidiary Company (Project SPV- NEPPL) 34,658.61 - 

1,56,252.61 1,40,494.06 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 

SEBEL Registration Number :- 1N/lnv1T/20-21/0014 
Additional disclosure as required by paragraph 6 of Annexure Ato the SEBL Circular No. 

CIRAIMD/DF/127/2016 

Statement of Related Parties 

A. List of Related Parties as per requirement of IND AS 24 —“Redated Party Disclosures” 

Enterprises where Controt / significant influence exists 

National Highways Intra 

Projects Private Limited 

CNHIPPL') 
(Subsidiary Company) 

NDIT Eastern Projects 

Private Limited 

CNEPPL') 

(Subsidiary Company} 

B. List of adlditional related parties as per Regulation 2(£)(<¥) of the SEB] InvIT Regulations 

Parties to the Trust 

National Highways Infra investiient Managers Private Limited (NHIUIMPL)- Investment Manager (1M) of the Trust 
IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited (PSL) - ‘Trustee of the Trust 
National Highways Authority of India (NHAD- Sponsor 
Natlanal Highways InvIT Project Managers Private Limited (NHIPMPL)- Project Manager 

Promuters af the Parties ta the ‘Trust specified xbove 

Government of India (acting through Ministry of Road, Transport & Highways (MORTH)) - Promoter of NHIIMPL 
IDI Bank Limited (DBI Bank} - Promoter of TSI 
Government of India (acting through Minisiry of Road, Transport & Highways (MORTH)) - Promoter of NHAL 
National Highways Authority of India (NAAD- Promoter of NELUPMPL 

Directors of the parties to the Trust speeitied above 

Directors of NULWAPL 

4
 Mr. Suresh Krishan Goyal 

Mr. Shailendra Narain Roy 

Mr. Mahavir Prasad Sharma 

Mr, Pradeep Sineh Kharola 
Mr. N.R.WVMLK. Rajendra Kumar 
Mr. Suinit Bose 
Mr. Pushkar Vijay Kulkarni (Appointed as Dircetor w.c.f 08.11.2023) 
Mr, Debapratim Hajara (Appointed as Director w.e.f, 08.11.2023) 
Mr. Vinay Kumar (Appointed as Nominee Director w.ef. 27.03.2624) 
Ms. Usha Monari (Appointed as Woman Independent Director wal. 16.04.2024) 
Mr. Bruee Cane (Ceased to be director wie. 07.1 1.2023) 
Ms, Kavita Soha (Ceased to bé director w.e.f 08.1 1.2023) 
Mr. Amit Kamar Ghosh (Ceased to be director w.e.f 15, 11.2023} 

3 
a
 

Directors of ITS1, 
Mr. Pradeep Kunvar Jain 

Mg. Jayashree Vijay Ranace 
Mr. Pradeep Kumar Mathotra 
Ms. Baljinder- Kaur. Mandal 
Ms, Jayakumar Subramoniapiilai 

Directors of NHIPMPL 

Mr. Akhil Khare 

Mr. Ashish Kumar-Singh 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
SEBT Registration Number-:- INAnvIT/20-21/0014 

Additional disclosure as required by paragraph 6 of Annexufe A to the SEB] Circular No. 
CIR/IMD/DF/E27/2016- 

. Transactions with Reluted Parties 

(Amounts in inkh} 
Partieutars Year ended — Vear ended 

. ° 3ist March 2024 31st Slarch 2023 

CAluecditeccd td nedifedt 
National Wighways jatéa Projects Private-Limited (NHIPPL) . 
Advancement of Long Term Liang ta NHIPPL 18,900.00 234,960.66 Interest Income accrued on Long Term Loan given lo NHIPPL, 1,30;885,95 4,698.30 Refin bursementof Expense paid by NHiT.on behalf of NFUPPL O01 433.66 

National Uiglavays Infca investment Managers Private Limiter (NHWAIPE) 
Investment Manager Fee 

1,800.00 1491.17 Advance Investment Manager Fee Paid 4,93 R606 Expense incurred by NHITMPI on our bebal!’ 15,35 39.79 

National Highways Authority of India (NITAD 

isstec of units of Trust to NETAT 

Interest and other income distribution 

IDB Trusteeship Services Limited OTSL) 

Payment af Trustee Fee 

Cher fees related to Round 1 & 2 Assets 

Other Fees related to Round 3 Assets ("Project Leap") 

ited 

Secured Loan given to NHIT 

interest Expense incurred on Loan given to NHIT 

Repayment of Principal Amount 

Loan Processing Fees Paid to them 

IDBE Bank Lit 

NET Eaisteria Projects Private Limited (NEPPL) 

Stibscription of Share Capital of NEPPL. by NHIT 
Long Tenn Loans given to NEPPL 

109.08 1.07 

SG [92 

9.60 

1.50 
17.58 

10,000.00 

438 
0,0 

4130 

240,650.00 

13,30,536.39 

35 ,366,83 

5,389,34 

12.73 
3.54 

Interest income Acerved on Long Tenn Loan given to NEPEL 2,417.56 . Short tem Advance given to NEPPL A. 50 - Expense incurred by NEPPL. on our behalf O48 . Expenses teured by NHET on. their behall 262.72 z 

, Closing Balanees with Related Parties 

tAmounts in 2 lakh) 
Particulars Asat March 31, 2024 As at March 32, 20123 

National Vighways [afva Projects Private Limited (NUIFPL) 

fovestrient in equity shares of NHEPPL, 
Outstanding Long term Loans given a NHIPEL 
Interest receivable di Long-Term Loan given to NHIPPL 
AAmaunl Receivable for Expenses incurred on theit behalf 

Nationa] Tighways lagra Lavestment Abertagers Private Limited! (NUTEMPL 
Advance IM Fee 
IM Fee Payable 

[DBI Trusteeshin Serviges Limited 

Trustee Fee Pavable 

Other Fees related to Round 3 Assets (Project Leap") 

[DBI Bank Limitel 

Outstanding Secured Loan Aniouat 

NiUT Eastern Projects Private Limited (NEP? L) 

Tavestment in equity shares of NEPPL 
Arount Receivable for Expenses incusted on their behalf 
Onugtanding Advance Recoverable from NEPPI_ 
Amount Payable for Expenses ineurredon our-belaif 
Outstanding Long term Louns given ie NEPPL 
Interest Reecivable an long.cem Loans siven to NEPPL, 

tlnatited} (elaediredty 

1,24,4).0.06 1,324.4 £0.00 

9.09 ,506.66 890,606, 66 
$5,024 44 46,688.43 

9.01 - 

2.27,003,9] 117,922.83 

4.93 - 
- £89 

1.73 E73 
3.68 - 

9,999.99 - 

240,610.00 - 

267.64 - 

20.50 - 

ded - 
13,30,536,39 

2,217:36 



SEBI Registration Number :-. INAnvIT/20-21/001 4 
Disclosures pursuant to SEB! circulars (SEBI Master Circular No, CERSEBI/HO/DDHS- Div3/P/CIR/2021/1673 
dated 29 November 2021 issued aiider the InvIT regulations) 

Standwlovie Statement of Net Assets at Pair Value, (Al aniounts are in 2 lakh unless olhenvise stated) 
Ag at Alarch 31, 2024 AsatMareh 31, 2023 

Particulars Book yalue Fair value* Book valuc Fair-valne* 

A, Assets 27,49,429,22 28,25, 799.68 11,01.723.03 14,57-786.51 
B. Liabilities (at book value) J41.79,3 75.03 11,74,575.03 2,99,685,97 2.990.685 97 
C. Net assets (A-B} 15,09, 854.19" 16,46,225 $02,037.06 S58. 100,54 
DB. No of units 1,31,22,00,606 1.31.22.00,600 72.64.05 200.00 72,6405, 200,06 
E. NA¥ (C/D} 119.64 125.46 10.41 118.13 

“Faire values of total assets relating fo the Trust as at March 31,2024 & March 31,2023 as disclosed aboye are based on ihe independent valver report. 

Standatone Statement of Total fteturn at Fair Value: {Al amounts re in 2 lakh unless othenvise stated} 
Particulars As at As at 

Mareh 31, 2024 March 31,2023 
Total comprehensive income for the year (As per (he Standalone Statement ef Profit and 105s} 96,819.27 FP236.17 
Add: Oilier changes in fair yalue for (he year * 76,370,46 $6,063.48 
Total retura 1,73,189.73 £,33,299,65 

* In the above stuternent, other changes in fair value for the period ended March 31, 2024 and Mareh 3i, 2023 have been computed based on the independent 
villuer report 

The accompanying notes form ae integra part of the Standalone Financial Statements. 

‘This is the Standalone Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value and SGmdalone Statement of Total Reform at Fair Value referred to in our-report of even date. 
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NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 

SEBI Registration Number :- IN/InvFT/20-21/0014 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Results for the quarter, half year and year ended 31st March 2024 

‘The investor can ylew the result of ihe National Highway Infra Trust (Trust) on the Trust's website (hilps:/Avww.nhit.ca.in} or dn. the websites ef 
GSE (wyvw.bseindiaxcom) or NSE (www nseindia.com} 

The Standalone Financial results of National Highiways Infra Trust (Trest’) for the quarter, half year: and year ended 31st March, 2024 liave been 
ceviewed by the Audit Committee of Nutional Highways Infra investment Managers Private’ Limited (‘Investment Manager’ of Trust) on 27ih May, 
2024 and thereafter approved by the Board of Directors.of the Investment Manager on 27th May, 2024. 

The Statutory Auditors of the Trust haye carried out the audit of Standalone Financial Results of Trust for the quarter, half year und ycar ended 31st 
March 2024 and have issued an unmodified audit report on these Standalone Financial Results. 

The Standalone Financial results comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024, Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss and 
explanatory notes thereto of the National Highways [nffa Trust (‘the Trust’) for dhe quarter, hail year-amd year ended 31st March. 2094 (the 
Statement’). The Siitement has been propared-in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles [nid down in Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) and/or any addendum thereto as defined fa Rule 2 (1) (a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other 
accounling principles generally accepted in India. The Statement has been prepared solely for submissions to be made by the Investinent Manager 
with the Stock Exchanges (bow BSE and NSE} and as additional information for stakeholders of the Trust and therefore it may not be. suitable for 
another purpese. 

National Highway Infra Trust ¢“Trust” or “Tiv'T™) is registered as an Irrevocable Trust registered under the provisions of the Indian Trusts Act. 1882 
on 19th Gctaber, 2020. It was registered under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (nirastructare Investment Trust) Regulations, 2014 on 
28th Getober. 2020 having registration number INflavlT/20-2.1/001 4. 

The Trust has outstanding. secured non-converlible debentures (NCDs) amounting. to Rs, 1,500 crores for SFRPP A, STRPP B, and STREP C which 
will mature (rom 8th anniversary to (3th anniversary, 13th anniversary to 18th anniv acy. 18th unpiversary to 23th anniversary: of allotment 
respectively, The NCDs are listed on Bombay: Stock Exchange (BSE} and Nationat Stock Exchange (NSE). The security eeyer execeds 100% of the 
principal and interest amount al NCD's as at 31 March 2024, 

Nature of Seeurity for Non Convertible debentures: 
The debenture helders.are secured by : 

a) a first ranking pari passu Security Interest over the Trust's immovable assets {if any), boih present and future. The Trust does not own any 
immovable property at the present time, Ti {he event, the Trust acquires any inmovable property in future. the Trust shall mortgage said property 
within 180 (one hundred eighty} days from the date of acquisition of such immovable assets, The Debentore Trustee shall be authorised to de all nets, 
deeds. und enter into necessary doctiménts, agreement, amendments and/or modifications, as may be- required to give effect the same, inchiding 
carrying out (he due diligence as may be required by Debeniure Trustec: 
bya first ranking pari passu Securily Interest aver the Hypotheeuled Axsels (including Receivables), balh present and fulure; and 
e} Negative Lien Undertaking 

d) corporaie guaraniee executed hy the Project SPV (NINPPL} in favour of the Debenture Trustee for guaranteeing the due repayment of the secured 
obligations in accordance with the terms of the Debenture Trust Deed. 

The standalone financial results relating lo half year ended March 31, 2024 are the balancing figures between the audited figures in respect of full 
financial year ended March 31, 2024 and published figures for hatl'ycar ended September 30, 2023 which were subject to limited review. 
The standalone financial results relating to quarter ended March 31, 2024 are the balaneing figures between the audited figures in respect of sull 
financial year ended March 31, 2024 and published figures for the period ended December 31, 2023 which were subject to limited review. 

The Board of Directors of the Investment Manager has declared distribution for January 2024 of Rs. 0.631 per unit which comprises at Rs, 0.606 per 
unit as intérest and Rs. 0.025 per unit as ather income on surplus funds at the Trust level in their meeting held on 41h March, 2024. Further, the 
Beard of Directors of the Investment Manager has declared distribution (or February 2024 & March 2024 of Rs. 0.705 per unit whielt comprises of 
Res. 0,687 per unit as interest and Rs. 0.018 per unit as ether income on surplus funds at ihe ‘Frusi level in their meeting held on 27th May, 2034. 
The Board of Directors of the Investment Manager has dectared distribution for Quarter 3 of FY 2023-24 of Rs: 1,697 per unit which comprises of 
Rs. 1.693 per utiit as interest and Rs. 0,004 per uni as other income on surplus funds at the Trust level in their mecling held on 2nd Pebruary, 2024. 
The Board of Directors of the Investment Manager had declared distribution for Quarter 2 of FY 2023-24 of Rs. 1.816 per.unit which comprises of 
Rs. 1.774 per unit as interést and Rs. 0.042 per unit as other income on surplus funds at the Trust level in their meeting held on 8th November, 2023 
and the Board of Directors of the Investment Manager had deciarcd distribution for Quarter { of PY 2023-24 af Rs. L754 per unit which comprises 
of Rs. 1.742 per nil ag interest and Rs. 0.042 per unit us other income on surplus funds at thé Trust level in their meeting held on 1 tth Augusi. 2023. 

The Trust has invested the amount of &s. 2.40,610 Lakh in the equity share cupiuil of the NHIT Eastern Projects Private Limited (Project SPY's - 1 
during the year. NEPPL acquired rights for Tolling. Management and ‘Maintenance of the seven foll roads under ihe concession agreement signed 
wilh NILAL for consideration of INR 15,69.988,18 Lakhs , . Appointed date for ihe project is. w.e.F 01.04.2024, 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
SEBI Registration Number :- ENAnviT/20-21/0014 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Results for the quarter, half year and year ended 31st March 2024 
In current year the Trust offered an issue of 58,57,95,400 unils af National Highways Intha Trust (NET), for cash at aprice of 124.14 per unit (Hie “issue price”), aggregating to‘ Rs 7,27,206.41 lakh through Instifttional and preferentialplacement in accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (iv(rastructure Investment Trust) Regulations. 2014 including the ries, circulars arid guidelines issued thereunder, 
As per Ind AS 36 ‘Impairment of assels', based on Management review on expected future cash fiows and-economic conditiong of the assets af the Trust, no indicators of impairment of assets Oxist as on the reporting-date. Mence na provision: for inapairment has been recognized in the backs on the reporting. date, 

As per Ind AS 109. Financial Assets that are measured at amortized cost are required to compute the Expected Credii Loss (ECL. Asat the reporting peried, the Investment Manager of the Trust assessed the eredit risk of the financial assets and concluded thai no Provision lor ECL. is required. 

During the year ended 3 fst March 2024, the Trust has taken a further disbursenteni of amounting to Rs. 163 Crores from the Axis Bank Limited and Rs. 26 Crores ftom the Bank of Maharashira in accordance with Facility agreewient. The. Trust las given the above said. amouni to Project SPV NHIPPi. as Loan atthe rate of [2.70% p.a. for initial Improavemem works. 

During the year ended 31st March 2024, ihe Trust has obtained the sanclion of Rs, 877 Crores from the Axis bank for initial improvement warks-of Round 2 Assets. Further Trust has obtained sanction of Rs, 9000 Crores ftom Banks and Financial lastitution for sequistion of Round 3 Assets and has daken-a disbursement af Rs. 8.658 Crore during the year. the Trust has given the said smount to Project SPY NEPPL as Lean at the rate of 12.70% pa. for acquistion of Round 3 Assets, 

Cash & cash equivalent includes Rs, 15,000 Lakhs raised in current year from unil issuc fir leap projects, to be utilised far creation of DSRA against loans raised for leap projects. Further these invesiinents also includes Rs, 4106.06 Lakhs pertaining to one time issue related expenses unutilized as on 31-03-2024. 

AUl values are rounded to nearest lakh, unless otherwise indicated. Certain amounts that ave required io be disclosed and de nol appear due lo reunding off are expressed ay 0.06. 

Previous year Heures have been reclessifiedegrouped wherever necessary to continm lo current period classification. 

For aad on behalf of the National Highways Infra Investment Managers Private Limited (Iivestment Mariager of National Highways Infra Trust) 

et He af 

Mathew George onway Sfrfsh Kris an Goval Compliance Officer Chief Financial OFfGe* Director 
uy DIN: 02724580 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 271h May, 2024 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE QUARTER, HALF YEAR AND 

YEAR TO DATE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RESULTS. OF THE TRUST 

PURSUANT TO REGULATION 23 OF THE SEBEL (INFRASTRUCTURE 

INVESTMENT TRUSTS) REGULATIONS, 2014, AS AMENDED 

To, 

The Board of Directors 

National Highways Infra Investment Managers Private Limited 

(Investment Manager of National Highways Infra Trust) 

G-5 & 6, Sector-10, 

Dwarka, Delhi- 110075 

Report on the audit of the Consolidated Financial Results 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Statement of consolidated financial results 

of National Highways Infra Trust (hereinafter referred to as “the Trust or 

NHIT”") comprising its two subsidiaries (hereinafter referred to as “the 

National Highways Infra Projects Private Limited or NHIPPL and the NHIT 

Eastern Projects Private Limited or NEPPL”} (the Trust and its subsidiary 

“NHIPPL& NEPPL” together referred to as “the Group”), consisting of the 

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive 

Income, explanatory notes thereto and the additional disclosures in 

accordance with Chapter 4 of the Securities Exchange Board of India (SEBI) 

Circular No. SBI/HO/DDHS-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/115 dated July 06, 2023 for 

the quarter, half year and year ended March 31, 2024 (the consolidated 

statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income, 



explanatory notes and additional disclosures together referred to as 
“Statement”), attached herewith, being submitted by the National Highways 
Infra Investment Managers Private Limited (“Investment Manager”) pursuant 
to the requirements of Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Infrastructure Investment 
Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as amended from time to time read with SEBI 
Circular. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us, and the based on the consideration of our report on 
subsidiary’s Standalone Financial Statements, the Statement: 

a. Includes the results and other disclosures of the National Highways 
Infra Projects Private Limited and NHIT Eastern Projects Private 
Limited; 

b. Is presented in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 23 of 
SEBI (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014, as 
amended, read with SEBI Circular No. SBI/HO/DDHS-PoD- 
2/P/CIR/2023/115 dated July 06, 2023, and any other relevant 
circulars in this regard; and 

c. Gives a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting 
Standards, and other accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, to the extent not inconsistent with SEBI InvIT Regulations, of the 
consolidated net profit and other comprehensive income and other 
financial information of the Group for the quarter, half year and year 
ended March 31, 2024. 

BASIS FOR OPINION 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), 
issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Our responsibilities 
under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities 
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Results’ section of our report. We 
are independent of the Group in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical 
requirements that ate relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial 
results under the provisions of the SEBI InvIT Regulations and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance these requirements 
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 



EMPHASIS OF MATTER 
a) We draw the attention to Note No. 12 to the financial result regarding 

Initial Improvement Works, The. group has recognized provision for 
initial improvement. works on Ist December 2023 amounting to Rs. 
1,11,993.43 lakhs with corresponding impact in Statement of Profit and 
Loss amounting to Rs. 1124.63 Lakhs and Rs. 2396.83 Lakhs on account 
of amortization of initial improvement work and unwinding of interest 
on provision of initial improvement respectively. 

b) We draw attention to Note 11 of the financial result which describes that 
Major Maintenance Provision {MMR} is made based on the first cycle of 
overlay expected to occur in five to seven years and not based on the 
total Major Maintenance Cost estimated to be incurred over entire 
concession period, The discounting rate used for arriving at the present 
value for MMR provisions is government bond rate of 30 years for 
projects acquired in first phase and 20 years for Projects acquired in 
second phase. 

c) We draw the attention to Note No. 13 to the financial result regarding 
Capital Advance to National Highway Authority of India (NHAI). The 
appointed date is with effect from 1st April 2024, therefore the amount 
paid to NHAI has been classified as capital advance 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters. 

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF INVESTMENT 
MANAGER FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL RESULTS 

The Statement has been prepared on the basis of the consolidated annual 
financial statements. The Board of Directors’ of the Investment Manager is 
responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Statement that gives a 
true and fair view of the consolidated net profit and other comprehensive 
income and other financial information of the Group in accordance with the 
requirements of the SEB] InvIT regulations as amended, Indian Accounting 
Standards as defined in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies {Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015 {as amended} and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with SEBI InvIT 
Regulations. The Board of Directors of the subsidiaries included in the Group 
are responsible for maintenarice of adequate accounting records for 



safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the Statement that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used 
for the purpose of preparation of the Statement by the Board of Directors of 
the Investment Manager, as aforesaid. 

In preparing the Statement, the Board of Directors of Investment Manager and 
the Board of Directors of the subsidiaries included in the Group are 
responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing; as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors 
either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors of Investment Manager and the subsidiaries included 
in the Group are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting 
process of the Group. 

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL RESULTS 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the. 
Statement as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic. decisions of users taken on the basis of the 
Statement. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment 
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

© Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the 



Statement, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that 
is sufficient.and appropriate to provide ‘a basis for our opinion. The 
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may invoive 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 

Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the 
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls. 

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made 
by the Board of Directors of Investment Manager. 

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors of 
Investment Manager’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, 
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the 
Statement or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. 

Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the 
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Group to céase to continue as a going concern. 

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and cortent of the 
Statement, including the disclosures, and whether the Statement 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation. 

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial 
information of the Trust and subsidiary included in the Statement of 
which we are the independent auditors, to express an opinion on the 
Statement. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and 
performance of the audit of financial statements of the Trust and 



subsidiary included in the Statement of which we are the independent 

auditors. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Trust and the 
subsidiaries included in the Statement of which we are the independent 

auditor regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 

internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have 
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards. 

OTHER MATTERS 

1. The Statement includes the consolidated financial results for the half 
year ended March 31, 2024 being the balancing figures between the 
audited figures in respect of the full financial year ended March 31, 
2024 and the published unaudited year-to-date figures up to 30 

September 2023, being the date of the end of the first half of the 

current financial year, which were subject to limited review as 
required under Regulation 23 of the Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Infrastructure Investment Trusts} Regulations, 2014 as 
amended from time to time read with SEBI Circular Na. 

SBI/HO/DDHS-PeD-2/P/CIR/2023/115 dated July 06, 2023. 

2. The Statement includes the consolidated financial results for the 

quarter ended March 31, 2024 being the balancing figures between 
the audited figures in respect of the full financial year ended March 
31, 2024 and the unaudited year-to-date figures up to 3ist December 
2023, being the date of the end of the first half of the current financial 

year, which were subject to limited review as required under 
Regulation 23 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended 
from time to time read with SEBI Circular No. SBI/HO/DDHS-PoD- 
2/P/CIR/2023/115 dated July 06, 2023. 



Our opinion on the Statement is not modified in respect of the above 
matters. 

For A. R. & Co. 

Chartered Accountants. 

FRN. 002744C 

Wf 
CA Mohd Azam Ansari 

Partner 

Membership No: 5411623 
UDIN: 2.4571162 3 Bie CSS 143 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 27.05.2023 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
SEBI Registration Number :-IN/InvyIT/20-21/0014 

Audited. Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024 

{Ail amounts iit 2 lakh gules othervise slated) 
Particulars As at As at 

31 March 2024 31 March 7023 

(Audited) (Audited) 
ASSETS 

1) Non - Current Assets 

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 219.29 125.17 
(b) Capital work in Progress (C WIP} 19.76 
(c} Gocdwill 10, £44.46 10,144.46 
(d) Other Intangible Assets 10,88,670,84 10,01,400.09 
(e) Financial Assets 

(i) Other Financial Assets 10,177.86 9.67244 
(f) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 11,323.20 4,685.32 
(hy Non Current Tax Asseis (Net) 22.38 12.06 
(g) Other Non Current Assets 15,70,649.18 

Total Non Current Assets .26,91,426,97 10,26,039.54 

2) Current Assets 

(a) Financial Assets 

(2) Trade Receivables 383,20 350.87 
(i) Cash & Cash Equivalents 46,400,78 21,124.08 
Gi) Bank Balances other than Cash & Cash Equivalents 512.98 - 

(iv) Other Financial Assets 454 6.65 
<b) Other Current Assets 3,303.89 1,634.06 
Fotal Current Assets 49,607.39 23,115.66 

TOTAL ASSETS . 27,41,034,356 10,49,155.20 

EQUETY AND LIABILITIES 

EQUITY 

1) Unit Capital 14,67,093 47 7,41 604.32 
2) Initial Settlement Amount 0.10 0.10 
3) Other Equity (27,541.44) (2,469.86) 
Total Equity 14,39,552.13 739,134.56 

LIABILITIES 

[} Non-Current Liabilities 

(a} Financial Liabilities 
(i) Borrowings 11,63,394,94 2,97, 158,33 
(ii) Other Financial Liabilities 80.90 - 

(b) Provisions 35,023.32 6,318.81 
Tatal Non Current Liabilities 11,99,399.16 2,98,477,14 

2) Current Liabilities 

(a) Financial Liabilities 

{i} Borrowings 10,034.00 2,000.00 
(ii) Trade Payables 

(a) Total Outstanding, dues of micro and small enterprises 275.99: 137.23 
(b) Total outstanding, dues of creditors other than micro and 

. 4,479.00 3,871.17 small enterprises: 
(ii) Other Financial Liabilities 7,424,353 §,284.,95- 

(c} Provisions 79,404.66 0.36 
(d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 181.66 8.98 
(b) Other Current Ligbitities 463,33 240.61 

Total Current, Liabilities 1,02,083.07 11,543.50 

Total Liabitities 13,01,482.23, 

TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 27,41,034.36 
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NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
SEBI Registration Number :-IN/InvIT/20-2.1/0014 

Audited Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended Ended March 31, 2024 

ON amounts are jt F lakh wiless otferwise stated) 

Year ended Year-ended 

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

tAndited} fAnediied} 

A, Cash flows from operating activities / 

Net Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 23,465.47 21,740.68 

Adjustments: 

Depreciation and Amortization 24,771.04 17,560.63 

Profit on redemption of Mutual Funds (2,141.16) (67E.17) 

interest income from FDR (871.71) (373.43) 

Finance Cost (net) 25,015.90 16,590.17 

Provision for major maintenance expenses 8,444.05 5,879.20 

Unwinding interest on major maintenance provision 2,867.62 24.95 

Provision for Leave encashment and Gratuity 52.43 11.93 

Provision for expected credit lass - 39,00 

Bad debts written off - $.90 

Operating cash flows before Warking Capital Changes $1,603.04 60,832.46 

Movements in Working Capital 

Decrease / (Increase) in Trade &, Other Receivables (34,34) 186.70 

Decrease / (Increase) in Other Non Current Financial Assets {2,52) (208.85) 

Decrease / (Increase) in Other Non Current(Current Assets (516.99) (834.96) 

Necrease / (Increase} in Other Current Financial Assets (293.92) (293.453) 

Increase / (Decrease) in Trade & Other Payables 12.68 3,267.01 

Increase / (Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities 188.59 57.50 

increase / (Decrease) in Provisions (3.57) (0.11) 

Increase / {Decrease} in Other Current Liabilities 239,27 (1.14) 

Increase / (Decrease) in Current Tax Liabilities . * 

Cash used in operating activities 81,182.64 62,999.48 

Income Tax paid (721.42) (626.67) 

Net Cash Flows used in operating activities -A 80,461.22 62,372.81 

m , Cash flows from investing activities 
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment, inchiding CWIP, capital creditors and capital 

advances 

(investment Redemption in FDR 
Interest received on maturity of FDR 

Profit on redemption of mutual funds 
Net Cash Flows used in investing activities - B 

fe) Cash flows from financing activities 

Proceeds from Issue of Unit Capital 
Expense incurred towards initial public debt offering 

Expense incurred towards institutional unit allotment 

Precessing Fee paid 

Distribution to Unit Holders 
Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings (net of processing fes) 

Financing charges paid 
Repayment of Long Term Borrowings 
Net Cash Flows from financing activities - C 
Net Increase/Decrease in Cash and Cash equivalents (A+B+C) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents. at the Beginning of the year 
Cash and ‘Cash Equivalents at the end of the year 

(15,82,977.68) (2.85,101.04} 

(951.26) (6,299.19) 
810.99 189.55 

2141.16 671,17 
(15,80,976.79)! _(2,90,539.51) 

727,206.41 1.43.013.67 
. (1,689.00) 

(1,471.46) (1,099.13) 
(1,482.16) (197.00) 

(54,491,.29)| (34,927.86) 
884,700.00) — 1,30,000.00 
(24,909,511 (11,180.86) 
(3,759.73) (1010.98) 

15,25,792.26 |_2,42,008.84 
25,276.70 14.742, 14 
21,124.08 6,381.94 
46,400.78 21,324.08 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
SEBL Registration Number :- IN/InvIT/20-21/0014 

Disclosures pursuant to SEBI cireulars (SEBI Master Circular No. CIRSEBI/HO/DDHS. Div3/P/CIR/2021/1673 
dated 2% November 2021 issued under the InvIT reguiations} 

Consolidated Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value CALL aroun are in & lakh untoss othenvise stated) 

As nt March 31, 2024. As at Marech31, 2623 

Particulars Book.value Pair value* Book value Fair value* 

A, Assets 27.41.034.36 29,47,706,90 10,49, 155.20 11,68,122.00 

B. Liabilities (at book value} 13,01,482.24 13,01,482.24 3, 10,020.64 3.10,020.64 

C. Net assets (A-B) 14,39,552.12 16,46,224,66 7,39,134.56 8,58,101.36 

D.No of units 1,31,22,00,600,00, 1,31,22,00,600,00 72,64.05.200.00 72,64,05,200.00 

E. NAV (C/D) 109.71 125.46 101.75 8.13 

“Fair values of total assets relating to the Trust as at March 31, 2024 & March 31, 2023 as disclosed above are based on the independent valuer 

Consolidated Statement of Total Retura at Fair Value: (AlLamouines are ia C lakh unjess otherwise stated) 

Particulars As at As at 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Total comprehensive income for the year (As per the Consolidated 29,419.70 23,689.57 
Statement of Profit and Loss) 

Add: Other changes in fair value for the vear 2,06.672,34 1,18.966.80 
[Total return 2,36,092.24 144,656.37 | 

* In the above slatement, othr changes in fair value for the year ended March 31, 2024 & March 31, 2023 have been computed based on ihe 
independent waluer report. 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

This is the Consolidated Slatement of Net Assets al Fair Value and Consolidated Statement of Total Reiutn at Pair Value referred to in our report 
ofeven date. 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 

SEBL Registration Number :- IN/lnv1T/20-21/6014 

Disclosures pursuant fo SEBI cireulars (SEBI Master Cireular No, CIRSEBLHO/DDHS_Div3/P/CER/202 1/1673 dated 

29th November, 2021 issued under the InvIT regulations) 

a.. Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) at Trust'‘Level NHIT 

CAL ainounis in 2 lakh unless otheryise stated} 

5. Particulars For the year ended |For the year ended 31st 

No. dist March 2024 Mareli 2023 

feludited) (duelited) 

1 |Profit after tax as per Statement of profit and loss/income and expenditure (Standalone} 96,819.27 T7238,17 

(A} 
2 «|Add: Depreciation and amortization as. per -statement of profit and loss account, Incase off - 

Impairment reversal, sanve needs io be. deducted from profit and loss, 

3 |Add/Less: Loss/aain onsale of infrastrucinre assets - 

4 |Add: Proceeds from sile of inftastricture assets adjusted for the following: - 

related debts settled ar duc io be sattled from sale: proceeds: 

directly attributable transaction cosis; 

proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 18(7a) of the InvIT| 

repulations , 

3 |Add: Proceeds from sale of infrastructure assets not distributed pursuant to an caslier plan to re- - 
invest, if sich procéeds are not intended (o bé invested subsequently, net of any profit’ (loss) 

recognised in profit and Joss account 

6 |Add/ Less: Any other item of non- cash expense/ non cash income (net of actual cash flows for] (82,058.04) (45,0020) 
these items), if deemed riecessary by the Investment Manager. 

For example, any decreases increase in carrying amount of an asset or a ability recognised in 

profit and loss ‘income and-expendituce.on tmeastrerient of the asset or the liability at fair value: 

Interest cost us per effective intercst rate method, deferred tax lease renis recognised on a straight 

line basis, ete. 

7 |Less: Repayment of extemal debt (principal) / redeemable prederence shares / debentures, ete, (4.206,73) {1,010.98} 

(excluding refinancing) / net eash set aside to comply with DSRA requirement under foas| 

agreements. 

8 |Total Adjustment (B) (80,264.77) (46,012.98) 

9 [Net Surplus (C}= (A+B) (NDCE) 10,554.50 31,223.19 

10 |Add: Income recognised in previous yéar and received in this yéar 46,688.43 10,651.53 

Li |[Less':- Interest expenses recogttised in previous year and paid in this year (5,129.59) - 

12 |Distibutable Cash Flow 52,113.35 41,874.32 

13 |Less: Amount already distributed te Unitholders ((for the period fram April 23 to Jan 24\(PY for 42,843.37 30,225,78 

ihe peridd fram April 22 to December 22)) 

[4 [Balance Net Distributable Cash Flows for the year ended March31, 2024 9,269.97 11,648:54 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INERA TRUST 
SEBT Registration Number +-INaviF/20-214014 

Disclosures pursuant te SEBI circulars (SEBI Master Cireular No, CIRSEBMLO/DHS_Div3/P/CIR/2021/1673 dated 29th November, 
2021 issued under the InvET regutations) 

b. Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF).at SPV Level (NHIPPL) 

{ALL amounts in 2 lakh uniess otherwise staledt 

5: No, ‘Particulars 
For the year ended 

March 34, 2024 
For thie year ended 
March 31,2023 

bd
 

é 

3 

(dirdited) (Audited) 
Profit? (Loss) after tax as: per Statement of profit and Joss/income and expenditure 
(standalone) (A} 

Add: Depreciation and amortization as per statement of profit and loss. account, Thcase of] 

Impairment réversal, same needs.to be deducted from profit and toss. 

Aild/Less: Loss/gdin-on sale of infrastructure assets 

Add: Proceeds from sale of infrastructure assests adjusted for the following: 

Telated debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds; 
directly attritinable transaction costs; 

proceeds reinvested or plarined to be reinvested as per Regulation 18(7)(a) of the InvIT| 

regulations 

Add; Proceeds trom sale of infrastructure assets not distributed pursuant to an earlier plaii 

to re-invest, if such proceeds are not intended to be invested subsequently, net of any profit’ 

(loss) recognised in profit and loss account. * 

Add/ Less: Any other itent of'non- cash expense/ non cash income (net of actual cash {dws 

for ihese tems), ifdeemed necessary by the Investment Manager. 

For example, any decrease/ increase in carrying amount ofan asset or a liability recognised 

in profit and loss fincome and expenditure an measurement of the asset or the liability at fair 

value; 

Taterest cost as per elteclive interesi rete method, deferred fax lease rents recognised on a 
siraight line buisis, ete. 

Less: Repayment of external debt {principal} / redeemable preference shares / debentures, 

etc..fexchiding refinancing) / net cash set aside to comply with DSRA requirement under 
loat agreements, ** 

Total Adjustments (8) 

(65,433.33) 

24,770.91 

(142.72) 

125,403.04 

(504,26) 

149,526.96 

(G1,546.61) 

17,560.63 

(134.38) 

99,236,453 

(4,004.00) 

1,12;5658.71 

Q Net Distributable Cash Flows (C) = (A+B) 54,093.58 61,12,.10 
* This includes amount utilized for-purchase ol Property, Plant and Equipment's and Intangible Assets 

#* As at 31-03-2024 this includes Fixed Deposit of Rs. 504.26 Lakhy lien marked in faver of Bank of Maharashtra against Performance-Bank 
Guarantee iasued iv favour af NHAL ; 

Adjusbnent.to Net Distributablé Cash Flows 

&. No. Particulars For the year'ended | For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 

1 Net Distributable Cash flow for the year (Fram (C) Above} 84,093.58 61,112.18 

2 |Less: Actual, Distribution during the year (87,349 93) (38,661.01) 

Balaree 1,343.65 2,451.00" 
Add: Opening Surplus ( Opening Cash adjusted with Net workifig Capital as on 31-03- 

3. 2023) 3,896.23 - 

4 |Less: Cash Set Asidé For movemmet in net working capital as on 31-03-2024 (254 95) - 

Bulance Distributable Cask Flow*#* §,184.93 2,451,09 

Rs, 5,162.05 lakhs of Cash aut of Balance Distributable cash as 01 31st March 2024 has been distributed.to Trust in April 2024, 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 

SEBI Registration Number :-IN/Inv1T/20-21/0014- 
Disclosures pursuant to SEBI circulars (SEBI Master Circular No. CIRSEBL/HO/DDHS_Div3/P/CIR/2021/1673 
dated 259th November, 2021 issued under the InvIT regulations) 

c. Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flaws (NDCF) at SPV Level (NEPPL) 

CAH amounts in 3 lakh unless otherwise stated} 

For the year ended ‘5S. No. Particulars March 31,2024 

1 Profit/ (Loss) after fax as per Statement of profit aud loss/income and expenditure (1,693.38) 
(standalone) (A) 

2 Add: Depreciation and amortization as per statement of profit and loss account. incase of 0.13 
Impairment reversal, same needs to-be deducted trom profit and loss. 

3 Add/Less: Loss‘gain on sale of infrastructure assets - 
4 Add: Proceeds from sale of infrastructure assests adjusted for the following: - 

related debts settled or due to be settled from sale proceeds: 

directly attributable transaction costs; 
proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvested as per Regulation 18(7)(a) of the InvIT 
regulations 

5 Add: Proceeds from sale of infrastructure agsets not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to re- (0.50) 
invest, if such proceeds are not intended to be invested subsequently, net of any profit’ (loss) 

recognised in profit and loss account. * 

6 Add/ Less: Any other item of non- cash expense/ non cash income (net of actual cash flows for 2,217.93 
these items), if deemed necessary by the [investment Manager, 

For example, any decrease/ incredse in carrying amount of an asset or a liability recognised in 
profit and loss income and expenditure on measurement of the asset or the liability at fair value: 

Interest cost es per effective interest rate method, deferred tax lease rents recognised on‘a straight 
line basis, ete.** 

7 |Less: Repayment of external debt (principal) / redeemable preference shares / debentures, ete. - 
(excluding refinancing) / net cash set aside to comply with DSRA requirement under loan 
agreements. 

8 __|Total Adjustments (B) 2,217.57 
9 _|Net Distributable Cash Flows (C) = (A+B)** 524,19 

* This includes amount utilized for purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment's and Intangible Assets 

il The distributable cash flows are retained for working capital requirements of the Company. 



NATLONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
SEBI Registration Number :-IN/InvIT/20-21/0014 

Disclosures pursuant to SEBI circulars (SEBT Master Circular No. CIRSEBIHO/DDHS_Div3/P/CIR/2021/1673 

dated 29th November, 2021 issued under the InvIT regulations) 

d, Project Managemént Fees.:- 

The project manager National Highways InVIT Project Managers Private Limited (NHIPMPL") for NHIPPL (RL & R2 assets) and is entitled 
to fixed fees based on the Project Implementation and Management Agreement (PIMA) signed by both the parties dated 30th March 2021 as 

amended on 6th March 2024. NHIPMPL is also Project Manager for NEPPL (R3 assets) w.c-P ist April 2024 as per deed of-adherence signed 

on 7h March.2024, 

e. Investment Manager fees 

i) The Invesiment Manager’s fee as per agreement dated 21st October 2020 will initiatly be Rs. 1.100 Lakh (Rupees Eleven Hundred Lakhs} 
per annum. 

ii) The Investment Management Agreement is revised and the fe with effeel from [st April 2023 has been agreed at Rs 1,800 Lakhs (Rupees 
Eighteen hundred laklis) for the Financial Year 2023-24. , 

it) The management fee set out in paragraph (11) above skal be subject to escalation an an annual basis at the rate of 18% of the ovamgement 
(ee for the previous year. 
iv) Any applicable taxes. cess or charges, a8 le case may be, shall be in addition to the managenient See and shall he paynble by National 

Highways fetta Trost (NTT) to the Investment Manager (NHIMPL). 

Payment of frequency: Payment.of management ite shatl be made by National Highways Infra Trust (NEWT) to the Investment Manager 

(NHTIMPLA in advance on a cuarierly basis at the beginning of each quarter ala financial vear. 

f. Statement of earnings per unit (EPL) 
Basic EPU amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the peried/ year attributable to Unit holders by the weighted average number of 

unils oulstanding during the period? year. Diluted EPU amounts are cateulated by dividing the profi(loss) auribulable to unit holders. by the 
Weighted average number of units outstanding during the period? year plus the weiglited average number of uniis hat would be issued on 
conversion ofall the dilulive potential units into unit capital, 

Particulars For the Year cuded {For the Year ended Mareh 

Miareb 31, 2024 31, 2023 

(Audited) (Audited) 
Profit for the period # year (2 lakhs) 29,419.70 25,.689,57 

Weighted average number of units outstanding for computation of basic and diluted 75.36, 14,276 65.66,68.738 
carning per unit, 

Earning per anit (basic aud diluted) (> 3.90 3.91 

g. Statement of Contingent Liabilities/Contingent Assets 
{All amounts are in = lakh unless othenvise stated) 

i) Contingent Liabilities 

Corporate Guarantee issued lo senior lenders 2.87.790.00 2.00.000,00 

Debentute Holders 

Corporate Crudrantee sued bo Debenture Trustee on bebalPofNen Convertibic 1.56,000.00 1,50,000.00 

Stamp Duly on Concession agreement on Belaaum Kagal Protect (refer nole (a) belaw) 6.990,00 - 

ii) Contingent Assets 

Stamp Duty.on Concession agreement on Belgaum Kagal Project (refer note (b) below } 6.950.00 - 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 

SEBI Registration Number :-IN/InvtT/20-21/0014 

Disclosures pirsuant fo SEBI circulars (SEBI Master Circular No. CIRSEBI/HO/DDHS_Div3/P/CIR/262 1/1673 

dated 29th November, 2021 issued tinder the InvIT regulations) 

Note (a) Stamp Daty on Concésston agreement on Belgaum Kagal Project - The group has received notice fram Office of Deputy 

Registrar of Stainps, Government df Karnataka. As per this. notice additional stamp duty of Rs 69.90 crore has been imposed on the group for 

the concession agreement entered inte lor Bélgaum-Kagal road. 

Stamp legislation in cerlain states (neluding Karnataka) also specifies that copy of the main document in respect of any property, or any 

business within ibe state ulso needs lo-be stamped with original umount of stamp duty, if the original document has not been stamped with 

full amount of the stamp duty applicable for place of business. 

As regards to the applicability of stamp duty on Concession Agreement, it may please be noted that there is no specific éntry in respect ofthe 

concession agreement. Such agreements are’stamped under -the.residuary category of (he agreements and & noniinal amount was paid on such 

agreements. We are given to understand that the Karnataka State Govt, has given instructions ta procure copies of licence ‘Agreement of tol! 

collecting agencies in respect of roads passing through state of Karnataka. We have farther been issued a notice for recovery of shortfall in 

stamp duly. 

Various judicial pronouncements by various high courls have divergent views and the issue is debatable and there is no clarity on the same, 

The group is contesiing this imposition of deficit stamp duty on concession agreement notice with Government of Karnataka. We ar: also-in 

receipt of copies of letters sent by NHAL to the Karnalaka State Govt clartlying the issue. The group is in the process of (iting injuction with 

the Dharwad bench of Karnataka High Court. 

Note (b} Contingent Assets 

Stamp Duty on Concession agreement on Belgaum Kagal Project- In the evént of the stamp duty becoming payable, it shall be reimbursed by 

NHAI as confirmed by them vide letter No. NHAMP& AAO VIT/2021-22/CLFN_GST& SD R- 100870) dated 28.09.2021. Since no provision 

has been recognised in the books with respect lo stamp duty, the reimbursement has not been recognised as an assel considering the guidance 

in Ind AS 37, 

ec) Corporate Guarantees ; 

31" March 2024 Rs 437,700.00 Lakh 

31” Mareh 2023 Rs 3.50,000.00 Lakh 

The Project SPV company (NHIPPL) has issued Corporate Guarantees amounting to Rs, 2,000 Crore or secared abligations on 14.03.2022 

and s $77 Crore or secured obligations on 08.01.2024 in favour of Senior Lenders, Rs. 1.500 Crore or secured obligations on 21.10.2022 in 

favour of Debenture Trustee of the Trust for the benefit of NCD holder, 

The group during previous year has carried outa fair valuation of Corporate Guarntees referred above from an independent external valuer. 

Basis such valuatign feport und manngement estimate, fiir value of corporate guranice is estimated to be Nil. 

h. Capital Commitments as on 31.03.2024 
(AL amounts are in %-Jakh uniess othenvise stated) 

For the Year ended For the Year ended 

. March 31, 2024 Mareh. 31, 2023 

Particular 

The estimaled value of contracts to be executed and net provided for 49.698, 13 Nil 

Other Commitments 
Nil Nil 

Total 49,698.13 Nil 
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Statenient-of Related Parties 

A. List of Related Parties as per requirement of IND.AS 24— “Related Party Disclosures” 

ational Migiways 
Infra Projects Private 

Limited (‘'NHIPPL') 
(Subsidiary 

Enterprises where Control / significant influence exists “onany) 
NHIT Eastern 

Projects Private 

Limited (NEPPL'S 

(Subsidiary 

G. List of additidnal related parties as per Regulation 2¢1)(zy) of the SEB InviT Regulations 

Parties fo the Trust 

National Highways Infta Investment Managers Private Limited (NHI/MPL) -.Invesument Manager (IM) of the Trust 
IDI Trusiceship Services Linited (FTSL) - Trustee of the Trust 

National Highways Authority of India {NHA]} Sponsor 
National Flighwiiys InviT Projecl Managers Privaie Limited (NHIPMPL}- Project Manager 

Promoters of the Parties to the Trust specified abave 

Government of India (acting through Ministry of Road, Transport & [Hghways (MORTH) - Promoter of NHIIMPL 
IDB) Bank Limited (IDB Bank) - Promoter of [ITSL 

Government of India (acting through Ministry of Read, Transport & Highways (MORTH)) - Pronater of NHAI 
National Highways Authority of India (NHAD- Promoter of NHIPMPL 

Directors of the parties to the Trust specified ubave 

Directors of NHIIMPL 

Ms. Suresh Krishan Goyal 

Mr. Shiilendra Narain Roy 
Mr. Mahavir Prasad Sharma 
Mr. Pradeep Singh Kharala 

Mr NLR.Y.V.M.LR, Rajendra Kumar 
Mr. Sumit Bose . 
Mr. Broce Cane (Ceased to be Director wee. 07.11.2023) 

Mc. Ami Kumar Ghosh (Ceased to be Director weal 13.11.2023} 

Ms. Kavita Saha (Ceased to be Director weed? 08.11.2023) 

Mr, Pushkar Vijay Kulkarni (Appointed as Director w.e.f 08.11.2023) 

Mr. Debapratim Hajara (Appointed as Director w.e.f, 08.11.2023) 
Mr. Vinay Kumar (Appointed as Nominee Director we. 27.05.2024) 

Ms, Usha Monari (Appointed as Woman Independent Director win fl 16.04.2034) 

Directors of NHIPFI, 

Mr. Suresh Krishan Goyal 

Mr. Shailendra Narain Roy 

Mr. Mahavir Prasad Sharma 

Mr, Muralidhara Rao Bugatha 

Mr. N.R.Y.¥.MLK. Rajendra Kumar 

Directorsof NEPPL 

Mr. Suresh Krishan Goyal 

Mr. Mathew Géoree 

MroMahavir Prisad Sharma (Appsinied as Director wef, 15.04.2024) 
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Directors of ITSL 

Mr. Pradeep Kumar Jain 
Ms. Jayashree Vijay Ranade 

Mr. Pradeep Kumar Malhotra 

Ms. Baljinder Kaur Mandal 

Ms. Jayakumare Subramoniapiliai 

Directors of NEIPMPL 

Mr. Akhil Khare 

Mr. Ashish Kumar Singh 

C. Transactions with Related Parties 
(Armounts in % lakh) 

Veor ended 

Particulars Sist March 2024 

(Andited) fluetitedt} 

National Highways Infra Investment Managers Private Limited (NHIIMPL) 

Investment Manager Fee 1,800.00 FAQLI7 

Advance Investment Manager Fee Paid 4.93 86.06 

Expense Incurred by NHHIMPL on behalf of NHIT 13.35 39,79 

Expenses incurred on behalf of NEPPL by NHOMPL 25.00 - 

Other Support Services to NHIPPI 22.96 3,12 

Expenses incurred by NHIPPL for NHIMPE Behalf 0.64 - 

Reimbursement of Expenses - 0.07 

National Highways Authority of India (NHAD 

Issue of units of Trust Lo NHAL 1.09.08 1,07 21,366.83 

Literest and other income distribution 8,641.92 5,589.34 

Payment related to aquisition of intangible assets - 2.84.966.66 

O&M Expenses 96.03 1,152.32 

Double ioli fees 528,00 679,17 

Reimbursement for initial Improvement Works 3,146.59 - 

lndepeident enginecrs fecs 228.56 344,38 

IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited (TSL) 

Payment of Trustee Pee 9.60 12.73 

Other fees related to Round | & 2 Assets 1.30 3.54 

Other Fees relatedto Round 3 Assets ("Project Leap") 17.58 * 

IDBI Bank Limited 

Secured Loan given Lo NUNIT 10.000,00 - 

Interest Expense incurred on Loup given ta NHIT 4.38 - 

Repayment of Principal Amount 6,00 - 

Loan Processing Fees Paid to them 41.30 - 

National Highways In¥VIT Project Managers Private Limited (NHIPMPL) 

Project Manager Fees 1,168.20 991.20 

. Summary of Transactions with Key Managerial Personne] (RMP) 
fAmounts in € lak} 

Name of KMP and Nature of Transaction set ntanen 2024 sist alah 2023 

(lnetifed) (Audited) 

Mr. Suresh Krishan Goyal - Reimbursement of Expenses 0,79 0.39 

Mr. M.P. Sharma - Director's Sitting Fees 8.00 6.40 

Mr. Shailendra Narain Roy ~ Director's Sitting Fecs 8.00 6.40 

Mes, Ajanta Sen - Short Term Employment Benefits - 1.84 

Mr. Arun Kumar Jha - Short Term Eniployment Benetiis 69.35 * 

Mr. Arun Kumar Jha - Reimbursement of Expenses 3.31 - 

Mr. Bhanu Sharma (CS) = Short Terni Employmenit Benefits 7.49 3.91. 

Mr. Bhanu Sharma(CS) - Reimburscwient of Expenses 0.47 . 

Ms. Aashima & aay WesShort Term: Employment Benefits 6.28 

Ms. Aushima AgifWal (ONC jivbursement of Expenses 0,58 
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Additional disclosure as required by paragraph 6 of Annexure A to the SEBI Circular No. CLR/IMD/DF/127/2016 
3, Closing Balances with Related Parties 

(Amounis in = lakh) 

Particulars As at Mareh 31, 2024 As-at Mareh 31, 2023 

National Highways Authority of Indin (NITAH) 

Issue oP units of Trist to NH AI 

O&M Expenses payable- 

Double toll fees payable 
Independent Engiteers Fees payable 
Amount Payable for Initial Improvement Works 

National Highways Infra Investment Managers Private Limited (NHEEMPL) 

{Audited} fludtiedt}. 

Advance IM Fee 

IM Fee Payable 

Pavuble by NHIPPL for Other Support Services 

Expenses Payable 

Amount Payable by NEPPL, for expenses incurred on their behalf by NATIMPL 

IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited 

Trustee Fee Payable 

Other Fees related io Round 3 Assets ("Project Leap") 

{DBI Bank Limited 

Qutstanding Secured Loan Amount 

National Highways InVIT Project Managers Private Limited (NUIPMPL) 

Project Manager Fees Payable 

2,27,.003.91 

717,98 
10.19 

431.45 
829,65 

4.93 

16.65 

25.00 

1.73 

2.68 

9,999,909 

340.00 

L.17,922.83 

$80.35 
31.17 
276.03 

162.50 
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Saw Bee phn valve for MMR provisions is government bond rate of 30 years for projects acquired in-first phase and 20 years foy 
VS 

Sl 

The investor can view the result of the National Highway fnfra ‘Trust (Trust) on the Trust's website (hitps:/Avww.nhit.co.in) or on the websites of BSE 

(www. bseindia.com) or NSH (www. oscindia.com), 

The consolidated Financial results of National Highways Infra Trost (Trust) for dhe quarter, half year and yeur ended 31st March, 2024 have been 

reviewed by the Audit Committee of National Highways Inffa Investment Managers Private Limited (Investment Maixtger' of Trust) ov 27th May. 

2024 and thereafter approved by the Bourd of Direetors-of the fivestment Manager on 27th May, 2024, 

The Stanilory Auditors of Uh Frust have curried out the audit of Consolidated Finangial Results af Trust for the. quarter, half year and year ended 31st 
March 2024 and have {sued an wimodified audit report on these Consolidated- Financial Results, 

The. Consolidated Finaneial results comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at dist Match, 2024, Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and 
explanatory notes thereto of the National Highways Infta Trust (‘the Trust’) for the quarter, half year and year ended 31st March, 2024 (‘ihe 
Statement’). The Statement has been prepared in accordanée with the recognition and measurenient principies laid down in Indian Accounting 

Standards {Ind AS) and/or any addendum dicreto as défined in Rule 2 (1) (a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other 
accounting principles geucrally accepted in (udia. The Statement hus been prepared solely for submissions to be made by the Investment Munager 
with the Stock Exehdnges (both BSE and NSE) and as udklitional information for stakeholders of the Trust andtherefore it may not be suitable for 
another purpose, 

The Consolidated Financial Results incorporate the Financial Results of the Trust and its subsidiaries (Project SP¥~ NHIPPL, and NEPPL), ‘The 
Consolidated Finanwial Results combine the financial statements of the Trust and its subsidiaries ow a line-by-line basis by adding togedber the Like 
iiems of assets, liabilities, income. and expenses. All jaira-group assets. liabilities, income, expenses and unrealised prolits/losses Ob intra-group 
tuhsactions are chiminated en consolidation unless the transaction provides evidence of aia impairment of transferred asset. The carrying amount of 
the Group's investment in cach subsidiary und the Group's partion of cquily in cach subsidiary are offset wilh each other in the Consolidated Financial 

Results, 

National Highway Infra Trust (“Trast” or “[nvdT") is registered as an lerevocable Trust registered under the provisions of the Indian. Trusts Aci, 1882 
on !9ih October, 2020. 1 was registered under. the Seeurities and Exchange Board of India (infrastructure tiyestment Trust} Regulations, 2014 of, 
28th October, 2020 having registration number IN/InyIT/20-2 O01, 

The consolidated Financial results relating to half year ended Martel 31, 2024 are the bakincing figures between fle audited figures fi. respect of full 
fmancial ycar ended March 31, 2024 und published figures for half year ended September 30, 2023 which were subject to limited review, 
‘The consolidated finanejal results relating to quarler ended Marcel 31. 2034 are the balancing figures between the audited figures in respect of full 
fineneial year ended March 31, 2024 and published figures fot the period ended December 31, 2023 which were subject todimited review, 

The Group has outstanding secured non-convertible dehentures (NCLs} aniounting ta Rs. 1,500 crores for STREP A. STREP 8, and STRPPC which 

will mature from $th aoniversary to (3th anniversary, 13th atiniversary to 18th anniversary, [8th anniversary to 25th anniversary of allotment 
iespeelively, The NCDs are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) and National Stock Exchange (NSE). The security cover exeeeds (00% of Ube 
principal aad interest amount of NCD's as. al 31 March 2024. 

Nature of Security for Non Convertible debentures: 

The debenture holders are secured by : 

a} a first ranking pari passe Security Interest over the ‘Trust's immovable assets (if any), both present and future. ‘The ‘Trust dees not own any 
immovable property at the present time. In die event, the Trest sequires any inumovable propeny in fuinre, the Trust shall mortgage said property 
withiti 180 (one hundred eighty) days from ihe date of acquisition of sueh immovable assets, The Dehemure Troste shall be-authozised to do all acts. 

deeds, and cnler into nec dacunents, agreement, amncadiments and/or miodilicalians. as may be required to give effect the same, including 
carrying oul the due diligence as may be required by Bebeutuce Trustee: 

b)a first ranking pari passu Security Interest over the Hypothecated Assets (including Reevivables). both present and future: and 

¢) Negative Lien Undertaking 

d) corporate guarantee executed by the Project SPY (NHIPPL) in fivour of tie Debenture Trustee jor guaranteeing the due repayment of the secured 
vbligations in accordance. with the terms of the Debenture Trust Deed, 

The Board of Directors of the Invesimient Manager has declared distribation for Jannary 2624 of Rs, 0.631 permit which comprises of Rs, 0.606 per 

unit as interest and Rs. 0,025 per unit as other income on surplus funds al the Trust level in their meeting held on 4th March, 2024, Further, the Board 

of Directors of the Uavesiment Manager has declared distribution for February 2024 & March 2024 of Rs. 0.705 per unit which comprises of Rs. 

0.687 per unit as interest and Rs. 0,018 per wait as other income on surplus funds at the Trust tevel in their meeting held ow 27th May, 2024. 

The Board of Directors of Ihe Investaicnt Manager has declared distribution for Quarter 3 of FY 2023-24 of Rs. 1.697 per unit which comprises of 

Rs. 1.693 per unit as interest and Rs, 0.004 per unil as other incunte-on surplus funds at the Trust level in their meeting beld on 2nd Febriary, 2024, 
The Board of Dircetors of the Investment Manager hid declared distribution for Quarier 2 of FY 2023-24 of Rs. 1,816 per unit which comprises of 
Rs. 1.774 per unit as jaterest and Rs, 0.042 per unil as other income on surplus funds al-the Trust tevel in their mecting held on 8th November. 2023 
and the Beard af Directors of the Investment Manager had deckared distribution for Quarter | of FY 2023-24 of Rs. 1.754 per init whieh comprises of 
Rs. 1.742 perunil as interest and #5. 0.012 per unit as other income on surplus funds at the Trust level in their meeting held on 1 th Aupust, 2023, 

Provision for Majur Maintenanee 

The group has a contractial obligation to maintain the performance standards of the Project Highways in respect of riding quality and allied measures 

as per the performance parameters stipulated under the respective Concession Agreemenis. Cost of such obligation is measured at ihe best estimate of 

ihe expenditure required to settle the obligation at the balanee sheet date and recognised over the period at the end of which the overlay-is-estimated to 

be carried out using Discounted Cash Flows method with the discount rate taken as.the‘risk-free interest rate Le. the discdunting rat 

rpeers actiulte 

phase. The group‘has recognised finance cost on major maintenance provision for the year ended Mare 31, 2024 aij guilling. to Re 47 
: : * 

clakstaleine Ne PY Rs'24.95 lakhs). The provision for Major Maintenance Obligation as at Mareh 31, 2024 has beeii recognised in the: f 

05 Lakhs (P.¥. 630744. 
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12 Initial Improvement Works 

Ag per the concession agreement between NHIPPI. and NAL, the concessionaire is obligated to undertake initia improvement works as specified itt 

Schedule B including certain improvement works required initially and then to extend required repairs maintenance, regular upkeep of the Project 

Highway. These obligations will require outflow of economic resources and will he fulfilled over the period of time: Therefore, a provision shall be 

recognised dnd measured ag per Ind AS 37 for contracteal obligations toward the Fair Value of future upgrade services and correspandingly the group 

shall capitalize the present value of provision Sor upgrade services to the intangible usset at the time of acquisition. 

At the time of acquisition of SP¥*s there was uncertainty with respect to the cost estimates lor the initial inprovement werk to be dane and the group 

was ia-discussion with NHAT for de-scoping af certain work. Further, as per Ind ag 38, ait iningible asset can be recognised if, and only. if the cost of 

the agset can be measured relighly, 

Sinee the edst for initial impravenwial work wis not ascertainable until 1st Deo 2623 (under Ind AS 38) because of discussion around de-scoping of 

various works, na rcliable estimates could be made for the Fair Value of the said scope. This was farther substantiated with the technical note 

prepared by. the technical department basis their disc sion and mectings with NHAL and various vendors, Considering that the management has now 

ascertained the costs based on cantencts awarded and dhe sien aff received fromi the PMC, (estimated as required under fied AS 38) has now, based an 

discussions wilh its technical consultants, capitalised the initial improvement works amounting ta Rs. 1,29,227.32 Lakhs (Undiscounted Value} on 

ist Deo 2723, 

Further the group fas also recognised provision for inilial improvement works as per Ind AS 37 amounting to Rs. 1.1 1.993.43 Lakis (Present Value) 

an Ist. December 2023 with corresponding impiel in Siatement of Profit and Loss amounting to Rs. 1124.63 Lakhs and Rs. 2396.83 Lakhs on account 

of amortization of initial improvement work and unwinding of interest on provision-of initial improvement respectively. 

Actual initial improvernent work done up to March 2f24 is Rs. 1-4.346.87 Lakhs, 

hee
 

The Frust has invested the amount of Rs. 240,610 Lakh in the equity share capital of the MHF Easier Projects Private Limited (Prajeet SPV's = I} 

during the year, NEPPE acquired rights for Tolling, Management and Maintenance of the seven toll roads under tho concession agreement signed with 
NHAL for consideration of INR. 15.69.988. 18 Lukhs . Appointed date for the project-is wef 01.04.2024, 

In current year the Trust offered an issue of 58,37.95.400 units of National Highways $ifta Trust NIT"), for cash at a price of 124.14 per anit the 
“issue price”). ugerepating ta‘ Rs 7,.27.206.41 lakh through Institutional and preferential placement in accordance with the Securities and Exchmge 
BoanLol india (inftastructare livestment Trust} Regulations, 20 |4 inghding the ruigs, circulars and guidelines issued thereunder, 

15 As per Ind AS 36 Smpairment of assets’, based on management review on expected future cash ows and eeonamie conditions of the assets af the 
Trust, Ko indicators af impairment aC assets exist as on the reporting date, Henee no provision for impairment has been recognized in the hooks on the. 
repotling date. 

a The Group has not created deferred tax asséls on major niaintenanee obligations, as carried forward usiness losses will not be available for utilisation 
within the time lintit atawable as per the Income Tax Act based on the future projections of the profitability of the untity. 

“sl
 

During the year ended 31st March 2024, ihe Ciroup has taker a further disbursenaent of amounting to Rs, 163 Crores from the Axis Bank Limited-and 
Rs. 26 Crores from the Bank of Maharashtra in accordance with Facility agzcement. The ‘Trust hiss given the above said umount ta Project SP¥ 
NEHIPPL as Loan at the rate of (2.70% p.a. Tor intial improvement works. 

* During the year ended 31st March 2024, the Group hag obtained the sanction of Rs, 877 Crores from the Axis bank for initial improvement works af 
Round 2 Assets. Further Groop-has obtained sanction of Rs. 9000 Crores (rom Banks and Finangial Instivition for aequistion, of Round 3 Assets and 
has taken 4 disbursement of Rs. 8.658 Crore ducing the year , the ‘rust has given the snidt amount to Project SPV NEPPL ag Lean at the mate of 
12.70% pua. Jor acquislion of Round 3 Assets. 

19 All values are rounded to neaeest kh, ualess otherwise indicated, Certain amoums that are required to be disclosed and do-nel appear due to rounding 
Tare expressed as G06, 

at = Previous period/year figures Rave been rectassified/regrouped wherever necessary to confinn to current period elassificution. 

For and an behalf af the National Tighways lefra Investment Managers Private Limited (livestiment Alanager 

oF National Lighways Intra, 
+ 

7 | Fee dur 
bie Mathew Geurrpe . 

Compliance Officer Clie Finuneial Officer, Director 
DIN: (2721580 

Place: New Delhi 
Date? 27th May, 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Unit Holders of National Highways Infra Trust 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

OPINION 

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of National 

Highways Infra Trust (“the InviT” or “the Trust”), which comprise the Balance 

Sheet as at 31 March 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 

Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Unitholder’s Equity and the 

Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, the Statement of Net Assets at 

fair value as at 31 March 2024, the Statement of Total Returns at fair value and the 

Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows (“NDCFs”) for the year then ended and 

notes to the standalone financial statements including a summary of material 

accounting policy and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as 

“the standalone financial statements”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 

explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the 

information required by the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to 

time including any guidelines and circulars issued thereunder (together referred 

to as the “SEBI InvIT Regulations”) in the manner so required and give a true and 

fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards as defined in rule 

2(1}(a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015, as amended 

(“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the 

extent not inconsistent with SEBI InvIT Regulations, of the state of affairs of the 

Trust as at 31 March 2024, its profit including. other comprehensive income, its 
cash flows, its statement of changes in Unitholder's equity for the year ended 31 

March 2024, its net assets at fair value as at 31 March 2024, its total returns at fair 

value and the net distributable cash flows of the Trust for the year ended 31 

March 2024. . 



BASIS FOR OPINION 

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with 
the Standards of Auditing (“SAs") issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further 
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Trust in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to 
our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the SEBI 
InvIT Regulations, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the 
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion on the standalone financial statements. 

KEY AUDIT MATTERS 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of 
most significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements for the 
financial year ended 31 March 2024. These matters were addressed in the context 
of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We 
have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be 
communicated in our report. 

1. ) Assessment of Impairment of Investment | Our Audit Procedures 
made in and Loans given to the subsidiary | included the following :- 
company, National Highways Infra 
Projects Private Limited (“NHIPPL”) » Assessed the 

appropriateness of the 
As at March 31, 2024, the carrying amount of future cash flows 
Equity Investment by the Trust in NHIPPL estimated including value 
amounted to Rs. 139,553.52 Lakhs. Further, in use determined. In 
the Trust has granted loan to NHIPPL till making this assessment, 
date amounting to Rs. 90,95,06.66 Lakhs. we also evaluated the 

objectivity, independence 
in aceordance with its accounting policy and and competency of 
requirements under Ind AS, the management specialists involved in the 
has performed an impairment assessment by pracess; 
comparing the carrying value of these 
investments made/ loans given to NHIPPL to | » Assessed the assumptions 
their recoverable amount. around the key drivers of 

the révenue projections, 
For impairment testing, value in use has future cash flow, discount 
been determined by forecasting and rates / weighted average 
discounting future cash flows of subsidiary cost of capital that were 
company. Further, the value in use is highly 
sensitive to changes in critical variable used 
for forecasting the future cash flows 



including traffic projections for revenues and 
discounting rates. The recoverable amount is 
the higher of {a) fair value less cost to sell (b} 
value in use. The determination of the 
recoverable amount from subsidiary 
company involves management estimates 
and judgment which may affect the outcome. 

So, there is an inherent risk in the valuation 
of investment/ recoverability of loans, due to 
the use of estimates and judgements 
mentioned above. 

Accordingly, the assessment. of impairment 
of investment/loans in subsidiary company 
has been determined as a key audit matter. 

Refer Note-2.1 (m) for the accounting policy 
an Impairment of Investments & Note 31 
relating to Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 36 
“Impairment of Assets” in Standalone 
Financials as at 31 March 2024. Also Refer 
Note 2.1 (m) for the Accounting policy on 
Financial asset relating to Expected Credit 
Loss on Financial Assets for impairment of 
lean receivables in the Standalone Financials 
as at 31 March 2024, 

NHIPPL, we have obtained 

and considered 

Management evaluations 

of recoverability of loans 

granted td NHIPPL. 

- Tested the arithmetical 
accuracy of Impairment 

Sheet. 

Obtained Management 

Representation in this 

respect. 

Computation and disclosures as 
prescribed in the SEBI InvIT regulations 
relating to Statement of Net Assets at Fair 
Value and Total Returns at Fair Value 

As per SEBI InvIT regulations, the Trust is 
required to disclose statement of net assets 
at fair vaiue and statement of total returns at 
fair value. The fair value is determined by 
forecasting and discounting future cash 
flows from the operations of the investee 
entities which involves management 
estimates and judgement. These estimates 
and judgements include discounting rates, 
Tax rates and inflation rates which are 
considered for computing the fair value. 

There is an inherent risk in the computation 
of fair value due to the use of estimates and 
judgements mentioned above. 

Therefore, computation and disclosures of 
Statement of net assets at fair vdlue and 
statement of total returns at fair value is 
considered.as a Key Audit Matter. 

Refer Note-2.1(m) Significant Accounting 

Our 

included the following :- 

Audit Procedures 

Obtained the 

understanding of the 

requirements. of SEBI 

InvIT regulations for 

disclosures relating to 
Statement of Net Assets at 

Fair Value and Statement 

of Total Returns at Fair 

Value. 

Assessed the Valuation 

Réport issued by the 

Independent. Valuer 

engaged by the 

management. Alsa 

assessed the 

appropriateness of the 

Trust's valuation 
methodology applied in 

determining t 

values. 
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Assumptions - Fair Valuation ‘and 
Disclosures and Statement of net assets at 
fair value and Statement of total returns at 
fair value in the standalone financial 
statements. 

e Obtained Management 

Representation in this 

respect. : 

* Tested the arithmetical 

accuracy of computation 

in the statement of net 

assets and total returns at 

fair value. 

« Ensured that disclosures 

is in compHance with 

SEB] InvIT reépulations 

relating to the statement 

of net assets at fair value 

and the-statement of total 
returns at fair value. 

Related Party Transactions and 

Disclosures 

The Trust has undertaken transactions with 

its related parties in the normal course of 

business. These include making loans to 

Project SPV; earning interest on such loans, 

fees for services provided by related parties 

ta Trust etc. as disclosed in Note 34 of the 

Standalone Financial Statements. 

Considering the importance of accuracy and 
completeness of related party transactions 

and its disclosures in the aforesaid 

standalone financial statements, we have 

considered this as a key audit matter. 

Our Audit Procedures 

included the following :- 

* Obtained the 

understanding of policies, 

processes and procedures 

in respect of identifying 

related parties, necessary 

approvals, recording and 

disclosure of related party 

transactions, including 

compliance of 

transactions and 

disclosures in accordance 

with InVIT regulations. 

e Tested the related party 

transactions with the 

underlying contracts and 

other supporting 

documents for 

appropriate authorization 

and approval for such 

transactions. 

* Reviewed the minutes of 

governing body of Trust in 

connection with 

transactions to assess 

authorization by the 

Board and whether the 
transactions are in, the 

ordinary — coyr’Se. & CB 

ti 
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business at arm’s length 

and in accordance with 

the SEBI InvIT 

regulations. 

* Obtained Management 

Representation in this 

respect. 

e Ensured that the 

disclosures made in. 

accordance with the 

requirements of Ind AS 

and SEBI InviIT 

regulations. 

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AND AUDITOR'S REPORT THEREON 

The Board of Directors of Investment Manager is responsible for the other 
information. The other information comprises the information included in the 
Management Discussion and Analysis Report, Investment Manager’s Report 
including annexures to Investment Manager’s Report and other information as 
required to be given by SEBI InvIT Regulations, but does not include the 

standalone financial statements and our report thereon. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other 
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our 
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether 
the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit er 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed. on the other information that we 
obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a 
material misstatement of this other inforniation, we are required to report that 
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF INVESTMENT 
MANAGER FOR THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Board of Directors of Investment Manager is responsible for the preparation 
of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position as at 31 March 2024, financial performance including other 
comprehensive income, cash flows and the movement of the Unitholder's equity 
for the year ended 31 March 2024, the net assets at fair value as at 31 Mareh 2024, 
the total returns at fair value and the net distributable-cash flaws of the Trust for 
the year ended 31 March 2024, in accordance with thé requirements of the SEBI 
InvIT Regulations, Indian Accounting Standards ‘as defined in Rule 2(1}{4 

i New Delhi] 2 

j 
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accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent. not.inconsistent 

with SEBI InvIT Regulations. This responsibility also inchides maintenance of 

adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the SEBI InvIT 

Regulations for. safeguarding of the assets of the Trust and for preventing and 

detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 

accounting policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and 

prudent; and. design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 

financial controls for ensuring the accuracy and cempleteness of accounting 

records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial 

statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud and error. 

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors is 

responsible for assessing the Trust's ability to continue as a going concern, 

disclosing, as applicable, matters related ta going concern and using the going 

concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors of Investment Manager 

either intends to liquidate the Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic 

alternative butto do sa. 

The Board of Directors of Investment Manager are also responsible for overseeing 

the Trust’s financial reporting process. 

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF THE STANDALONE 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance whether the standalone 

financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due 

to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 

audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 

expected te influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 

standalone financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone 

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform 

audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that 

is. sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of 

not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than 

for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 

control. 

© Obtainan understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to 

design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, b 

for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of t 

intetnal controls. 



* Evaluate the appropriaténess of accounting policies used and the 

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by 

the Board of Directors of the investment Manager. 

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors of Investment 

Manager’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 

audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 

events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Trust’s ability to 

continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty 

exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditer’s report to the 

related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 

inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 

evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future 

events or conditions may cause the Trust to cease to continue as a going 

concern. 

*® Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and centent of the standalone 

financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone 

financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events ina 

manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial 

statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic 

decisions. of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be 

influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) 

planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; 

and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial 

statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings 

that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have 

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 

communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably 

be thought ta bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we 

determine. those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the 

standalone financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March, 2024 and 

are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our report 

unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or- when, in 

extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 

communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing:so would 

reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 

communication. 



REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 

Based on our audit and as required by SEBI InviT Regulations, we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to 

the. best of cur knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our 

audit; 

b) The Standalone. Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement, of Profit and Loss 

including Other Comprehensive Income, the Standalone Statement of Cash 

Flows, Statement of Changes in Unitholder’s Equity, the Statement of Net 

Assets at fair value, the Statement of Total Returns at fair value.and the 

Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in 

agreement with the books of account of the Trust; 

c] In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian 

Accounting Standards as defined in Rule 2(1)(a}) of Companies (Indian 

Accounting Standards) Rules, .2015, as amended, to the extent not inconsistent 

‘with SEBI InviT regulations. 

d) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 

Protection and Education Fund by the Fund. 

For A. RB. & Co. 
Chartered Accounta 

FRN. 002744C 

Partner 

Membership No: 0511623 

UDIN: 245 $23 @uCSS FASS 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 27-05-2024



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 

SEBI Registration Number :- IN/InvIT/20-21/0014 

STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET-AS AT MARCH 31, 2024 

fad anrataits cre ia? hak unfess atheriv ise stated? 

Particulars Noies Asat As at 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Agsed§ 

1} Non - Current Assets 

(a) Financial Assets 

(i) Investments 3 3,80,163 $2 1,39,553,52 

(ii) Loans. 4 22,40,043.05 8,90,606.06 

{iti} Oiher Financial Assets 5 [0,174.48 9.670:84 

(b) Other Non-Current Assets 6 95.43 : 

Potak pon current assets 26,30,476.48 10,39,831.02 

2) Current Assets 

(a) Financial Assets : 

(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 7 30,718.41 14,086.38 

Gi) Other Finaneial Assets 8 87,534.15 46,692.16 

(b) Current Tax Assets (Net) 9 7.04 - 
(¢) Other Current Assets 1g 693.14 1,119.47 

Total current assets 1,18,952.74 61,892.01 

Total Assets 27,49,429,22 11,01 723.03 

Equity and Linbilities 

Equity 

3} Unit Capital It 14,67,.003 46 FAT, 604,32 

2) Initial Seulement Amount 0,10 0.10 

3) Other Equity 12 1.02, 700.63 60,432.04 

Total Equity 15,69,854.19 8,02 A376 

Liabilities 

1) Nou-Current Liabilities 

{a) Financial Liabitities 
(9 Borrowings 13 $1,63,394,94 2,92,158.33 

“Fatal Non-Current Liahilities 11,63,594.94 2,92,159,33 

2) Current Liabilities 

fa) Financial Liabilities t 
(i) Borrowings 14 10,054, 00 2,000.00 

(ii} Trade Payables 15 

(a) Total Outstanding, dues of micro and small enterprises 36.17 3.88 

(b) Total outstanding. dues of creditors other than micro und 713.58 342.60 

small enterprises 
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 1 §. 163.05 5,129.59 

{by Current ‘Tax Liabilitios {Net} 17 - 8.98 

(ce) Ober Current Liabilities 18 19d 29 42.50 

Total Current Liubilities 16,1809 7,527.64 

Total Equity and Liabititics 27,49 ,429.22 ¥1,03,723,.63 

Material Aecauriting Pulicies j-2 

‘The accompanying netes form an integral part of these financial 3-47 

statements 

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date, 
For AR. & Co, For and on behalf of Board of Directors of the National 

Highways Infra Investaient Managers Private Limited 

(Acting as Investment: Manager of National Highways 

{afra Trust) 

Chartered Accountants 

Fir Registration No, 0G224 

WEka_o 
e 

CA Mohd. Azsot / Sures i n’Geyal Moahavir-Parsad Sharma 

Pariner Director Director 
M.No. 511623 DIN: 02721580 DIN? 03158413 

o “ Koll 
Dale : 27th May 2024 Mathew Gearge 

Place : New Dolhi Chief Financial Officer 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 

SEBI Registration Number :- UN/LavTT/20-21/0014 

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND. LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 

fH amenity are i € lok wnless witarnnee stated 

Particulars 
Notes For the year ended For the year ended 

Mareh 31, 22+ . Mareh 31, 2423 

Income.and Gains 

Interest income on foun given to gubsidiarics 
i9 1.35,103,51 94,698.30 

Interest Inconie on fixed deposits 
20 7RG.74 352.28 

Profit on sile of invesiments 
21 840,99 423.20 

Other income 
22 421 316.59 

Tutal Income 
124,735.45 95,789.37 

Expenses 

Investment Manager Fees 
1,800.00 1,263.70 

‘Trustee Fees 
9.60 0.50 

Valuation expenses 
11.07 4.00 

Annual fisting Tees 
53.80 20.00 

Rating ees 
73 8.20 

Audit Foes 

~ Statutory audit Fees 
23 5.78 3,90 

- Other-audil services (including certification) 
23 72 {LBS 

Custodian Fees 
3.15 0.84 

Finance Cost 
24 25,139,658 16,590.17 

Other Experises 
35 188.64 190.16 

Total Expenses: 
27,2721,14 18,082.45 

Profit before Tax 
07 AEST THT G2 

‘Tax Expenses 
26 

Current Tax 
o97,56 ATTBD 

Current las - earlier years 
(2.52) 1.01 

Delerred Tax oxpensederedit} 
- 3.16) 

Total Tax 
695.04 A774 

Profit atter “Tax 
96,819.27 FTIAT 

Other Comprehensive Incame : 

A (i} Items that will not be reclassified to Profit ar Loss 
. “ 

Li) Income tax relating to [lems thal will nol be reclassified ta prolii or loss 
” . 

B i} Henig that wil hae reclassified to Profit or Loss 
- - 

(i) Income tax relating to items that will wot be reelassilied Lo profil or loss 
* : 

‘Total Comprehensive Income for the year 
96,819.27 T123617 

Earnings per Unit 

Basic 
37 12.85 11.76 

CHluted 
27 12,85 1i.76 

Material Accounting Policies 1-2 

The accompanying potes form an integral part of these financial statements, 3-47 

This is the Statement of Profil and Loss referred to in our report of even dite, 

For AVR. & Co. 
Kor and on bebalf of Board of Directors of the National 

Chartered Accountants 
Highways Intra loyestment Managers Private Limited {Acting 

Firm Repistration No. DUZFI YE 
as Lavestment Manager of National Highways Infra Trust) 

Wizios 

CA Mohd. Azam Ansari 
Tishan Gayal Mahavir Prasad Sharma 

Partner 

Director 

M.No. 511623 
DIN: 02721580 DIN: 03158413 

Till 
Date : 27th May 2024 

Mathew George 

Place » New Delhi 
Chief Financial Officer 



NATIONAL FIGHWAYS IN FRA TRUST 

SEBI Registration Number ::- IN/InvYE/20-21/0014 

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 

aH consonants cape tea fatkhe andes otherwise spttect} 

Particulars 
For the Fear ended 

Adareh 31,2024 

For tiie year ended 

Mareb 31, 2023 

Net Profit ]:oss} Before Tax 
97,514.31 77, 706.92- 

‘Adjustments: 

Finance Cosi (net) 
25,015.90 16,590.17 

Interest income on Bank FOR 
(786.74) 

(352.28) 

Interest Income-on Lang Term Lean given ta SPVs' 
(.23, 103.513 (94,698.30) 

Profit on redemption of Mutual Funds 
(840,99) {422.20)] - 

Operating cash flows before Working Capital Changes 
{2,201.03} (4,178.71) 

Movements ia Working Capilal 

Deerense / (Inerense) da Other Non Current Financial Assets 
£0.90) (li) 

Decrease / {increase} ip Other Current Financial Assets 
(292,14) (790,62) 

Decrease f (Increase) in Other Current’ Now-Current Assets 
579.16 (834.96) 

lnercase / (Decrease) in Trade & Other Payables 
12.43) 393.13 

Increase / (Decrease) in Other Financial Liabilities 
- (0,00) 

Inerease / (Decrease) in-Other C urrent Liabilitics 
154,70 (7-H 

Inerease / (Deerease} in Current Tas Liabilities 
- - 

Cash used in operating netivities 
(2,075,453) 

(1,980.87) 

Incame Tax paid 
(TI10G) 

(626.07) 

Net Cash Flows framéused in) operating activities -A 
(2,786.51) 

(2,607.54) 

B. Cash flows trom investing activities 

Long Tenn Loans piven 
(13,49,436.40)) (2,84.966.66) 

Purchase af Non Curretit Investments 
(2.40,610,00) 

- 

Invesiment in FOR 
(447.00) {6,299.18} 

Profit on redemption af Mutual Funds 
840.99 72.20 

Interest reecived on Long Term Loan given 
$2,549.94 58,46! (0 

Interest Received from Bank 
734,93 168.40 

Net Cash Flows used in investing activities - B 
(45,06,367,74) (2,32,014.24} 

C. Cash fleas Crom fingneing wetivities 

Proceeds from Issuv of unit capital 
7.27, 206-41 

b43.015,67 

Expense incurred towards initial public debl offering 
- (1.68900) 

Expense Incurred lowards insLitutional unit alleliment 
(147146) (1,099.17) 

Processing Fee paid 
(1482.14) (197.00) 

Proceeds from Long etm Barrowings 
8,84, 700.00 1,50.000.00) 

Distribution paid to anil holders 
(54.49 1.29} (34,927.40) 

Repaymeet of Long Term Borrowings 
(3,759.73) 110,98) 

Finanee Costs Paid 
(24,909.51) (11,180.86) 

Net Cash Flows from/(Used in) financing, activities -C 
15,25, 792.27 242,908.84 | 

Net Increase/Deerease in Cash and Cash equivalents (ATB+C) 
16,638.03 8,287.05 

Cash and Cash Equivalents al the Begiiaing, of the Year 
14,080.38 §,794.33 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end-of the Year (Refer Note 7) 30,718.41 14,030.38 

Gash flows [rom operating netivities 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
SEBI Registration Number :- IN/InvIT/20-21/0014 

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 

(AH onroumiis are. iit 2 fokh uiatess. tathrerriisa steatved) 

Reconcilittion of liabilities arising Sram Financing Activities pnrsuant to Ind AS 7- Statement of Cash Flows, 

Nel Debt Recognition ‘ (All abiounts ‘are in % lakh unless othcnvise stated) 

Particalars For the year ended Far thie year ended 
March 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023 

a} Carrying amount of debt at the beginsitng of the year 2,94, 158.43 146,537.80 

b) Additional borrowings during lhe year $.84,700,00 1,40-000.06 

¢) Repayments dating, the year (3,759.73) (ELQHO8) 

u) Other adj usiments/sellemens during the year . - 

ic} Transaction Cost adjustment (1.649.66) (1,368,495 

) Carrying amount of debt ihe end of te year 11,73, 448.94 2,94, 158,33 

Note: 

fi) The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the indirect method asset out.in "Ind AS 7 Statement af Cash Flows". 

(ii) Amount in bracket represent outflows. 
This is the Cash Fiow Statement telerrcd to.in aur report af even date. 

For AR & Co 
Chartered Accountant: 

For aud an behall of Board of Birectors of the National 

Highways Infra Investment Managers Private Limited 

(Acting as fnvestiment Manager of National Highways Intra 

gt [fore 
CA Mohd. Azam Ansari” Crishan Goyal Mahavir ?arsad Sharon 

Pariner Direelor Director 

M.No. 517623 DIN: 02721580 DIN: 03 158413 

Fil fas 
Thate 2 27th May 2024 Mathew George [punt han 

Place > New Beliti Chief Financial Officer Compliance Ofiicer 



A. Dnitia! Settlement Aciount 

NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
SEBI Registration Number :- IN/InvIT/20-21/0014 

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN UNIT HOLDERS EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 

MARCH 31, 2024 

(lf quicnants cre tet lakh witess uiherwise stored} 

Particolars 
Amount 

Balance as at April 1, 2022 
alg 

Changes in unit capital 
- 

Balance as ai March 31, 2023 
0.10 

Changes in unil capital 
- 

Rahince as at March 31, 2024 
0.10 

B, Unit Capital* 
(lH amaniits ce iu 7 tek ir ates athersine Suaterd 

Particulars 
Nuntber of unit Amount 

Balance ag at April 1, 2022 
55,52,00,000 5,90,441.82 

Changes in unil capital 13.42,05,200 143,013.07 

One time issue expenses 
* (852.17) 

Bilanée ag at March 34, 2023 
72,6-4,05,200 741,604.32 

Changes in unit capital 
58,57,95,400 7.27.206.41 

One lime isswe expenses 
- CA1L2D 

Balunce as at March #1, 2024 
1 ,31,22,00,600 14,67,093,46 

Issue expenses of Rs. 1,717.26 fakhs (Maceh 31, 

capital in accordance with ind AS 32 Financial instruments: Preseataliog’ 

¢. Other Equity** 

2023: Rs $32.47 lakhs} incurred in connection with issue of unils have bees reduced from the Unitholders 

(AlL amounts are in 2 lakh anless altienpise stated} 

Particalars 

Reserves and Surplus 

tems of Other 

Comprehensive Income 

Hens that will not be 

yeclassified te profit or loss 

Relained Earnings 
Remeasurement of Defined 

Benefit Obligation’ Plag 

Total 

Balance as at April 1, 2022 19,124.33 - 18,124.33 

Profit for the your TLIBG.N7 - TI2IGAT 

Less: 
- 

Distribution to unit holders 
. 

Return ov capital - - “ 

interest 34,183.66 - 34,183.66 

Olher incame 
74420 - 744.20 

Balance as af March Ff, 2023 60,432.64 - 60,432.64 

Prolit for ihe year $6,819.27 “ 96,819.27 

Less: 

Distribution to unit halders* 

Inierest 
53,701.68 - SL701 68 

Other Income 789,60 “ 789,60 

Balance as al March 31, 2024 1,02,760.63 - £,02,760.63 

“The distribulion relates to the disiributions during the finanetal year aleng WI 

he distribution relating (o the period February G1, 2024 La March 31, 2024 which will be paid 

holders are based an the Net Disuibutabl: Cash Flows of the Trust 

* Refer Note 1! 

+* Refer Note 12 

For AVR. & Co. 

Chartered Accountant 

Firm Registration Ng 

CA Mohd. Azam Ansari 

Pariner 

M.No. 511623 

Bate : 27h May 2024 

Place : New Delhi 

with the Uistribudion related to the last quarter of FY 2022-23 and docs not include 

alter March 31. 2024. ‘The distributions by the Trust to is unit 

under dhe SEB! inviT Regulations. 

Fer and on behalf of Board of Directors of the National Highways 

Infra Enyestment Managers Private Limited (Acting as Inyesimeat 

Manager of National Highways Infra Trust) 

mresh itr 

Director 

DOIN: 02721580 

han Gayal 

Mathew George. 

Chief Financial Olficer 

{Wako 
Mahavir Parsad Sharma 

Director 

DIN: 03158413 

ono 

Gunj; “4d, 

Compliance Olficer 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
SEBE Registration Number :~ FN/InyIT/20-21/0014 

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

Disclosures pursuant to SEBI circulars (SEBI Master Circular No. CIRSEBVHO/DDHS_Div3/P/CIR/2021/1673 

dated 29 November 2021 issued under the:JovIT regulations) 

Standalone Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value {All aniounts are i % lakh unless otherwise stated) 

As at March 31, 2024 As.at March 31, 2023 

Partiodlars ; Book value Fair value* Book value Fair value* 

A. Assets 27,49,429,23 28.25,799.68 11,01.723,03 11.57,786.51 

B: Liabilities (at book value) 1.1,79.575.03 11,79,375.03 2,99,685,97 299,685.97 

C. Net assets (A-B} 15,69,854.19 16,460,225 $02,037.06 8,58,100,54 

D, No of units 1,31,32,00,600 1,31,27,00,600 72,64,05.200,00 72.,64,05,200.00 

BE. NAY (C/D) 149.64 125.46 110.41 118.43 

“Fair values of tatul assets relating to the Trust as at March 31, 2024 & March 31. 2023 as disclosed above are based on the independent valuer report, 

Standalone Statement of Total Return at Fair Value: (All enunis gre in & kiki usfess ctletwise stated) 

Particulars . As at As at 

March 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023 

‘Total camprehensive in¢ome for the year (As per the Standalone Statement of Profit and Lass) 96,819.27 77,236.17 

Add: Other changes in fair value.for the year * 76,370.46 56,063.48 

Total reture 1,73,189.73 1;33,299.66 

* In the above statement, olher changes in fair value for the period ended March 34, 2024 ond Mareh 31, 23 have been computed based on the independent 

yaluer report. 

The accompanying notes form an integral pact of the Standalone Financial Statements. 

This is the Standalone Statement of Net Assets at Fair Value and Standalone Statement of Total Return at Fair Value referred to in aur reporl of even date. 

Fer AR. & Co. For'and on bebalf of Board of Directors-of the Nation Highways Infra 

Chartered Accountants Investment Managers Private Limited (Acting as lavestment Mitnager af 

Firm Registration No. 002744C National Highways Infra Trust) 

hk 

CA Mahd. Azani! Ansayi Sopfesh Kristin Goyal Mahavir Parsad Sharma 

Partner ° Director Director 

M.No. 311623 DEN: 12721580 EIN: 03158413 

Date : 27th May 208 
Place : New Delhi 

ty 

Mathew George Gu ideoes ff 
Chief Finaneial Oficer Compliance Offteer 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS [INFRA TRUST 

SEBI Registration Nuimber :- IN/InvIT/20-21/0044 

‘Disclosurés pursuant fo SEBI circulars (SEBI Master Circular No. 

CIRSEBVHO/DDUS,_Div3/P/CIR/2021/1673 dated 29th November, 2021] isstied under the InvIT regulations) 

Statement of Net Dishibutable- Cash Flows (NDCK) 
(Ai amounts fo 2 Jakes olbenvise stated) 

8. Particulars For the year ended 31 st] For the year-ended 31st 

Na. : March 2024 Mare 2023 

1 [Protit atter tex as per Sistéement of profit and lossfincame and expenditure (Standatene) 96,819.27 TARGET 

{A} 
T Tadd: Depreciation ‘and amortization as per statement of profit and Jess account, Incase 9 - 

{wpairment reversal, game needs. to be deducted from_profit and loss. : 

3 |Add/Less: Loss/gain onsale of infrastructure assets : 

4 |Add: Proceeds from sale of iilrastrecture-assets adjusted for the following: - 

related! debis settled ar due to be settled from sale proceeds; 

directly atitibutable transaction. costs, 

proceeds reinvested or planned to be reinvesicd as pce Regulation 18(7ita} af the Tov) 

reputations 

aT
 Add: Proceeds froni sale of inttastructire assets mot distributed purstant to an earlier plin 19 re- - 

invesi, if such proceeds are not intended to be invested subsequently, net of any profit! (Joss) 

recognised in profit and loss accennt 

6 |Add/ Less: Any other ifem of non- cash expense/ nom cush ingome (net of actual cash Mows for! (82,058.04) (45,002.00) 

these items}, il’ deemed necessary hy the Investment Manager. 

For example, any decrease? inérease in carrying amoubt oF an assel or a Tability recopnised in 

profit and loss fincome and expeadilure.on measurement of the asset-or the ffability at fair value; 

Interest cost as per effective interest rate method, deferred tax lease rents recognised on a 

struight line basis, ete. 

7 [Less: Repayment of external debt (priicipal) / redecmable preleronce shares / debuntures, ete. (4.206.735) (1.010.987 

(excluding, refiuaneing) / nel cash set aside to comply with DSRA requirement wider foan 

agreements, 

8 [Total Adjusteient (B) (86,264.77) (46,017.98) 

9 [Net Surplus (C)= (AtB) (NDCF) 10,534.51 31,223.19 

10 |Add: income recognised in previous vear and récciyed in this year 46.688.53 10,631.13 

11 |Less :- Interest expenses recognised in previous your and paid inthis year (5,129.59), - 

12 |Distibutable Cash Flow 52,113.55 41,874,532 

13 (Less: Amount already distributed to Unitholders (for the period from April 23 to Jan 24)(P¥ for 42,843.37 225.78 

the periad (rom April 22 to December 2233 

1d Halance Net Distributable Cash Flows for the venr ended Marel 31, 2024 9,269.98 H648.54 
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a) 

NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 

Notes To Standalone Financial Statements for the year ¢nded- March 31, 2024 

TRUST INFORMATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS 

National Highways Infra Trust (“Trust” or “InvET™) js an irrevocable trust registered under the 
provisions of the Indian Trusts Act, 1882-on October 19, 2020. It is registered under the Securities 
and Exchangé Board of India (Infrastructure Investment Trust) Regulations, 2014 on October 28, 
2020 having registration number IN/InvIT/20-21/0014. 

The Trust was setup by National Highways Authority of India (“NHAI" or the “Sponsor™). The 
Trustee to the Trust is IDBI Trusteeship Setvices Limited (the “Trustee”) and Investment Manager 
for the Trust is National Highways Infra Investment Managers Private Limited (“Investment 
Manager”). 

The Trust has been formed to invest in infrastructure assets primarily being in the road sector in 
India. The Trust's road projects are implemented and held through special purpose vehicles 
(“Project SPVs"/ “Subsidiaries”), The units of the Trust were listed in Bombay Stock Exchange 
and National Stock Exchange on November 10, 2021, 

During FY 21.22, the Trust acquired 100% equity control in National Highway Infra Projects 
Private Limited (the “Project SPV”) from the Sponsor with effect from November 03, 2021. The 
Project SPV (NHIPPL) has entered into five concession agreements with National Highway 
Authority of India (“NHAI”) on March 30, 2021 for Tolling, Management, Maintenance and 
Transfer of five.toll road projects for a period of 30 years from the Appointed Date. The Appointed 
Date has commenced on 16.12.2021, 

In previous financial year, Project SPV (NHIPPL) entered into three new concession agreements 
with National Highway Authority of India (“NHAI’) on September 26, 2022 for Tolling, 
Management, Maintenance and Transfer of three toll road projects for a period of 20 years from 
the Appointed Date: The Appointed Date has commenced on 29.10.2022. 

During Current financial year, the Trust has invested in the equity share capital of the NHIT 
Eastérn Projects Private Limited (Project SPV - NEPPL) & holding 100% equity share capital. 

The Project SPV (NEPPL3has entered into seven concession agreements with National Highway 
Authority of India (“NHAI”) for Tolling, Management, Maintenance and Transfer of seven toll 
road projects for a period of 20 years from the Appointed Date. The Appointed Date has 
conumenced on 01.04.2024, 

The registered office of the Trust is G-5 & 6, Setor-10, Dwarka, Delhi - 110075. 

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with resolution passed by the 
board of directors of the Investment Manager on 27" May, 2024. 

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Basis of Preparation 

The Standalone Financial Statement of the Trust for the Year ended March 31, 2024 has been 
prepared in accordance with Indian counting Standard, as defited in Rule a(1 la) of the 

uciples generally accepted 3 in India to the extent not inconsistent wj The pesyrities 
. 

. Fy 

io



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS.INFRA TRUST 
Notes To Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

Exchange Board of India (Infrastructure Investment. Trusts} Regulations, 2014 (“the Invi 

Regulations” (as amended) including SEB Master Citeular SEBI/IG/DDHS-PsD- 

2/P/CIR/2023/115 dated July 06, 2023 herein after referred to as “SEBI Master Circular”. Refer 

note 11 on presentation of "Unit capital" as "Equity" instead of compound financial instruments 

under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 32- Financial Instruments: Presentation}. The Trust 

has applied the accounting policies consistently during the periods presented. 

The Staridalone Financial Statements of the Trust comprising of the Standalone Balance Sheet as 

at March 31, 2024, and the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 

Comprehensive Income), the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows, the Standalone Statement of 

Changes in Unitholders’ Equity for the year then ended, the Standalone statement of Net Assets 

at fair value as at March 31, 2024, the Standalone statement of Total return at fair value, and the 

Standalone statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCFs) for the year then ended and a 

summaty of material accounting policies and other explanatory notes have been prepared in 

accordance with the requirements of Indian Accounting Standards as defined in Rule 2(1){a) of 

the Companies (Indian. Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended to the extent not 

consistent with the SEBI (infrastructure Invesiment Trusts} Regulations, 2014, as amended and 

the circulars issued thereafier. 

The Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance 

with accounting, principles generally accepted in India. Further. the Standalone: Financial, 

Statements have been prepared on historical cost basis using uniform policies as expiained in the 
accounting policies below for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances, except 

for certain financial instrument and contingent consideration which are measured at fair value at 

the end ofeach reporting period as explained in relevant accounting policies. 

The financtai statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) which is the Trust*s functional and 

presentation currency, and al! amounts are rounded to the nearest Lakh ((00,00@) and two decimals 

thereof, except as otherwise stated. 

Impact of the initial application of new and amended IND ASs that are effective for current 

year: 

In the current year, the Trust has applied the below amendments to Ind ASs that are effective for 

an anngal period that begins on or after April 1, 2023. 

(a) The Trust has adopted the amendments to Ind AS | ~ “Presentation of Financial Statements” 

for the first time in the current year. The amendments change the requirements in Ind AS | with 

regard to disclosure of accounting policies. The amendments replace all instances of the term 

‘significant accounting policies’ with ‘material accounting policy information’, Accounting policy 

information is material if, when considered together with other information included in an entity’s 

financial statements, it can reasonably be expeeted to influence decisions that thé primary users of 

general-purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements. 

(b) The Trust has adopted the amendments to Ind AS 8 ~ “Accounting Policies, Changes in 

Accounting Estimates and Errors” for the first time in the current year. The amendments replace 

the definition of a change in accounting estimates with a definition of accounting estimates. Under 

the new definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounis in financial statements that are 

art’ og TT 
PGW APE



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS [INFRA TRUST 
Notes To Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

2.1 Summary of Material accounting policies 

a) 

b) 

¢) 

Current versus non-current classification 

Based on the time invelved between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation 
in cash and cash equivalents, the Trust has identified twelve months as its operating cycle for 
determining current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities in the balance sheet. 

Revenue Recognition 

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are 
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Trust expects 
io be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Trust has concluded that it is the 
principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the services before transferring 
them to the customer. Revenue is measured at the transaction price of the consideration received 
or receivable, excluding the estimates of variable consideration that is allocated to that 
performance obligation, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding 
taxes or duties collected on behaif of the government. 

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised, 

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over time, when (or as} the Trust satisfies 
performance obligations by transferring the promised goods or services to its customers. 

Interest income - Inierest income is recognised using the effective interest method. 

Dividends - Dividend income is recognised when the Trust's right to receive the payment is 
established. 

Other items - Other items of income are recognised as and when the right to receive the income: 
arises. 

Taxes on income 

Current income tax 

The income tax expense or credit for the year is the tax payable on current year's taxable income 
based on the applicable income tax rate adjusted. by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities 
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses, The current income tax charge is 
calculated based on tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. 

Deferred tax 

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method on temporary. differences arising 
between the tax bases of assets and fabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial 
statements. However deferred income tax is not accounted if it arises from the initial recognition 
of an asset or liability that af the time of the transaction affects néither the accounting profit nor 
taxabie profit (tax loss), Deferred income tax is determined-using tax rates and laws that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when 
the related deterred income tax agset/liability is realized or settled. 
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NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST: 
Notes To Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

Deferred: tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses 
only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those temporary 
differences and losses. 

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets and Capital Commitments 

Contingent Liabilities 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in notes in case of a present obligation arising from past events, 
when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a 
present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate is possible 

Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when. the Trust has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result 
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

Financial Instruments 

Financial assets and financial 'abilities are recognized when the Trust becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of thé instruments. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that 
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are 
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as 
appropriate, on initial recognition. However, transaction costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (“"FVTPL") 
are recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

If the Trust determines that the fair'value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price, 
the Trust accounts for that mstrument at that date as follows: 

* at the measurement basis mentioned above if that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price 
in an active market for an identical asset or liability (i.e. a Level 1 input) or based ona 
valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets. The Trust recognises the 
difference between the fair value at initial recognition and the transaction price as a gain 
or loss. 

* in all other cases, at the measurement basis mentioned above, adjusted to defer the 
difference between the fair value at initial recognition and the transaction price, After. 
initial recognition, the Trust recognises that deferred difference as a gain or loss only to 
the extent that it arises from a change in a factor (including time) that market. participants 
would take into account ‘when pricing the asset or ltability. 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
Notes To Standaloiie Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

Financial Assets 

All recognized financial assets are stibsequently measured in their entirety at either amortized cost 
or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets. 

l. Classification. of Financial Assets 

Financial Assets that meet the foliowing conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost 
(unless the same ate designated as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)): 

e The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to 
collect contractual cash flows; and 

« The contractual terms of instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

Financial Assets at FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments and all changes are 
recagnized in profit or loss. 

2, Amortized cost and effective interest method 

Income is recognized on an effective interest method as per Ind AS 109 for financial assets other 
than those financial assets classified ag at FVTPL. Interest income is recognized in the Statement 
of Profit and Lass and is included i in the "Other income" line item. 

3. bnpairment of financial assets (Expected credit loss model) 

Animpairment loss on financial asset is established when there-is objective evidence that the Trust 
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables. 
Impairment loss, ifany, are recognised in Statement of Profit or loss for the period. 

4. De-recognition of financial assets 

The Trust derecognize a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset 
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership of the asset to another party, 

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying 
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and.the cumulative gait or Joss 
that had been recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognized 
in. profi t or loss if such ¢ gain of loss would have otherwise been recognized in the Statement of 
Profit or-Loss on disposal of that financial asset. 

b) Financial Liabilities



g) 

h) 

depasits with an original maturity of three months or less, and investments in ov 

_ NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
Notes To Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or less (FVTPL) are subsequently measured at 
fair value. 

De-recognition of financial liabilities 

Financial liability is derecogmized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same 
lender on substantially different terms, or the-terms of an existing liability substantially modified, 

such an. exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the 

recognition of the tiew liability. The difference in the respective carried amount is recognized in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss 

Financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the Hability is discharged or 

cancelled or expires. 

c} Classification as debt or equity 

Debt.and equity instruments issued by Trust are classified as either financial abilities or as 

equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a 
financial liability and an equity instrument. 

Statement of Cash Flows 

Statement of Cash Flows is prepared segregating the cash flows into operating, investing and 

financing activities. 

Cash flow from operating activities is reported using indirect method adjusting the net profit for 
the effects of: 

* changes during the period in operating receivables and payables. transactions of a non- 
cash nature; 

# non-cash items such as depreciation, provisions, déferred taxes, unrealised foreign. 

currency gains and losses; 

© all other items for which the cash effects are investing or financing cash flows. 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cask arid short- 

term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an 
integral part of the Trust's cash niahagement. 

Investment in subsidiaries 

The Trust accounts for its investments in subsidiaries at cost less accumulated impairment lasses 

(if any) in its separate financial statements. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents in the balanee sheet comprise balance with banks and short-term 
Thutual ran rah eee ‘ *, 
ar we a
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NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
Notes To Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short- 
term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafis as they are considered an 
integral part of the Trust’s cash management. 

Borrowing Costs 

Borrowing costs include interest calculated using the effective interest method, amortization of 

aricillary costs and other costs the Trust incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. 

Borrowing cosis are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. 

Distribution to unit holders 

The Trust recognises a liability to make cash distributions to unit holders when the distribution is 
authorised and a legal obligation has been created. As per the SEBI Inv? Regulations, a 
distribution is authorised when it is approved by the Board of Directors of the Investment Manager. 
A corresponding amount ts recognised directly in other equity. 

Earnings per Unit (EPU) 

Basic EPU are calculated by dividing the profit for the period attributable to unitholders by the 
weighted average number of units outstanding during the periad. 

Diiuted EPU are caiculated by dividing the profit/(loss) attributable to unitholders by the weighted 

average number of units outstanding during the period plus the weighted average number of units 
that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential units into unit capital. 

Recent Pronouncements 

As on 31st March 2024, there are no new standards or amendment to the. existing standards 
applicable to the trust which has been notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs. 

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 

The preparation of the Trust’s financial statements requires managenient to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and 
Habilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, 
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material 
adjustment to the carrying araount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. 

Judgements 

In the process of applying the Trust's accounting policies, management has made the following 
judgments, apart from those involving estinations, which have the most significant effect on the 
amounts recognised in the financial statements. 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 

Notes To Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

Classification of unit holders Funds 
The Unit Capital has been, presented as “Equity” in accordance with the InvIT Regulations instead 
of compound financial instrument. Refer note 11 on preseniation of "Unit capital" as "Equity" 
instead of compound financial instruments under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 32- 
Financial Instruments: Presentation). 

Fair value measurements 

Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments 
(where active market quotes are not available), This involves developing estimates and 
assumptions consistent with how market participants would price the instrument. The Trust 
engages third party valuers, where required, to perform the valuation, Information about the 
valuation techniques and inputs used in determining the fair value of investments are disclosed in 
the notes to Standalone Financial Statements. 

Fair valuation and disclosures 

SEBI Master Circular issued under the SEBI InvIT Regulations requires disclosures relating to 
net assets at fair value and total returns at fair value. In estimating the fair value of investments in 
subsidiaries (which constitute substantial portion of the net assets), the Trust engages independént 
qualified external Registered Valuers to perform the valuation. The Investment Manager works 
closely with the valuers to give all the required inputs to the model. The valuation report and 
findings are discussed at the meeting of the Board of Directors on yearly basis to understand the 
changes in the fair value of the subsidiaries. The inputs to the valuation models are taken from 
Indepeudently conducted Technical and Traffic studies and abservable markets, where possible, 
but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. 
Judgements include considerations of inputs stich as weighted average cost of capital, tax rates, 
inflation rates, etc. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the fair value. 

Impairment of investments and loans in subsidiaries 

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its 
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. 
The recoverable amcunts for the investments in subsidiaries are based on value in use. of the 
underlying projects. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are 
detived from forecasts over the remaining SCA period of the projects. 

Expected Credit Loss on financial assets 

As per Ind AS 109, Financia! Assets that are measured at amortised cost are required to. compute 
the Expected Credit Loss (ECL). As at the reporting period, Investment manager of the Tinst 
assessed the credit risk of the financial assets and concluded that no provision for ECL is required. 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
SEBI Registration Number :- IN/InvIT/20-21/0014 

Notés to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

3 Investments: Non Current 
(AN amounts ave in 2 lakh unless otherwise siatwd) 

As at As at 
March 31,2024 | March-31, 2023 

Particulars 

investment in Equity Instruments, at cost (unquated) 

Subsidiary companies 

Investment in Equity Shares of Project SPV (NHIPPL} 139,553.52 1,39,553.52 

(1,29,41,00,00 nos of fully paid up equity shares of Face Value Rs. 10 each) 

Investment in Equity Shares of Project SPV (NEPPL) 240,610.00 - 

(240,61,00,000 nos of fully paid up equity shares of Face Value Rs, 10 each) 

Total 380,163.52 1,39,553.52 

Note: 

a) Details of shares pledged with lenders who have extended the loan facility to the Trust are as follows: 

: As at As at 

Name of the Company : Mareh 31,2024 | Mareh 31,2023 
National Highways lifra Projects Private Limiled 1,29,41,00,000 1,29.41,08,000 

NRIT Eastern Projects Private Limited 2,.40,61,00,000 

Po
 Loans: Non Current 

{All amounis are in & lakh unless othenyise stated} 

Asat AS at 

Particulars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023 

Unsecured 

Loan to related parly -Project SPV (NHIPPL) 9,09,506.66 $,90,606.66 

(Maximun amount outstanding during the year: Rs, 9,09,506.66 lakh; PY: Rs. 

8,90,606.66 lakh} 

Loan to related party ~ Project SPV (NEPPL) 13,30,536,39 - 

(Maximum amount oustanding during the year: Rs. 13,30,536.39 lakh; PY: Rs. 

Nil} 

Total 22,40,043.05 §,90,006.66 

*Based on the assessment of funds availability at SPV level it is estimated that principal repayments are not expected diving 

the next financial year and therefore entire portion loans has been classified as non current financial asset. 

Loans are non-derivative financial assets which are repayable by subsidiaries as per the repayment schedule mentioned in the 

facility agreement. Further, the subsidiaries are entitled to prepay all or any portion of the outstanding principal with 4 prior 

notice. The loais to subsidiaries carry interest @ 12.70% p.a. 

Note: Detaiis of Loans / Advances in the nature of loan granted to Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnels 

(KMPs) and related parties 
(All ermounts are in & lakh inless otherwise seated) 

As at As at 

March 31,2024 | March 37,2023 

{1) Promoters , - - 

{ii} Directors - . 

Gii) KMPs . . 

Type of Borrowers 

oe parties 22,40,043.05 8,90,606.66 
said 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 

SEBI Registration Number :- IN/InvIT/20-21/0014 

Notes to Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2024 

Details of loans and-advanees in the nature of loans to.subsidiaries/associates (including interest receivable): ; 

The Trust has granted long term loart amaunting to 6,500 fakhs for Round 1 (RJ) assets and Rs. 12,408 lakhs for Round 2 (R2)} 

assets (PY: INR -2,849.66 Crore for R2) at the rate of 12.70% p.a. to subsidiary company NHIPPL for Ri & RZ via Facility 

Agreement dated'29.09:2024 & 10.10.2022 respectively for financial assistance to be utilized for the purposes and terms and 

conditiéns as mentioned in the Concession Agreement between NHAL and NHIPPL. The repayment schedule: for the RT loan 

involves 102 quarterly installments due by 31st March 2047 or earlier, while the R2 loan is to be repaid annually from March 

1037 until Match 2043 ov earlier.in accordance with pteniature repayment only if (A} on the relevant principal repayment 

dates(s},sufficient amount are available with the borrower (Which are available and permitted to be utilised towards repayment 

of such principal amounts, without such utilising being in or resulting in breach of financial documents) to make such 

payments in full or part or (3) the senior lender has sent a letter fo the borrower requesting it to make payments on the 

relevant repayment date. However po principal amount under InvIT senior faciliiy will be due and payable by the borrower 

uriless the borrower has the project cash flows as aforesaid to make such payment in full or part in accordance with the 

repayment schedule or the: senior lender has sent a letter to the borrower requesting it to make the payment on the relevant 

repayment date. 

The Trust-has granted long term loan amounting to 13,36,536.39 lakhs for Round 3 (R3) assets al ihe cate of 12.70% p.a. to 

subsidiary company NEPPL. via Facility Agreement dated 12.03.2024 for financial assistance to be utilized for the purposes 

and terms and conditions asmentioned in the Concession Agreement between NHAI and NEPPL.. The repayment schedule for 

the loan involves 5 annual installments starting from 31st March 2039 upto 3ist March 2043 or earlier, and in accordance 

with premature repayment only if (A) on the relevant principal repayment dates(s),sufficient amount are available with the 

borrower (which are available and permitted to be utilised towards repayment of such principal amounis, without such utilising 

being in or resulting in breach of financial documents} to make such payments in full or part or (B) the senior lender has sent & 

letier to the borrower requesting it ta make payments on the relevant repayment dale. However, na repayments for the 

principal under the Invi senior facility ave mandatory unless the borrower can.cover such payment, in full or partly, through 

the project's cash flows following the repayment schedule, or if'a request is received Troms the senior fender by the borrower. 

5 Other Financial Assets: Non Current 

(All amounts are in = lakh unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars 
As at As at 

: Mareh 31,2024 | March 31,2023 

Fixed Deposits. with banks* 9,916.99 9,469.99 

Deposit - Debenture recovery expense fund for NCD's 15.00 15.00) 

Interest receivable on Debenture recovery expense fund 1.32 0.42 

Interest receivable on fixed deposits 241.17 185.43 

Total 10,174.48 9,670.84 

* The Fixed Deposits are kept in Debt Servicing Reserve Account (DSRA) as per borrowing agreements with lenders and as 

per terms of the debenture trust deed; to be. utilized at the end of tenure of long term borrewings from Senior Lenders tid to 

maintain DSRA halarice for Debenture holders, hence classified as Other Financial Assets- Non Current irresjicotive of date of 
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6 Other Non-Current Assets 
(Atl amounts aré in % lakh unless otherwise stated). 

Particulars 
As at Asat 

: : March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023 

Processing fees paid for undrawn loan 95.43 : 

Total 
95.43 ” 

7 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
(Ali anaaunts are in 2 lakh unless otherwise stated} 

Particulars 
As at As at 

Mareh 31,2024 | March 31,2023 

Cash & Cash Equivalents 

Balances with Banks* 

In Current Accounts 
76.02 0.01 

In Escrow Account 
467.42 33804 

Fixed Deposits 
10,000.00 

(having original maturity of less than 3 months} - 

Mirtual Punds** 
30,174.97 3,742.33. 

Total 
30,718.41 14,080.38 

These balances with banks are hypothecated against secured borrowings 

** Invesument in Mutual Funds includes Rs. 15,000 Lakhs raised in current year from unit issue for leap projects, ta be utilised 

for creation of DSRA against loans raised for leap prajects. Further these Investn 

pertaining ta one time issue related expenses unutilized as on 31-03-2024. 

§ Other Financial Assets: Current 

nents also includes Rs. 4106.06 Lalchs 

(All amounts are in @ lakh unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars 
As at Asat 

Mareh.31,2024 | March 34, 2025 

Intérast receivable on long term ioans 
87,242.01 46,688.43 

Interest receivable on Fixed Deposits 
- 3.73 

Cthers receivables* 
292.14 - 

Total 
87,534.15 46,692.16 

* Others receivables includes recoverable from both the SP¥'s (National Highways lifra Projects Private. Limited & NHIT 

Easter: Projects Private Limited}. 

9 Current Fax. Assets (Net) 
(All amounts.in % lakh ualess otherwise, stated) 

Particulars 
As nt As at 

: March 31,2024 | Mareh 31,2023 

Advance Tax paid * 
7.04 = 

Total 
7.04 7 

*Refer Note No. 17 

10 Other Current Assets 
(AjLamounts are in % lakh unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars 
Asat As at 

March 31,2024 | March 31,223 

aid Expenses* 
10:49 373.10 

ly credit carry forward 
$23.36 642.12 

fees paid for undrawn loan 
152.84 103,49 

ta}V ender 
6.45 0.76 

693.14 1,119.47 
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71 Unit Capital 

CA cntentais.cere’ iy ¢ loki aides otherwise stated 

Particulars As at March 34, 2024 As at March 5t,2023 

No of Units Amount No of Units Araiaunt 

Unit Capital* 

Opening balance 72,64,05,200 741,004.32 | 59,52.00,000.00 5,99,442 82 

Add: Units issued during the year 38.57.95 400 727,206.41 13,12,05,.200 143,013.67 

Less: Issue expenses (reler note below) - (7727) : - (852.17) 

Balance as at year end 1,31,22,00,600 14,67,093.46 72, 64,05,200 7y41,604,32 

* 58,57,95.400 units issued at Rs. (24.14 per unit during current financial your (13,12,05,200 unit issned at Rs 109 per unil in previous 

financial year), 

In current year the Trust offered an issué of 58,57,95,400 unils of National Wighways alta Trust NET"), Cor cash at a price of 124.14 per 

unit (the “issue price}, agerceating to * Rs: 727,206.41 lakh through fustitutional and preferential placement in accordance with the 

Seeurities and Exchange Board of India (infrastructure Investment Trust) Regulations, 2044 including the rules, circulars and guidelines 

issued (herennder. 

in previous year the Trust offered an issue of 13,12.05,200 units of National Highways Intra Trust CNHIT™), for cash.at a price of 199.00 

per unil (the “issue price’), agerpaling lo © Rs 143,013.67 lakh through Institational and preferential placement in accordance with the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (ntrasicucture hwesiment Trust) Regulations, 2014 including the rules, circulars and guidelines 

issued thereunder, 

issue expenses-of Rs, 1,717,264akhs (March 31.2023; Rs 852.17 lakhs) incurred tn counection with issuc of units have been reduced Crom 

the Unitholders capital in accordance with ind AS 32 Finanetal Instruments: Presentation 

Rights/ preferences and restrictions attached to Unit Capital 

Subject to the provisions of the lavfT Regolations, the indenture of funds, and applicuble rules, regulations and guidelines. the righis of the 

unit holders include: 

a} The beneficial interest of each unitholder shall be equat and Jimited to the proportion of the nenrber of the units Geld by that unitholder to 

the total aumber-al units. 

b) Right te receive income or distributions with respect lo the unids held, 

¢) Right lo aliend the aunual gene! meeting and other mectings of uml holders of the Trust. 

d) Right to-vore upon any mauers/esotutions proposed in relation te the Trust. 

¢) Righl lo receive periodi¢ infonnation having @ bearing on the operation or performance of the Trust in accordance wide the Invi 

1) Right to apply to the Trust to take up certivin issues at meetings fer unit holders approval 

g) Right receive additional informatiog, if any, in accordance with InyIf documents filed with Placement Memorandum. 

ln accordance with the lnvi'P Regulations, ne unit holders shall enjoy superior voting or avy other rights over any other unit holders, and 

there shall aot be multiple classes of units, There still be only one denomination of unils, Not withstanding the above, subardinate units may 

be issued only to the Sponsor and ts Associates, where such subordinate units shall carry ouly inferior voting or ayy ollver riphis compireia 

the other units, 

Under the previsions of the loll Regulations, nol less han 90% of the net disliributablé cash lows of ihe Trost is required to be distributed 
to the unitholders, and in aecotdance with such statitory obligation the Trust has formoloted a distriution policy to declare and distribute the 

distributable cash lows to its unitholders atleast once every finangial ycar as approved by the Board.of Directors of the Investment Manager, 

The distributions made by “Trust to itg unithalders are based on the Net Disiriatalle Cash Flows (NDCF) ef the Trust ander the loviT 

Regulations, The distribuiien in proportion to the number of units lield by the unitholders. The Trust deelares and pays in distributicns in 

Indian rupees. 

Lintitation to the Liability of the unit holders 

The Hability oF each unit holders towards the payment of any amauat (bal nay arise in relation 49 the Trust including any taxes, duties, fines, 

levies, liabilities, costs or expenses) shall be limited only to the extent of the-capifal contribution of such unit holders und-afier such capital 

contribution shall have been paid in fill by the unit holders, the unit holders shall not be obligated t¢ make any luriher payments. 

The unit holders shall not hase any personal liability or obligation with respect to the Trust. 

Classification of Unit Holders’ Funds, 

Under the provisions of the InvIT Regulations, NHIT is required to distribute to Unitholders not less than ninety percent of the net 

distributable cash flows of NHITTor.cuch financial year. Accordingly, a porlion of the unitholders’ fords contains a contractual obligation of 

the Trust to pay to ils Unitholders cash distributions. ‘The Unidioliers’ funds could therefore have been classified as compound financtl 

instrument, which ‘contain both equily and fiability components in accordance with Ind AS 32 - Financial Instruments: Presentation, 

However. in accordance with SBI Cireulars (No, CIRAMB/DE/I 14/2016 dated 20-Oct-2016 and No. CIRAMD/DIA27/2016 dated 25- 

Now2016) issued under the javll Regulations, the smithalders’ fiends have been classified as equily in order to comply with the mandatory 

jvamens of Section EH of Annexure A ta the SEBI Cireulac dated 20- Cet-2016 dealing with ‘the mininiun disclosures for Key Finacial 
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Details Of Unithalders Totdiny Wore Than 5% Units fa The Trast 

Name OF Uaitholders Ag at hYnreh 31, 2024 As at Sfaurch 37, 2023, 

No of Units % No of. Units % 

Ontario Limiied. 32,80,50,150 25:00%: 18. §6,01,300 25.00% 

CPP lnvesiment Board Private Holdings ne. 32.80.50, 150 25.00% 18,16,01,300 25.00% 

SBI Balanced) Advantage Trust 6.31,60,260 4.81% 631.60,260 8.69% 

National Highways Authority af India (NHAB 20,30,72,000 15.48% 11,52,02,600 15.86% 

As per records of the Trust, including its register oF unitholders and other declaration received [rom unitholders regarding beneficial interest, 

the abeye unitholding represent both legal and beneficial ownership of units. 

The Trust has not alloted any fully paid-up units by way of bonus ueits nor has il bought hack amy class of units from the date af 

incorporation Gill the bulance shect dale, Further the Trust bas nol issued any units far consideration other than cash during the year. 

Reconciliation of Number of Units Outstanding is set vat below*: 

Purticalirs Asat Mareh 31, 2024 As at March 31,2023 

Noat Units Amount No of Units Amount 
(amounts in € takb) * (ansounes in % bakhyt 

Nuntber of Linils at the begianing of the year 72,64.05.200 TAS 165.67 39.52.00,000 6.0L 152.00 

Units issued during (he year 58.57,95,400 7.27 20641 13,12.05,200 143,014.67 

Number of Units al the end ofthe year 131,22,00,600 (4,71,372.08 72.64,05,200 744,165.67 

+ nt related to issue expenses are aol deducted in the reconciliatiog of number of unit capital outstanding. 
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12. Other Equity (Atl dmounts are in % lakh unless othenvise stated) 

Particulars As at Asat 

‘ March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 

Balanée al the beginning of the year 60,432.64 £8,124,33 

Total comprehensive income for ie year D681927 77,236.17 

Less: 

Distribution to unit holders* 
” 

Interest 
53,701.68 344,183.66 

Other lancome 
789.60 744.20 

Balance.as at March 3 2024 1,02,760.63 60,432.64 

AT he distribution-retates to the distrihulions during the financial year along with the distribution related te the last quarter of 

FY 2022-23 and does not include the distribution relating, ta the period February OL, 2024 to March 34, 2024 which will be 

paid afler March 31, 2024. The distributions by the Trust (o itsunil holders are based on the Net Distributable Cash Flaws of 
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13 Borrowings: Non Current 
{All amounts are in € lakh unless otherwise sigted) 

Particulars . 
Asat Asat 

Mfareh 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023 

Secured 

Noa-Convertible Debentures 
150,000.00 150,000.00 

Less: Unamortised Borrowing Cost - NCD 
1,360.91 14l1.80 

Total 
148,639.09 1, 48,538.20 

Note:- Other terms and conditions of NCD 

i) Interest rate 
7.90% p.a_payable scmi anmally. 

id) Ternis of repayment Redemption of respective STRPP shall be made in equal instalments 

DSERPP A - starting from eighth anniversary of deemed dale of alfotnicnt 

Ui! thirteenth amiiversary. 

ii) STRPP-B- staring from thirteenth anniversary of deemed date of 

allotment till eighteenth anniversary. 

fit} STREP-C- starting from eighteenth anniversary of deemed date of 

allotment lit Gventyfifih anniversary. 

Term Loan 

From Banks 
721,927.70 145,987.43 

From Financial Institution 
3.05.000.00 : i 

10,26,927.70 1,45 98743 

Less: Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowings (Reler Nole ih 10,054.00 2,000.00 

Less: Unamortised Borrowing Cost « Term Loan 
217.85 ANF) 

Total 
10,14,755-85 1,43, 97013 

Grand Total 
11,63,394,94 702,158.33 

During the year ended 31st March 2024, the Trust has oblained the sanction of Rs, $77 Crores from the Asis bank Joy inital improvernent works 

of Rouad 2 Assets, Further Trust hus obtained sanction of Rs. 9,000 Crores from hanks and financial institution for aequistion of Round 3 Asseis 

and fas taken a disbursement o(Rs. 8.658 Crore during the year. 

Loan fram Banks include loan received From IDBI Bank which is Peomoter of 13B1 Trusteeship Services Limited (ITSL) + Trustee of the Trast, 

therefore the transactions with FDI Bank are disclosed in Related Parly Transaction. 

Note: Other terms and cunilitions of Term Lonns 

i) (ntorest rate Benehmark Rale plus spread applicable an cach resct date. for Cicily 

apreement, 

ii) Terms of repayment 
Repayable in unstructured quarterly instalments with last repayment cate 

upta March 31, 2045 & March 31, 2042 jar facility agreement of R1 & RZ 

Aggels respectively, 

Repiyable in unsiroctured quarterly instalments with lst repayment date 

nplo March 31, 2042 for lacility agreement of R3 Asset. 

Security far Ferm Loans : 

The loan igsecured hy, 

~ first pari passu charge on all immovable dysets.if day}, movable assets and receivables of the Trustincluding bul not Hmited to, 

(i) the interest and principal repayments on the loans advanced by theTrust to Project SP¥s 

i) dividends to be paid by Project SPV¥s-to the Trust 

- First pari passu Security Interest on Trust Escrow account and all sub-accounts thereunder, including OSA. 

- pledge of. 100% equity shares of Project SPV¥s! (NIEIPPL & NEPPL) in demateriatized form heid by the Trust 

- ossigament afioans advanced by the Trust Lo. Project SP¥s' (NTIPPL & NEPPL) and securities created by the Trust including the assizoment-of ° 

rights of substitution, dermination and invocation of provision of Escrow agreement in ease of default. 

» heputive Hen on immovable assets (including, current assets and cash flows) of the Project SP¥s (NHIPPL & NEPPL) subject lo sale oF obsolete 

ilenis or cars? ambulances, ald toll equipment ele. ; under nermal business practice, subject lo maximum cumulative yalue of INR. 5 Crore in anny 

financial year for R1 projects /INR 2 Crate per project im iny financial year for R2 & K3. 

The senior Senders of the Trus! haye also, been provided Avitli a corporate guarantee from Project SPY (NHIPPL) to guarantce upto the secured 

obligations Of the Trust. The funds haye hea mised at Trust fevel [ranv unitholders and domesiieck ca the same have. been lent-to Project 

‘ for payment of concession fee by NHIPPL to NHAL The cashflows viz all BanSetios Seare lying in NHIPPL, Accorlingly, 

ce amounting upio ihe secured obligations. of the Trust via Corporite Gflapdiileg Deed “dared 14.03.2022 and 08.01,2024, valid 

the loan of the Trust ie. up to 31.03.2041 and 31.03.2042 respectiv yp jas heen, proyitiéd by the Project SPV ¢ NHIPPL) ie 
at 

aed 

say the Trust. 
Aes < G 
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Native of Security for Non Convertible debentures: 

The debenture holders are secured by - 

a) a first.canking: pari passu Security interest over the Trust's ininvovable assets (#0 aly}, boih present and fuiure, The Trust does not own any 

immovable property at the present Line, ip the event, thy Trust acquires any immovible property i Future, the Trust-shall mortgage said properly 

within 186 (one hundred cighty) days fronv'the date of acquisition of such immovable assels. The Debenlure Trastee shall be-authorised to do all 

acts, deeds, and enter into necessary documents, agreement, amendmenis and/or -modifiealions, as way be required to give effect the sane, 

including carrying out the due diligence as may be required by Debenture Trustee. 

b} 4 first ranking pari passu Sceurily Injerest. aver the Hypothecuted Assets (including Receivables}, both present and Fulure, and 

c) Negative Lien Uinderlaking 

d) corporate guarantee executed by dhe Project SPY (NHIPPL) in favour.of the Dehentare Trustee [ir guarantéeiig the due repayment of the 

secured abligalions in accordance with the terms of the Debenture Trust Deed. 

The non convertible debenture holders of the Trust auling (hrough debenture trustee have also been provided wilh a corpomte pilardinter {rem 

Project SP¥ (NHIPPL) to guarantes ihe repayment of amount raised from non convertible debenture holders by the Trust. The funds have been 

raised at Trust level from debenturchdiders, bave been lent to Project SPV (NHIPPIA fer payment of concession [ee by NHIPPL lo NIAL 

Accordingly, corporate guarantee amounting upto ihe secured obligations via Corporate Gyariniee Deed dated 21.10.2022 is valid tll all 

outstanding principal aid aecrued interest payable by the Trust are satisfied to the non convertible debenture holders of the Trust. 

There have been no breaches in fianeia! covenants wilh respect Lo the borrowings (rom either senior lenders or debenture holders. 

1d Borrowings: Current 
LAT amonnty ate in 2 lakle unless othenvise stuked} 

Particulars 
As at Asat 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Sceurcdi 

Current Maturities of Long Term borrowings (Refer Note, 13} 10,054.00 2,000.00 

Total 
10,054.00 2. D000 

5 Trade Payables; Cucrent 
Al amounts are in % lakh aness mtheneise stated) 

Particulars 
vs at Ag iat 

Marel 31, 2024 Muareh 31, 2023 

Tolat outstanding, dues of micre and small enterprises 
36.17 388 

‘Total oustanding, dues ol trade payables other than micre and small enterprises 733.58 BLY 

(Outstanding, for less than 12 months from Uhe due date of payment} 

Total 
169,75 36.57 | 

Note:- 

Details ef dues to miera and small enterprises as per MSMIED Act, 2006, 

The Company has certain dees to supplicts registered under Micra, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Aci, 2006 ( MSMED Act’). The 

disclosures pursuant to the said MSMED Act are as follows: 

a} The pringipal amount remaining unpaid fo any supplier at tae end-of the year 

b) Interest accrued and due thereon to supplicrs udder MSMED Act an the above aniouat 

remaining unpaid te any supplier at the end of year. : 

¢) The amouat of interest paid by the buyer in terms af section 16 of the MSMED Act, 

2006, along with unc amount ef the payment made to the supplier beyoud the appointed day 

during the year 

d) The amotnt of interest due and payable for the periad of delay in. making payment Gwhich 

have been paid bul beyond the appolmed day during thé year) bit without adding the 

interest specilied under the MSMED Act. 2006 

@) The amoual of interest accrncd and remaining unpaid at the end of cach accounting year 

f) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, 

uatilsuch date when the interest dues abave are. actually paid to the small enterprises, fur the 

~disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 

Tol payable ia-vendors, as defined under the “Micro, Small and Medium 

a fainent Act, 2006" is based on the information available with the Company 

As at 

March 31, 2024 

Asat 

Nlareli 31, 2023 

36.47 U88 
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Disclosure of payable 10 vendors as delined under the “Micro, Small-and Mediuni Enterprise Development Act, 2006" is based on the 

information available with the Company regarding the status of registration of Such vendors onder the said. Act; as per the intimation reevived 

(rom them on requests made by the Company. 

Trade Payable ageing schedule as on March 31, 2024 

(Outstanding for following period fram due date of payment 

Particulars Not o ess the . . . Total 

Particulars Not due fess than | 1-2 Years}2-3 Years! More thin 3 Vears om 

DMSME - 36.17 - - - 36.17 

11) Others. 635.41 96.72 1.43 - - 733.58 

ii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - 

iv) Disputed dues - Others . ~ - “ - - 

Total 635.41 132,89 145 - - 769.75 

Trade Payable ageing schedule as on Mareh 31, 2023 
Outstanding tor following period trom due date of payment 

Parti "5 ‘Not d Less ¢hii . Total 
Particulars otdue | 1 oss than | 1-2 Vears}]2-3 Years; More than 3 Years am 

1) MSME 7 3.88 - - . 3.88 

it} Others O0.34 252.35 - - - 342.69 

iii) Disputed dues - MSME - . - * - - 

iv} Disputed dues « Others - - “ : - - 

Total, 0.34 256,23 - . - 346,57 

16 Other financial liabilities LAN amounts are in @ iakh unless otherwise stated) 

Particulars Asal Asat 

Mareh 31, 2024 March 31,2023 

Others 

Interest accrued but nol due on NCD 5,162.05 5,129.59 

Total 3,162.05 5,129.59 

17 Current tax Habilities (Net) 

18 

(AlEamounts are in 2 lakh unless olberwise stated) 

Particulars AS at As at 

March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 

Provision far Income Tax - $98 

Total - 8.98 

Reconciliation of Current Tax Liabilities 
CAH amouts are in Tiakh unless othenvise, stated) 

Particulars Asat Ag at 
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 

Opening Balance 8.98 161.77 

Add: Income Fax Payable for the year 697,36 473.89 

Less: Incamie taxes paid during the.year (including cartier year taxes) 713,58 626.68 

Closing Balance (7.04) 8.98 

Other current liabilities 
(Al amounts are in ¢ lakh unless othenvise stated) 

Particulars Asat Asat- 

March 31; 2024 March 31, 2023 

Statutory Habilities (GST and TDS payabie) 194.29 42.50 

ye ae 194,29 42.50 



19 Interest income on joan giver to subsidiaries 
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{All amounts are in % lakh unless otherwise stated) 

; For the year ended | For the year ended 
Particulars March 31, 2024 MareW 31, 2023 

Interest on Long Term Loan given 1,23,103.51 94,698 30 

Total 1,23,103.51 94,698 30 

Interest income 

(ATE amounts are in 2] aki unless olherwise stated) 

For the year ended For the year ended 
Particulars Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 
On fixed deposits with banks 786,74 352.28 

Total 786.74 352.28 

Profit on sale of investments 

{All amouads are in & ] akh unless otherwise stated} 

For the year ended For the year ended 
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Profit on redemption of Mutual Funds 840,99 422,20 

Total 840.99 22.29 

Other Income 

(AlLamoumts are in & lakh unless atherwise stuled) 

For the year ended. For the year ended 
Particulars 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Other nen operating iacome 
Other Income 42j 316.59 

Total 4:21 316.59 

Audit fees 

Statutory audit expenses (All ameuits are in &] akh unless otherwise stated) 

For the ycar ended For the year ended 
Particulars March 31, 2024 Mareb 31, 2023 
Statutory auditors’ renuacration: 

Audit fees 2.95 L710 
Limited Review 2.80 1.20 

Total 5.75 2.90 
Other audit services (including certification) 

Certification Charges 1.72 0.88 
Total 1.72. 0.88 

Further an amount of Rs 3 lakh (March 31, 2023: Rs 6 lakh) paid to auditor as certification charges has been 
i part of one time.expenses in the Unit Capital. (Refer note no. 11) 
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24 Finance cost 

(All amounts are in 2 iafh unless otherwise sisted} 

For the year ended For the year ended 
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

interest on Term Loan Borrowings 13,059.49 11,2445] 
Interest on Debentures. 11,882.48 5,129.39 

Other Financial Charges 19774 215.67 

Total 25,139.68 16,590.17 

25 Other expenses 

{ATE aniounts are inf lakh unless otherwise stated) 

For the year ended Fer the year ended 
Particulars March 31, 2024 Mareh 31,2023 

Lega! and Professional fees 134.87 170.06 

Fee, Subscription & Taxes 2.51 0.24 

Bank charges 0.03 0.08 

Miscellaneous expenses 31.23 19.78 
Total 1838.64 190.16 

26 Tax Expense 

CAN armaunts are in & lakh unless otherwise stated) 

. For the year ended | For the year ended 
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 
Current Tax 697,56 473.89 

Provision for Taxation~-Eariler years (2.52) O35 

695.04 473.99 
Deferred tax expense/(credit} ~ {3.16} 

Current Tax Expense 695.04 470.74 

Effective tax Reconciliation; 

Numerical reconciliation of tax expense applicable to (profit)! loss before tax at the latest statutory enacted tax 

rate in India to income tax expense reported is as follows: 

(ATE atourts are in = lakh untess otherwise stated) 

Particulars For the year ended = For the year ended 

Marth 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Accounting Profit before Incomé Taxes 97,514.31] 77,706,92 

Tax at India’s statutory income tax rate- Maximum Marginal , 
Rate (42.74%) 41,681.52 33,215.04 

Impact of exentption u/s 10(23FC) of the Indian Income Tax Act, ; 
1961 available to the Trust (40,986.48) (32,741.15) 
Impact of deferred tax on reversible allowance/ disallowance.of 

business expense and income, as per Indian Income Tax Act, - B16) 

1961 
Pravision for interest on delayed deposit of income tax - - 

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and 
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27 Earnings per unit 

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended 
; March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Basic and diluted EPU 

Net Profit loss available for unitholders (in & lakh ) 96,819.27 TT 23617 
Weighted average number of units for EPU computation 75,36,14,276 65,66,08.738 

EPU- Basic and diluted 12,85 11.76 

Basic EPU amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to Unit holders by the weighted 
average number of units outstanding during the year. Diluted EPU amounts are calculated by dividing the 
profit/(loss) attributable to unit holders by the weighted average number of units outstanding during the year plus 
the weighted average number of units that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential units into 
unit capital. 

28 Capital and Other Commitments 

(to the extent not provided for & certified by the management) 

CAI] amounts are in 2 lakh unless othenvise stated} 

Particulars As at Asat 

March 31, 2024 March. 31, 2023 
Commitments: 

Commitinent for loan to Subsidiary Company (Project SPV- 1,21,594.00 1,40,494.00 
NHIPPL) 

Commitment for loan to Subsidiary Company (Project SPV- 34,658.61 - 
NEPPL) : 

1,56,252.61 140,494.00 
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29 Capital Management 
For the purpose of the Trust's capital management, capital ineludes issued unit capital and all other reserves attributable 
io the init holders of the Trust. 

The primary objective of the Trust's capital management is to ensure that jt maintains a slrong creclif rating and healthy 
capital ratios in order ta support ils business and maximise unit holder value. 
The Trust manages its capital structure and makes adjustments te it in light of changes in econontic conditions and ihe 
requirements af tle Financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Trust may adjust the dividend 
payment / Income distribution to unit holders (subject lo the provisions of SEB] InviT Regulations which require 
distribution of at least 90% of the net distribuiable-cash Nows of the ‘Trust to unit holders}. retuni capital to unit halders-or 
issue new units. The Trust monitors capital using & gearing ralid, which is net debi divided by total capital plus net debt. 
The Trust's policy is lo keep the geating ratio optimum. 

(All amounis are in = lakh unless otherwise stated) 
Particulars As at As at 

March 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023 
Net Debt Components: 

Long Term Borrowings (Non-Current portion) (secured) 11 63.5941, O4 2.92,158.33 
Current Maturities of Long-Term Borrowings (secured) 10,054.00 2,600.00 
Trade payables 769.73 346.57 
Other financial Tabilities 3,162.05 5,129.59 
Less: Cash and Cash Equivalents (FO718.41) (14,080.38) 
Less: Other Financial Assets comprising DSRA FDs CLO 74 bh (9,G70,84) 
Net Debt (i) 11,38,487.85 2,75,983,.27 

Capital Components: 
Unit Capital 14.67,.093.46 741,604.32 
Inttial Settlement Amouni 0.10 0.10 
Other Equity 1,02.760.63 60,432.64 
Total Capital (ii) 15,69,854.19 $,02,037,06 
Capital and Net Debt [(ii) =i + (ij 27,08,342.04 10,77,920.33 

Gearing Ratio (i)/Gii) 42.04% 25.59% 

Th order lo-achieve this overall objective, the Board af Directors of Investment Manager, amongst other things, aims ta 
ensute that it meets nancial covenants ailached 19 the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital steucture 
requirements. Breaches in meeting the Nnancial covenants would permit the lenders to call loang and borrowings. There 
have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing leans and borrowing In ihe current year, No 
changesagere made fi the. abjectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended March 3 L, 2024 
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30 Financial Risk Management 

The Trust's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Trust; ta set 

appropriate risk limits and controls, and io monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems 

are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and-the Trust's activities, 

The Board of Directors of Investment Manager has overail responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the 

Trust's risk management framework, 

In performing its operating, investing and financing activities, the Trust is exposed to the Credit risk, Liquidity risk and 

Market risk. 

Market Risk 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 

market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, Financial 

instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, Receivables and Payables and Investments measured at 

FVTPL. 

The sensitivity analyses in the follawing-sections relate to the position as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023. 
The sensitivity analyses have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to floating interest 

rates of the debt are all constant. 

The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses: 

The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is 

based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held at March 31, 2024 & March 31, 2023. 

Foreign Curreney Risk 

Foreign currency risk js the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in 

foreign exchange rates. The Trust transacts business primarily in Indian Rupees only, and hence. the sensitivity of profit 

and loss of the Trust to a possible change in foreign exchange rates is non-existent as on March 31, 2024 & March 31, 

2023. 

Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that.the fair value or. future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate becéuse of 

changes in market interest rates. Exposure to tisk of changes in market interest rates generally relates primarily to long- 

term debt obligations with floating interest rates. 

The Trust's exposure 10 iriterest rate risk due to variable interest rate borrowings is as follows: 

(All amounts. are in 2 fakh onless otherwise stated) 

Particulars As at Asat 

. March 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023 

Floating Rate Borrowings 1.0,26,927,70 1,45,987.43 

Total 10,26,927.70 1,45, 987.43 

Sensitivity analysis based on average outstanding Debt: 

Impact on profit / (loss) before tax 
Interest rate risk analysis As at As at 

March 31, 2024 March 31,.2023 

lncrease or decrease in interest rate by 25 basis points 2,567.32 364.97 

Note! Profit will increase in case of decrease-in interest rate and vice versa 

Pr isk 

“: MsisMijie risk that dhe fair value or. future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 

preecttother than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), gi he a



__ NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
SEBI Registration Number :- IN/InvIT/20-21/0014 

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2024 

Liquidity Risk. 

Liquidity risk is the risk that'an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial abilities that are settled 

by delivering cash.or another fipaticial assets. 

The Trust is exposed to liquidity risk due to bank borrowings and trade. and other payables; 

The Trust. measures risk by forecasting cash flows. 

The Trust's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that. it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its 

abilities when due without incurring unideceptable losses or risking damage fo the Trust’s reputation. The Trust ensures that it has 

sufficient funds to meet expected operatiahal expenses, servicing of Financial obligations. 

in addition, processes and policies related to such risk are overseen by senior management. Management monitors the Trust's net 

liquidity position through rolling forecast on the basis of expected cash flows. 
{All amounts are in @ lakh unless otherwise stated) 

As at March 31, 2024 Carrying <1¥r. 1-3 Yrs. 3 Yrs, 

Amount 

Term Loan 10,24,809,85 10,054.00 26,862.00 987,893.85 

Non-Converlible Debentures 118,639.09 - - 148,639.09 

Trade Payables 769,75 769,75 - - 

Other Financial Liabilities §,162.05 5,162,05 - - 

Total 11,79,380.74 15,985.80 26,862.00 11,36,532.94 

As at March 31, 2023 Carrying <1Yr. 1-3 Yrs. 3 ¥ 4s. 

Amount 

“Terny Laan 1,45,570.13 2,000.00 6,000.00 137,570.55 

Non-Canvertible Debentures 1,48,588,20 - - 148,588.20 

Trade. Payables, 346.57 346,57 - - 

Other Financial Liabilities 5,129.89 5,129.59 - . 

Toial 2,99,634.48 7TATGLG 6000.00 2,86,158.33 

Credit risk 

Credit risk ig the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading, to a 

financial loss. To manage this, the Trust periodically assess the reliability of the receivables, faking into account the financials 

conditions, current economic trends, analysis of historical bad debts and aging of receivables. With respect Lo credit risk arising fram 

‘other finandial assets of the Trust, which comprise Balances with banks, Trade Receivables, Loans and Advances and Investments, the 

Trust's exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty, with maximum exposure equal ta the carrying amount of these 

instruments. 

The carrying value of financial assets represents the maximun credit risk. The maximuin exposure to credit risk was Rs. 27,48,729.03 

Lakh and Rs. 11,08,603.37 Lakh as at March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 respectively, being the otal carrying value of Loans fo 

Subsidiary, Trade receivables, linvesiments, Balances with bank, bank deposits and other financial assets. 

3 _
 Disclosure pursuant to IND AS 36 "Lmpairment of Assets" 

Based on impairment testing done which involves review of the future discounted cash flows of the subsidiary, the recoverable amount 

is higher than the carrying amount of the investment made in the subsidiary and accordingly; no provision for impairment is required to 

be recognised in the books as on the reporting date. ; 

32 Financial information of lnvestment Manager 

The summary financials of Investment Manager are nol disclosed alongwith these finaricials as its networth is not materialfy eroded. 

33 Withholding Tax liability for interest accrued but not dieon non cenvertible debentures 

The Trust has.issued publicly listed non convertible debentures ("NCDs") with interest payable ori semi-antiual: basis. Interest on these 

NCDs was due for payment.on 29 April 2024 and for the purpose of payment of interest, record-date was 10 April 2024 and debenture- 

hoideis existing as on 10 April 2024 are entitled to the coupon interest. Trust has recorded liability of interest accrued Hl 3ist Mareh 

2024 and there is no credit in. favour of any payee at the time of creating such provision as entitled payee will be identifiable as on 

f co 

t 3 Wey Dein}
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Statement of Related Parties 

» List of Related Partics as per requirement of IND AS 24 — “Related Party Disclosnres” 

Enterprises where Control / significant inl uence exists 

National Highways Inira 

Projects Private Limited 

CNHIPPL') 
(Subsidiary Compatiy) 
NET Eastern Urojeets 

Private Limited 

(NEPPLY 
(Subsidiory Company) 

B List of additional related parties as per Regulation 2(1(zv) uf the SESE InvlT Regulations 

Parties tp Ure Trust 

National Highways tifte favesunent Managers Private Limited (NHIMPL} - Investment Manage (IM) of the Trust 

IDB! Trusteeship Services Limited (7$L) - Trustee of the Trust 

National Highways Authority of India (NHAI)- Sponsor 

National Highways InviT Project Managers Private Limited (NHTPMBL)}- Project Manager 

Promoters of the Parties to the Trust snecilied above 

Government of India (acting through Ministry of Road. Trauspart & Highways (MOR TED) - Promoterof NHUMPL 
iDBI Bunk Limited (TDRI Bauk) - Promoterof ITSL 

Government of India (acting Uiraugh Ministry of Road, Trhtasport & Highways (MOR'TH)) - Pronioter of NIAL 

National Highways Authority of India (NHAD- Promoter af NHIPMPL 

Directors of the parties i the Trust specified above 

Direciors oO NTEEIACPL 

Mr. Suresh Keishan Goyal 

Mr. Shailendra Narain Rov 
Mr. Mahavir Prasad Shurma 

Mr. Pradeep Singh Kharola 

Mir, ALR. WML. Rajendra Kumar 
Mr. Sumit Bose 

Mr. Pushkar Vijay Kulkarni (Appointed as Director wet 08.11.2023) 

Mr. Bebapratim Hajara (Appointed as Director weet, 08,1 1.2023) 
Mr, Vinay Kumar (Appointed a5 Nonince Director w.e.f 27.03.2024) 
Ms. Usiia Monuri (Appainted as Wonan- Independent Director wet 16.04.2024) 
Mr. Bruce Cane (Ceased to be director wie. G7. 11.2023} 

Mos. hawila Saha (Ceased to be director wie. P81 1.2023} 

Mr. Amit Kiimar Ghosh (Ceased tu be direclor woe. P 15.11.2023) 

Directors of TVSL. 

Mr. Pradcep Kumar Jain 
Ms. Jayashree Vijay Ramacte 

Mr. Pradecp Kumar Malhotra 

Ms, Baljinder Kaur Mandat 

Ms. Jayakumar Subramoniapiliai 

Directors of NHIPAIPL 

Me, Akhil Khare 
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Transactions with Related Parties 
tAmouuis in lakh) 

Your ended Year ended’ 
Particulars 31st Mare 2024 Fist Mareh 2023, 

(elucditedd) (cluetited} 

National Higliways Infra Projects Private Limited (NILIPL) . , 

Advancement of Long Term Loans to NHIPPL 18,900.00 284,966.66 

Interest Income accrued on Long ‘Term Loan given to. NHIPPL (20,883.95 94,698.30 

Reimbursement of Expense paid by NHIT on behalf of NLUPPL. 5.01 432.66 

National Wirhwavs Enra Investment Managers Private Limited (NIMMATPL) 

Invesimentl Manager Fee 1,800.00 LAG). 
Advance Investmiut Manager Fee Paid 493 86.06 
Expense incurred by NHIMPL on ourbehal f 15.35 39,79 

Nacional Hig hayays Authority of tadia (NICAL 
Issue af unils of Trusi tq NITAL 109,081.07 21,366.83 
lriterest and other income distribution $.64 1,92 5.58934 

LDB! Trusteeship Services Limited (TSE) 
Payment of Frustes Pee 9.60 1273 
Other fees related to Rownd | & 2 Assets bad 3.54 

Oiker Fecs related to Round 3 Assels “Project Leap") 17.58 - 

UDP) ant Lint 

Secured Loan given to NUTT 10,000.00 - 
Interest Expense incurred on Lean given to NET 438 - 

Repayment of Principal Ament 0.00 - 
Loan Processing Fees Paid to then: 41,30 - 

NHED Eastern Projects Private Lisgited (NEPPL) 

Subscription of Share Cupitul af NEPPL by NHIT 2,40,610,00 . 
Leng-Term Loans given to NEPPL 13,.30,536.39 . 
Interest Income Acerued ov Loag Tem oun given to NEPPL 221756 : 

Short term Advance given ta NEPPL 20,50 - 
fixpense fneurzed by NEPPL on ove dell! 4g - 
Expenses incurred by NHTT on their behall 262,72 - 

. Closing Balances with Rejated Parties 
{Araounts in 2 lakh) 

Particulars As ut Miaurelt $f, 2024 As at March 3), 2023 

Sitio Higtways latra Projects Privtte Limited (NIIPPL) 

Investment in equity shares of NEHP PL 
Qutsuinding Lang term Loans given ta NHLPPL 
Inderest receivable on Long Term Loan given to NEPPL 

Amount Receivable for Expenses incured.on thei beball 

National Highways Authority of badia (NILTAT 

(ssn of units af Trust to NAT 

Advanec. IM Fee 

IM Feo Payable 

IBBI “Erasteeship Services Limited 

Trustee Fee Piryatile 

Oiher Feas rdlated to Round 3 Assels ("Protect Leap") 

HDBI Bank Linited 

Oulstanding Secured Laan Amount 

NHI Eastern Projects Private Limited (NEPPL') 

livesiment in equity shares oF NEPPL 

Amount Receivable fer Expenses incurred on their behalf 

Outstanding Advance Recoverable fron NEPPL 
Amount Payable for Expenses incurted on our behalf 

Oysterrding Long form Loans s giver to NEPPL 

Natiooal Highways Infra investment Manieers Private Limited (NIITAIPL) 

telucitect} (elsudifed) 

1,29-110.00 129,410.00 
9119, 506.66 $.90,606.66 

$5,024.44 4h. 688.43 
9.01 - 

227,003.91 13792293 

4.93 ~ 

. 1.85 

1.73 1,73 
2.68 - 

9,999 99 - 

2,40.610,00 “ 
202.64 - 

20.50 - 
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35 Financial Enstrument by Categury 

(AlLamdunis in % lakh unless otherwise stated} 

As at 31s Mareli, 2023 As-at March 31,2024 

Particulars Amortized Cust at AtF¥OCI Amortized Cast at ; At FVYOCI FVTPL FYTPL 

Assets: 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 30,718.41 - - 14.080:38 . - 
Investinent in Prajéct SPV 3,80,163,52 - - 1,39,553/52 - - 
Loans & Advances 22,40.043.035 - - §,90,606.66 - - 
Other Financial Assets 97,708.63 ” - 36.363.00 - - 
Total 27,48,633.61 - - 11,00,603.56 ~ : 
Liabilities: ; 
Borrowings 11,73,448.94 - - 2,94, 158.33 - - 
Frade Payables: 769.75 - - 346.57 “ - 
Other Financial Liahifities 5,162.05 . - 5.129.590 |. - - 
Total 11,79,380.74. - * 2,99,634.49 - - 

Defaults and breaches 

There are oo defaulis during che year with respect to repayment of principal afd payment of interest and no breaches of the terms and 
conditions of the berrowings, 

There are ng breaches during the year which permitted lender ta demand accelerated payment. 

36 Fair Values of Assets and Liabilities 

The carrying aniount of all finuncial assets and liabilities appearing in (he financial siaements fs reasonable approximation of frit values, Fair 
value of the finanetal assets and Uabilities is the amount al which the instrument could be exchanged in a curcent transaction between willing 
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. 

Fair Value Uierarchy. 

The Trust uses the following hierarchy for fair value measurement of the Trust's (nancial assets and liabilities: 
Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) ii active markets for identical assets or liabilities, 
Level 2 ~ Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 thai are chservable fer the asset or Hability, either directly (i.e. as prices} oF 
indirectly (i.e, derived fram prices). 

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities thal are not based ‘an observable market data (unobservable inputs). 

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that ave not measured at fair value (but fair value disclosures are required) 
(Alt amounts in % lakh unless ofhenvise staied}, 

Carrying Value Fair Value 
Partictilars As at Asat Asiatt. AS at 

March 31, 2024 | March 31,2023 | Mare. 31,2024 | March 31, 2023 

Financial Assets at Amortized Cust: 

Cash, and Cash Equivalents 30,718.41 14.080,38 30,718.41 14,080.38 
Investment in Praject SPY 3,80. 163.42 1,39,553.52 3,80,163.52 1,39.553,52 
Loans & Adyances 22.40.043.05 8.90,606.66 224004305 8,90,608.66 
Other Financial Assets 97,708.63 56,363,00 97,708.63 36.363.00 
Total 27,48,633.61 11,00,603,56 27,48,633,61 ¥1,00,603.56 
Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost: 

Borrawings* 11,73,448,94 2,94.158.33 LE,73,448.4 3.94,158,33 
Trade Payables 769,75 346.57 769.75 346.57 
Other Financial Liabilities 5,162.05 5,129.59 5,162.05 5,129.59 

{Total #1,79,380;74 2,9,634.49]11,79,380.74 299,634.49 
The carrying value of current financial assets and other financial liabilities measured at amortised.cost are: considered to be same as their fair 
ridie ely due to their short term nature, 

Bi value of borrowings approximates the fair value.as the instruments sire at prevailing market-rate, 
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Statement of Contingent Liabilifies/Contingent Assets 

There are no contingent liabilities as at March 31,2024 (March 31,2023: Rs. Nil} 

Distribution made CAflLumounts in % lakh unless vtherwise stated) 

Particulars For the year ened For the year ended 
Marelr 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Interest 42,240.46 29,985.38 

Return of capital - . 

Dividend - - 
Other income ofthe Trust ‘ 602.92 240.39 
Total 42,943.38 HYS77 

39 Additional Regniatory fuformation 

Financial Ratios 

S.No. |Particulars As on Ason 

Moreh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

1 |Current Assetratio (Currert Assets (Current Liability) 7.35 $23 

2 |Debi- Equity ratio (Debi/ Equity) O75 0.37 

3 {Debt service coverage ratio (Operating Cash Jow/ External Debt Obligation) 3.46 4.60 
4 [laterest service coverage ratio (EBIT/ Finance cost) 488 5.68 
5 |Asset Cover ratio (valu of assels having pari-passu charecs/outstanding value 2.0) 3.21 

6 jNetworth 15.69.854,19 8.02.037.06 
7_{Net profit qfter tax 6,819,27 77,236.47 

8 (Oulstunding ecceemable preference shares (quantity and value) : - - 

9 bCapital redemplion resceve/debenture redemplion réserve : « - 

$0 {Long term debt to working capital HO.d0 5.22 

1] [Earning per unit. 12.85 U.76 
[2 [Bed debt to account receivable ratio - - 

13) {Current liability ratio 0.01 0.03 

14 | Tetal debt to total assets 0.43. 0.27 
15 [ROE ratio(Net Profit/ Equity) 8.16% 10.88% 
16_| inventory turnover ratio NA NA 
17 [Trade reegivable wrnover ralio NA WA 
18 [Trade payable tuindver ratio 2.70! 31 

LO. [Net Capital iurndver ratio (Total lncome / Nel Working Capital 1.21 1.76 

20 [Net profit ratio (Nel prolin/ Total Income) 77 62% 80.63% 
2) [Return on capital employed ratio (Net Profit plus. Finance Cost} (Equity + 4dr 8.60% 

Debd) 
22 [Return on investment (income oa Investment/ Average Cost of Investment) 496% 17.84% 

40 Disclosure of segment information pursuant te IND AS 108 "Operating Segments" 

The activities of the Trust mainly include investing, in infrastructure asseis primarily in the SPVs operating in the road sector. generate 

cash Mows for distribution lo unit holders, Based on the guiding principles given in Ind AS - 108 “Qperating: Seements”, this activity 

falls within a single operating segment. Further, ihe entire operations of the Trust are only in India and hence, diselosure of secondary / 

geographical segment information does not arise. Accordingly, requirement of providing disclosures under Ind AS 108 does nat arise. 
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Investment Management Fees 

i) The Investment Manager's fee ag per agreement dated 213 October-2020 will initially be Rs, 1.100. Lakh (Rupees Eleven Himdred 
Lakhs) per annum. 

ii) The Investment Management Agreement is revised and the fee with effect from Ist April 2023 has beer agreed at Rs’ 1,800 Lakhs 
(Rupees Eighteen hundred takhs} for the Financial Year 7023-24, 

iff} The management fee sel oul in paragraph (ii) above shall be subject to escalation an an annual basis at the-rate of 10% of the 
management fee for the previous year. 

iv} Any applicable: taxes. cess or charges, as the cage may be, shal! be in addition to the management fee and shall be payable by 
National Highways Infie Trust (NHIT} to the. Investment Manager (NHITMPL). 

Payment of frequency: Payment of management fee shall be made by National Highways Intra Trust (NFIT} to the Invesiment Manager 
(NAIEMPL) in advance on a quarterly basis at the beginning of gach-quarter of a financial year, 

The Board of Directors of the Investment Manager has declared distribution for January 2024 of Rs. 0.631 per unit which comprises of 
Rs. 0.606 per unit as interest and Rs. 0.025 per unit as other income on surplus funds at the Trast level in their meeting held on 4th 
March, 2024, Further, the Board of Directors of thé Investment Manager has declared distribution for February 2024 & March 2024 of 
Rs, 0.705 per unit which comprises of Rs. 0.687 pet unit as interesi and Rs. 0.018 per unit as other income on surplus funds atthe Trust 
level in their meeting held on 27th May. 2024, 

The Board of Directors of the Investment Manager has declared distribution for Quarter 3 of FY 2023-24 of Rs, 1.697 per unit which 
comprises of Rs. 1.693 per unil_as inierest and Rs. 0,004 per unit.as other income an surplus funds at the Trust level in their meeting 
heid on 2nd February, 2024, 

The Board of Directors of the Investment Manager had declared distribution for Quarter 2 of FY 2023-24 of Rs. 1.816 per unit which 

comprises of Rs. 1.774 per unit as interest afd Rs. 0.042 per unit as other income on surplus funds at the Trust level in their meeting 
heid on 8th November, 2023 and the Board of Directors of the Investment Manager had déclared distribution fer Quarter } of FY 2023- 
24 oF Rs. 1.754 per unit which comprises of Rs. 1.742 per unit as interest and Rs. 0.012 per unit as other income on surplus finds at the 
Trust level in their meeting held on [1th August, 2023. 

Key sources of estimation 

The preparation of financial statements in conlormity with. Ind AS requires the Trust makes estimates and assumptions that affect the 
réporied amounts of income and expenses of the period, the reported balances of assets and liabflities and the distlosures relating to 
contingent liabilities as of the date of the financial statements. The estimates and underlying, assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing 
basis. Revisions to-accounting catimates include allowance for doubtful loans /other receiv: abies, fair value méasurement ete, Difference, 
ifany, between the actual results and estimates is recofnised in the period in which the results are known. 

Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 23 “Borrowing Costs” 
Borrowing cost capitalised during the period ended March 31,2024 Rs, Nil [March 31 2023 : Rs, Nil] 

Default and breaches 
Phere are no defaults duri ing ihe year with reset to repayment ¢ of brine val and payment of interest and no breaches oF the lerms and 
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NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 

SEBI Registration Number :- IN/Inv¥T/20-21/0014. 
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2024 

Additional regulatory information required by Schedule IIL 

Details of benami property held 
The Trust does not hald any benami property-and no proceedings have been initiuted.against the trust under the Benami Transactions 
(Prohibition) Act, [988 and Rules made thereunder. 

Wilfai defaulter 

The Trust is not declared wilful defaulier by any bank or financial institution or any other lender during the year. 
The Trust have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the 
understanding (whether recerded in writing or otherwise) that the Trust shall 

(a} directly or Indirectly lend or favest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding 
Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

(by provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries 

The Trust have not advance or loaned or invested (either from borrowed fund or share premium or any other source or kind of fund} by 
the company to or in any person{s} or entily fies), including forcign entities (Funding Party} with the underslanding (whether recatded 
in writing or otherwise} that the Trust shall: 

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entittes identified 1 in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company 
(Ultiniate Beneliciaries) or 

(b) provide any guarantec, security or the like on behalf ofthe Ulumate Beneliciaries 
Undisclosed income 

The Trust have noi any such wansaction which jg not recorded in the books ef'accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as 
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act..1961 (such as, search r surveyor any other relevant 
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 196). 

Details of crypto currency or virtual currency 

The Trust has net traded or invested in oryplo currency or virtual currency dering the current or previous year. 
Derivative Contracts 

The Trust did sot have any long term contracts including derivative contrat far which there were any material [oreseeable losses, 
Relationship with struck off companies. 

The Trust does not have any transactions with the companies struck off under Section 248 ef conipanics Act 2013 and therefore no 

further disclosure required thereunder, 

Comparatives figures have been reclassified/regrouped wherever necessary to confirm to the current year classification. 

Fer and oa bebalf of Board of Directors of the 
For ALR. & Co. National Highways Infra Investment Managers 
Chartered Accountants Private Limited (Acting as Investment Manager of 
Firm Registration No, 062744C National Highways Infra Trust) 

2h 
oo 

CA Mohd. Azam Ansari Su Krishan Goyal = Mahavir Parsad Sharma 
Partner Director Director 
M.No. 311623 DIN: 02721580 DIN: G3 158413 

Cilia patel 
Date : 27th May 2024 Mathew George ingh 
Plate : New Delhi Chie! Financial Officer coe iancve Ollicer
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orporate and Correspondence 
Office:C-1, I] Floor, RDC, Raj Nagar 
Ghaziabad- 201001 Delhi-NCR National 
Capital region Of Delhi 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

To the Unit Holders of National Highways Infra Trust 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

OPINION 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of National Highways Infra Trust (hereinafter referred to as “the InvIT” or “the Trust’} and its two subsidiary (hereinafter referred to as “National Highways Infra Projects Private Limited” or “NHIPPL” and NHIT Eastern Projects Private Limited or “NEPPL”} (the Trust and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”}, which comprising of the consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the consolidated Statement of Changes in Unitholder’s Equity and the consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, the consolidated Statement of Net Assets at fair value as at 31 March 2024, the consolidated Statement of Total Returns at fair value; the Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows of the Trust and its subsidiaries for the year then ended and notes to the consclidated financial statements including a summiary of material accounting policy and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of our report on fitiancial statements of subsidiary and on the other financial information of the subsidiary, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 as amended from time to time including any guidelines and circulars issued thereunder (together referred to as the “SEBI InvIT Regulations”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards as defined in Rule 2(i)({a) of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015, as amended ("Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with SEBI InvIT Regulations, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group ag at 31 March 2024, its consolidated profit including other comprehensive income, its consolidated cash flows, its consolidated statement of changes in Unitl 
equity for the year ended 31 March 2024, its consolidated net assets at fait 



as at 31 March 2024, its consolidated total returns at fair value of the Graup and the net distributable cash flows of the Trust.and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2024, 

BASES FOR OPINION 

We conducted our audit of the consclidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (“SAs”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordanee with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the SEB] InvIT Regulations, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the 
_audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our.opinion on the consolidated financial statements. 

EMPHASIS OF MATTER 
a} We draw the attention to Note No, 54 to the financial statements regarding 

initial Improvement Werks. The group has recognized provision for initial improvement works on ist December 2023 amounting to Rs. 1,11,993.43 
lakhs with corresponding impact in Statement of Profit and Loss amounting to Rs. 1124.63 Lakhs and Rs. 2396.83 Lakhs on account of amortization of 
initial improvement work and unwinding of interest on provision of initial 
improvement respectively. 

b} We draw attention to Note 20 of the financial statements which describes 
that Major Maintenance Provision (MMR) is made based on the first cycle of 
overlay expected to occur in five to seven years and not based on the total 
Major Maintenance Cost estimated to be incurred over entire concession 
Period, The discounting rate used for arriving at the present value for MMR 
provisions is government bond rate of 30 years for projects acquired in first 
phase and 20 years for projects acquired in second phase, 

¢) We draw the attention to Note No, 10 to the financial statements regarding Capital Advance paid to National Highway Authority of India (NHAI). The appointed date for these acquisitions is with effect from ist April 2024, therefore the amount paid to NHAI has been classified as capital advance. Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters. 

KEY AUDIT MATTERS 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended 31 March 2024. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a Separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters +t be communicated in our report. 
PSs 



Assessinent of Impairment of Intangible 
Assets in form of Toll Collection Rights 

The Group operates toll. assets which is 
constructed on Toll, Operate and Transfer 
(TOT) basis. The carrying value of the toll 
collection rights as at March 31, 2024 ts Rs, 
1088670.84 Lakhs. 

In accordance with its accounting policy and 
requirements under Ind AS 36 “Impairment 
of Assets”, the Management has performed 
an impairment assessment by comparing the 
carrying value of the toll collection rights to 
their recoverable amount. 

For impairment testing, value in use has 
been determined by forecasting and 
discounting future cash flows. Further, the 
value in use is highly sensitive to changes in 
critical variable used for forecasting the 
future cash flows in cluding traffic 
projections and discounting rates. 

The determination of the recoverable 
amount of the toll collection right involves 
significant estimates and judgments and 
accordingly, the evaluation of impairment of 
toll collection rights has been determined as 
a key audit matter. (Refer Note No. 2.1 {d) & 
Note 2.1 (r) of accounting policy relating to 
Intangible Assets and Note No. 44° of 
Consolidated Financial Statements for the 
year ended 31.03.2024) 

Our ‘Au dit Procedures 
inclided the following ;- 

e Verified the 
appropriateness of the 
Group’s accounting poliey 
on impairment of 

Intangible Assets and 
Valuation Methodology 
applied in determining 
the recoverable amount. 

* Checked the Impairment 
Sheet provided by the 
Management. 

© Obtained the 
Management 

Representation on the 
assumptions around the 
key drivers of the revenue 
Projections, future cash 
flow, discount rates / 
weighted average cost of 
capital that were used by 
them. 

e Tested the arithmetical 

Assessment of lnpairment of Goodwill on 
Consolidation 

Goodwili on consolidation is tested for 
impairment as per ind AS 36 on an annual 
basis by the Group using enterprise value of 
respective subsidiary company to which the 
goodwiil relates to, 

Enterprise value calculation involves use of 
future cashflow projections, discounted to 

accuracy of the 
Impairment sheet. 

Our Audit Procedures 
included the following :- 

* Verified the 
appropriateness of the 
Group’s accounting policy 
on impairment of 
Goodwill and Valuation 
Methodology applied in 
determining the 
enterprise value. 



Present value, terminal value and other 
variables. These use of 
projections and estimates results in inherent 
risk of error with respect to the valuation of 
Goodwill and accuracy of irnpairment loss, if 
any. 

‘Goodwill amounting to Rs. 10,144.46 Lakhs 
as on March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023: 
10,144.46 Lakhs) arising out of business 
combination as per Ind AS 103 has been 
tested for impairment by the management. 
(Refer Note No. 2(c) & Note No-2.1 (r) for 
accounting policy relating to Goodwill on 
Consolidation, Note No, 44 of Consolidated 
Financial Statements for the year ended 
31.03.2024) 

management 

Projections, 

Checked thé Impairment 
Sheet provided by the 
Management. 

Obtained the 
Management 
Representation on the 
assumptions around the 
key drivers of the revenue 

future cash 
flow, discount rates / 
weighted average cost of 
capital that were used by 
them. 

Tested the arithmetical 
accuracy of the 

Therefore, Impairment of Goodwill has been Impairment sheet, 
‘considered as a Key Audit Matter. 
Provisioning of Major | Our Audit Procedures 
Maintenance/Petiodic 
Maintenance/resurfacing expenses (Refer 
Note No. 20 and 53 of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements) 

As per Concession Agreement, the Group is 
obligated to perform regular maintenance 
along with periodic maintenance of road 
assets during the entire concession period. 
The Periodic maintenance includes resurface 
of pavements, repairs.of structures and other 
equipment and maintenance of service 
roads. The Group has estimated -the 
provision required towards major 
maintenance in accordance with Ind AS 37 
“Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 
Contingent Assets”. The Provision made by 
the Group over the Concession involves 

included the following :- 

Understood the Group's 
Process associated with 
the estimation of 
resurfacing obligation. 

Verified the requirement 
under Concession 
agreement and Group’s 
accounting policy. 

Tested the assumption 
used in determining the 
major maintenance 
provision. 

Tested the arithmetical 
detailed Calculation and Judgement and accuracy and also 
accordingly, the major maintenance expense verified the disclosure in 
is considered to be the Key audit Matter. the Consolidated 

Financial Statements. 
Computation and disclosures as | Our Audit Procedures. 
prescribed in the SEBI InvIT regulations | included the following :- 
relating to Consolidated Statement-of Net 
Assets at Fair Value and Consolidated | « Obtained the Total Returns at Fair Value understanding of the 

requirements of SEBI As per SEBI InviT regulations, the Trust is InvIT regulations for required to disclose statement:-of net assets disclosures + a. 
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at fair value.and statement of total returns at Consolidated Statement fair value. The fair value is determined by of Net Assets at Fair Value forecasting and discounting future cash 
flows from the operations of the investee 
entities which involves management 
estimates and judgements. These estimates 
and judgements include discounting rates, 
Tax rates and inflation rates which are | Assessed the Valuation 

and Consolidated 
Statement of Total 
Returns at Fair Value. 

considered for computing the fair value, Report issued by the 
. a ; Independent Valuer There is an inherent risk in the computation engaged by the of fair value due to the use of estimates and = 

judgements mentioned above, management. Also 
assessed the 

Therefore, computation and disclosures of appropriateness of the Consolidated statement of net assets at fair Trust's valuation value and Consolidated Statement of total methodology applied in returns at fair value is considered as a Key determining the fair Audit Matter. values. 

Refer Note-2.1(r) Significant Accounting . Assumptions — Fair Value and Disclosures |* Obtained Management and Statement of net assets at fair value and representation in this Statement of total returns at fair value in the respect. 
Consolidated financial statements. 

© Tested the arithmetical 
accuracy of computation 
in the statement of net 
assets and total returns at 
fair value. 

e Ensuréd that disclosures 
is in compliance with 
SEBI InvIT regulations 
relating to the statement 
Of net assets at fair value 
and the statement of total 
returns at fair value. 

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR'S REPORT THEREON 

The Board of Directors of the Investment Manager is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Report of Investment Manager including annexures to Investment Manager's Report and other information as required to be given by SEBI InvIT Regulations, but does not.include the consolidated financial statements and our report thereon. 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurancé conclusion thereon, 
In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial Statements, our responsibility isto read the other information and, in doing so, 



the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or aur Kriowléedge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated, 

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF INVESTMENT MANAGER FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Board of Directors of investment Manager is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, consolidated statement of Profit & Loss including other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated statement of changes. in Unitholder’s equity for the year ended 31 March 2024, the consolidated net assets at fair value as at 31 March 2024, the consolidated total returns at fair value of the Group and the net distributable cash flows of the Trust and its subsidiary for the year ended 31 March 2024 in accordance with the requirements of the SEBI [nvIT Regulations, Indian. Accounting Standards as defined in Rule 2(1)} {a) of Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, to the extent not inconsistent with SEBI InvIT Regulations. The respective Beard of Directors of the subsidiary company included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities: selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal -financial controls for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud and error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Board of Directors of Investment Manager, as-aforesaid. 

in preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Board of Directors of Investment Manager and respective Board of Directors of the company included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends ta liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

The Board of Directors of the Investment Manager and the respective Board of Directors: of the subsidiary company included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group, 

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
; . 



Our objectives are. to obtain reasonable assurance whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted’ in accordance with SAs will always detéct a material. misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can ‘arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial staternents. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal 
control. 

© Obtain.an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls, 
* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors of the Investment Manager. 
¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors of Investment Manager use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that May cast significant dotibt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a Boing concern. 

* Evaluate the overall presentation, Structure and content of the consolidated 
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events ina manner that achieves fair presentation. 

e Qbtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the. financial information of the entities or business activities within the Group of which ‘we are the independent auditors, to eXpress an opinion on the consolidated financial statements; We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance. of the audit of financial statements of such entities included ‘in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion, 
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial 
statements that, individually er in aggregate, makes it probable that the ecanomic 
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the finanéial Statements may be 
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in {i} 
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; 
and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified. misstatements in the financial 
statements. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant. audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during 
our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a Statement that we have 
camped with relevant ethiéal requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably 
be thought te bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we 
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the 
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely 
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in 
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 

Based on our audit and as required by SEBI InvIT Regulations, we report that: 

a] We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to 
the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our 
audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements. 

b) the consolidated Balance Sheet, the conselidated Statement of Profit and Loss, 
the consolidated Statement of Cash Flows, the consolidated Statement of 
Changes in Unitholders’ Equity, the consolidated Statement of Net Assets at fair 
value, the consolidated Statement of Total Returns at fair value and the 
Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows of the Trust and its subsidiary dealt 
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

¢) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards. as defined in Rule 2(1){@) of Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, to the extent not inconsistent 
with SEBI InviT regulations. 



d) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investar 
Protection and Education Fund by the Trust, 

For A. R, & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 
FRN. 002744¢ 

CA Mohd Azam Ansari 
Partner 
Membership No: 511623 
UDIN: 2M B W623 ReCSSHANG 
Place: New Dethi 
Date: 27.05.2024 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INF RA TRUST 
SEBI Registration Number :- IN/InyIT/20-21/0014 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH31, 2024 

(All -nriounts jn & lakti untess otherwise atated) Particulars 
Note Asal As at. . 
No. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 ASSETS 

1} Non - Current Assets 
(@) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 219.39 125.17 (b) Capital work in Progress (CAWIP) 4 19.76 . {c) Goodwill 5 LO144.46 (0,144.46 (4) Other Intangible assets 6 10,88,670.84 10,01,408.09 (e) Financial Assets 

(i) Other Financial Assets 7 10,177.86 9,072.44 (f} Detarted Tax. Assels {net} § 11,523.20 4,695.32 (2) Non -Current Tax Assets {Net} ¥ 22.38 12.06 (hi) Other-Non Current. Assets 10 15,70,649.18 * ‘Fotal non-current assets 
26,91 ,426.97 10,26,039,.54 .2) Current Asscty 

{a) Financial Assets 

(8 Trade receivables 11 365.2) 350,87 (ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 12 46,400.78 21,124.08 (ii) Bank Balanees Other than Cash & Cash Equivalents I3 512.98 - (ili) Other finarcial assets 14 asd 6.45 (b} Other current assits 15 2,303,89 1,634.06 Total current assets 
49,607.39 23,115.66 TOTAL ASSETS 

27,41,034.36 10,49,155.20 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
EQUITY 
1) Unit Capital 16 14,67,093.47 741,604.32 2) Initial settlement amount 

O10 0.10 3) Other Equity 
\? (27,541 44) (2,469,386) Total Equity 

14,39,552.13 739 134,56 LIABILITIES 
1) Now-Current Jeibilllies 

{a) Finaneéial fiabilities 
() Borrowings 

18 11,63,394,94 2,92,158.33 {ii} Other Financial abilities 19 80.90 ” (b) Provisions 
20 35,923.32 6,318.81 ‘Total non-cutrrent Habilities 

£1,99,399,16 298 477.14 2) Current liabilities 
(2) Financial Habilities 

- 
G) Borrowings 21 10,054.00 2,000.00 (2) Trade Payables 22 

(a} Total Outstanding, dues of niicro and small 
enerprises 

275.99 137,23 (b) Totai outstanding, dues af éreditors other tan 
imicro and smatl enterprises 4479.00 3,871.17 (ti?) Other financial liabilities 23 722453 5,284.95 (b) Provisions 

24 79 404.66 1,56 {c) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 25 181.66 8.98 (d) Other current liabilities 26 463.23 |. 240.61 Total current Fabiilties 102,083.07 11,543.50. Fotsl nbilities. 
13.01,482.23 3,10,020,64 TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES 27,41,034,36 10,49, 155.20 

Material Accounting Policies 1-2 
‘The accompanying votes form an integral part of these consolidated 3-66 
financial statements, 
This is-the Consolidated Batince Sheet referred to in our re port of even date, 

For AR. & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

Finn Registration no. 0027-4C 

CA Med. Aram 
Parine+ 

M.No.511623 

Date: 27th May 2024 

Place: New Delhi 

nsart 

For and on behalf Board ofthe National Highways infra 
Investrnent MTattagers Private Limited (lavestment 
Muriager of Natio; Highways latra Trust} 

{feo 
= 

Mahavir Parsad Sharma 
Director 
DIN; 03158413 

Geet Gury n ihe 
Co Chief Financial Officer liatice Ofticer. 

Birectar ; 
DIN: 02721480 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS.INFRA TRUST 
SEBI Registration Ninibér :- IN/InvIT/20-21/0014 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS.FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 

(All amounts in 2 bakl: unless othenyise siuied) 
a 

Note For the year-ended For the yerr ended Particulars No.. Mareit 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 
INCOME 

Revenue from Operations 27 94,390,277 68,717.20 Interest Income 28 871.71 37043 Profil on sale of investnients 29 214116 67117 Other iivome 
30 $9.53 326.11 TOTAL INCOME 

OFAC AT 70,087.91" 
EXPENSES 

investment Manger Fee 
1,860.00 1,263.70 Trusteeship Fee 

9.60 960 Valuation expenses 
11,07 400 Arial listing fees 
53.80 20,00 Rating fees. 
773 020 Insuraace expenses 

737.9 G2h74 Custodian Fets 
3.55 bd Project Management Fees 

1,168.20 09120 Operating Expenses 31 13,665.60 9,025.5 Employee Benefits. Expenses , a2 1,156.60 28943 Pinance Cost 
33 28,023.17 16,621.32 Depreciation & Amortization Expense 34 24,771.04 17,560,63 Atsdit Fees a5 

- Statutory audit fees 
18.49 713 ~ Other audit services (inchiding certification) 
Ln 093 Other Expenses 

36 2,569.63 1924.97 FOTAL EXPENSES 
73,997.70 48,317,23 

Profit / (Loss) hefure Tax 
23,465.47 ZL 740.58 Tax Expenses 37 

Current Tax 
886,30 473,89 Current tax - éarlier-years 
(2,52) on Doelerred Tax expensedared it} 

{6,837,88) (4,422.79) Total Tax 
954.10) (3,948.89) 

Profit/ (loss) for the year 
29,419,537 35,689.57 

Other Comprekensive Incame 
lems that will-not be reclassified te Profit or Loss 

0.10 * lncome tax rélating to items that will not be reclassified to-prafit or loss 0.03 - 
0.13 . Total Comprehensive. ineome fur the year > 29,419.70 25,689, 57 Earnings per Unit 

Basic 
38 3,90 3.9) Diluted 
38 3.90 3.91 

Material Accounting Policies ; 1-2 The accompanying notes foriti an, bilegesl part of these consolidated 
financial statemeuls, 

3-66 
This is the Statertent of Profit and Lass teferred te in cur report of even date. 

For ACR. & Co. 
For and on behalf Board of the National Highways Infra Investment Chartered Accountants Ze Re Oy Maaagers Private Limited (Investment Manager of Natiorial Firm Registration vio, 002744C ee SE ‘ Highways Infra Trnst} 

- ma . Bi New De 5 
\W2 

o oy 
CA Mohd. Azan Ansari eur) ol 

Mahavir Parsad Shatoia Partner a \ Director M.No, 511423 
DIN: 02721580 DIN:.03 158413 

ts Pee, byt 
Date : 27 th.May 2024 

Mathew George: Gunj ie Place - Nei Delhi 
Chief Financial Officer Col pliance Officer 



_ NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST _ 
SEBI Registration Number :- IN/InvIT/20-21/0014 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 
(All anroun(s, in Z laklé untess otherwise stated} 

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 

A, OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 23,465.47 21,740.68 
Adjustments for : 
Depreciation and Amortization 24,771.04 17,560.63 
Profit on redemption of mutual fords (2,141.16) (671.17) 
Interést incorne trom FDR: (871.71) (373.43) 
Finance Cost (net} 25,015.90 16,590.17 
Provision for major maintenance expenses $.444.05 5,879.20 
Unwinding interest on major maintenance provision 2,867:62 24.95 
Provision for Leave encashment and Gratuity 52.43 11.93 
Provision for expected credit Joss - $9.60 
Bad debts written off : 9.90 
Operating Profit/(Loss) before Working Capital Changes 81,603.64 601,832.46 

Working Capital Adjustments: 
Decrease / (Increase) in Trade & Other Receivables (34.34) 180.10 
Decrease / (Increase) in Other Non Current Financial Assets 2.52) (208.83) 
Decrease / (Increase) in Other Noo Current/Current Assets (516.99) (834.96) 
Decrease / (Increase) in Other Current Financial Assets (293.92) {293,53} 
Increase / (Decrease} in Trade & Other Payables 127.68 3.207,01 
Increase / (Decrease} in Other Financial Liabilities 188.39 37.30 
Increase / (Decrease) in Provisions (3.47) (O13 
Increase / (Deerease) in Other Current Liabilities 229.97 (O14) 

(42.00) 2,167.02 
Income Tax paid (721,42) (626.67) 
Net Cash Flows from/(ased in} Operating Activities 80,461.22 62,572.85 

B. INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment, including CWIP, capital 
creditors and capital advances (15,82,977.68) (2.85, 101.04) 
Investment in FDR. (951.26) (6,299,139) 
Interest received on maturity of FDR 810.99 189.55 
Profit on redemption of mutual funds 241.16 671.17 
Net cash flows from (used in) Investing activities (15,80,976,79) (2,90,539,5 1) 

C. FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Proceeds from Issue of Unit Capital 7.27,206.41 143,013.67 
Expense incurred towards initia! public debt offering - (1,689.00) 
Expense incurred towards institutional unit allotment (1.471 46) (1,099.13) 
Precessing Fee paid (1,482.16) {197.00} 
Distribution to Unit Holders (54,491.29) {34,927,86) 
Proceeds itom Long Term Borrowings {net of processing fees} 884,700.00 1,50,000.00 
Financing charges paid {24,909.51} (11,180.86) 
Repayment of Long Term Borrowings (3,759.73) (1,010,983 
Net cash flows from (used in) Financing activities 15,25,792.26 2,42,908.84 
Net Encrease/Decrease in Cash and Cash equivalents (A+B+C) 25,276.69 14,742.14 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 21,124.08 6,381.94 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 46,400.78 21,124.08 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST SEBI Registration 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CAS 

‘Reconciliation of Habilitics avising from Finaricing Activities pursuant to Ind AS:7. 

Number :- INAnvIT/20-21/0014 
H FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024 

Statementof Cash F lows. 

Particutars 
For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 a) Carrying amount of debt at the beginning of the year 

2,94,158.33 146,537.80 
b) Additional borrowings during the year 

8,84, 700.00 130,000.00 
c) Repayments dixing the yedr 

(3,759.73) (7,010.98) 
d) Other adjustments/settlements during the year 

Cc - 
¢) Transaction Cost adjustment 

(1,649.66) (1,368.49) 
f} Unwinding of interest 

: - 
a) Carrying amount of debétat the end of the year 

11,73,448,.94 2,94, 158.33 | This is thé Consolidated Cash Fiows Statement referred to in our report of even date. 

For A.R.& Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration no. 0274. 

For and on behalf of the National Highways Infra Investment Managers Private Lim ited (Investment 
ional Highways tufra Trust) 

CA Mohd. Azam Ansari 
Partner: 

MLNo.31 1623 

‘rishan Goyal 
Director 
DIN: 02721580 

Director 

DIN: 03158413 

Mahavir Parsad Sharma 

Date : 27th May 2024 
Place : New Delhi 

yell Mathew Gearge 
Chief Financial OReer 

igh 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
SEBI Registration Number :~ IN/InvET/20-21/0014 

Disclosures pursuant to SEBI circulars (SEBI Master Circular No. CIRSEBI/HO/DDHS_Div3/P/CIR/2021/1673 dated 29 November 2021 issued under the InvIT regulations) 

Consolidated Statement af Net Assets at Fuir Value (AH amounts are in Z lakh unless otherwise stated) 
As at March 31, 2024 As at Mareh 31, 2023 Particulars Book value Fair valite* Book valuc Fair value* 

A, Assels 27,41.034.36 29,47.706.90 10,49,155,20 11,68,123,00 B. Liabilities (at book yalue} (3,01,482.24 13.01,482,.24 310.020, 64 3.10,020.64 C. Net asséts (A-B) 14,39,552,12 16,46,224,66 7,39,134.56 8,585101.36 D.No of units: 1:31.22,00,600,00 1,31,22.00,600.00 72,64,05,200.00 72,64.05,200.00 E. NAV (CID) 109.71 125.46 101.75 118.13 

*Fair values of total assets relating to the Trust as at March 31, 2024 & March 31, 2023 as disclosed ubove are based on the independeut valuer repart, 

Consolidated Statement of Total Return-at Fair Valuer (AlLameunts are in 3 lakh unless atherwise stated) Farticulars 
As at AS at 

March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 

Total comprehensive Income far the year (Ag per the Consolidated 29,419.70 25,089.57 Statement ol Pratt and Lass) 
Add: Other changes in [bir value for the year * 2.06,.672,54 [18,006.80 [Total return 

2,36,092.24 1 H,656.37 | 

* In the abave statement, other changes in fair value for the year ended March.31. 2024 & March 31,2023 have beer computed based on the independent yaluer repart. 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements. 
This is the Coasatidated Statement of Net Assels at Fair Value and Consolidated Statement of Total Return at Fair Value referred to jn our reporLoféven date, 

For AR & Co. 
For and on behall of the National Highways latra Chartered Accountants 
lavestment Managérs Private Limited (Investment 
Manager of National Highways Infra Trust) 

Firm Registration no, W2744C 

\W?has a 
CA Mohd. AziaMinsari Sugesh KrisHan Goyat Mahavir Parsad Sharma Partner 

Director Director M.No.511623 
DIN: 02721580 DIN: 03358413 

Date : 271k May 2024 
Place : New Delhi 

Mathew Genrge 
Chief Financial Officer omipliance Officer 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
SEBI Registration Number :- INnvIT/20-21/0014 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES EN UNIT HOLDER'S EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 3H, 2024 

A, Initial Settlement Amount 

{Al amounts in % lakleumless othervise stated) 
Particuiars 

Amount 
Balance as at April 1, 2022 

0.10 Changes in unit capital 
. Balance as at Mareh 3! 2023 

0.10 
Changes in unit capital - 
Eslance as at March 31, 2024 

0.10 

B. Unit Capital * 

Particulars Number of wnit Amount 
Balance as at April 1,-2022 

39,52,00,000 5,99,442.82 Changes in unit capital 13,12,05,200 1,43.013.67 
One time issue expenses 

(852.17) 
Balance sis at March 31, 2023 72,64,05,200.00 741,604.32 Changes in unil capital 

38,57,95,400.00 727,206.43 One time issue expenses 
(1.74720) Balance a5 at Mareh 31, 2024 1,31,22.00,600 14,67,093,.47 

Issue expenses of Rs, 1,717.26 lakhs (Murch 31, 2023; Rs $52.17 lakhs) incurred in connection with issue of units have been reduced from the 
Unithalders capital in aceordance with ind AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation 

C. OTHER EQUITY ** 

(All ainqunts in 2 fakh wnless othervise staiced) 

Items of Other Comprehensive 

Income Reserves and Surplis . : Particulars Items that-will not be reclissified te ‘Toial 
Profit or lass 

Retained Earnings Remeasurement of Defined Benefit 

Obligation/ Plan 
Balance as at Aprit 1, 2022 6768.43 - 6,768.43 
Prodit! (Lass) for the year _25.689,57 - 25,689.57 
Less: 

Distribuuion Lo wit holders 

Interest 34,183.66 - 54,183.06 
Other Income 744,20 “ FAM 

Balance as at March 31, 2023 (2,469.86) - (2,469.86) 
Profit’ (Loss) for the yer 29,1 19.57 0.13 29.419,70 
Less: 

Distribution .o unit holders* 

Imerest 53,701.68 + 53,701.68 
Other Income 789.60 - 789,60 

Balance as at March 31, 2024 (27,545.87) 0.13 (27,541.44) 

“Phe distribution relates to the distributions during te financial year along with the distribution related to the last quarter of FY 2022-23 and does not 
inelude the distribution relating to ihe period February G1, 2024 to March 31, 2024 which will be paid after March 31. 2024, The distrittitions by the 
Trust to its unjt holders are based on the Net Distributible Cash Flows of the Trust under the SEBI InytT Regulaticns, 

* Refer Nole No. 16 
** Refer Note No. 17 

For AR. & Ca. 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Registration no. 002744C 

For and on behelf of the National Highways Infra Investineat 
Managers Private Limited (Investment Manager of National 
Highways Infra Trust} 

Ws 

CA Mohd, Agim Ansari Splvesif ir hin Goyal ‘Mahavir Parsad Sharnia 
Partner Difector Director 
M.No.5 11623 DIN: 0272 1580 DENS 031 38443 

7 ae 
J fff Date : 27th May 2024 “ 5 tA a 

Place > New Delhi Pa 

Mathew George 

Chief Financial Officer 

wie 

: Officer 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS. INFRA TRUST SEBI Registration Number :- ENnvIT/20-21/0014 Disclosures pursuant te SEB circulars, (SEBIM aster Circular No, CIRSEBLHO/DDIIS_Div3/P/CTR/202 WV1673 dated 29th 
Noveniber, 2021 issued under the InviT regulations} 

a. Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) at Trust Levet NHIT 

(All smounts in € lakh unless otherwise alitud) 
8. 

Particulars 
For the year ended | For the year edd | 

No. 
. 

Stst March 2024 Hist March 1023 
i /Prefit after tax as per Statement of profit and lossfincome and expeaditare 96,819.27 TH23617 

(Standatone) (A} 
2 |Add: Depreciation and ditortization a3 per Statement of profit aud joss account. incase of - 

Inpairrient reversal, same diceds to be deducted from Profit and loss. 3_|Add/Less: Lossfeain on sale of infrastructure assets 
- 

4 |Add: Proceeds from sale.of in frastracture assets adjusted for the following: 
- 

related debts settled or duc to be settled from sale proceeds: directly attributable transaction costs; 
Proceeds reinvesied of planned to be reinvesled ag per Regulation 18(7)fa) of the EnvIT regulations 
Add: Proceeds from sate af infrastructure assets hot distributed purstant to an earlicr plan to . 
re-invest, if such proceeds are not intended to be invested subsequently, net of any profit) (loss) recoenised in profitand loss aeeaunt 

6 jAdd/ Less: Any other item of none cash expense/-noa cash income (iet of actual cash flows (82,058.64) (45,002.00) 
Jor these items}, if deeried necessary by the Investment Manager, For example, any decreagey increase in carrying amount of an asset or a liability recognised in profil and loss /inedme and expendilure cn measurement of the assel or the liability at fair value: 
Interest cost as per effective interest rate method, deferred tax ledse rents recoguised on 9 straight line basis, etc. 

ea
 

7 |Less: Repayment of external debt (principal) / redeemable prefercnce shares # debentures, (4,206.73) {1.01 0,98} 
ete. (excluding refinancing) net cash set aside to comply with DSRA requirement onder loan igreements,, 

8 | Tots! Adjustinent {B) 
‘ (86,264.77) (46,012.99) 

Net Surplus (C) = (A+B) (NDCRY] 

10,554.50 31,223.19 

10_| Add: Income recoen ised in previous year and received in this year 
46,688.43 10,651.43 

TE [Less Foteres, expenses recupnised in previous year and paid in this year 
(5,129.59) - 

2 ([Distibutable Cash Faw 

52,003.55 41,874.32 
13 jLess: Amount already disirilated to Uniholders {fer the period front April 23 to Jin 244PY; 42,843,377 30.235.78 

for the period front-April 22 to December 22)) 
14 [Balance Net Diisteiytable Casi Flaws for the year ended March. 31, 26%4 

9,269.97 11,648,534 | 
avg 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
SEBI Registration Number :-EN/LavIT/26-2 1/0014 Disclosures pursuant to SEBI cireulars (SEBI Master Circular No. CIRSEBVTO/DDHS_Div3/P/CIR2021/1 673 dated 294h 

November, 2027 issued under the Tayi reguittions) 

b. Statenient of Net Disiriutable Cash Flows {NDCE) at SP¥ Level (NHIPPLY 

(ALE ammiinds in Ziokh unless atheryise shited} 

Ls i 
. . 

he year ended! Bar the year ended 

5, No, 
Particulars 

orihe y . * 
N armeuie 

March 31,2024 |  Mareh 31.2023 | JProfit/-{Less) alter tax as pet Statement of profit and lossfincome and expenditure (65,433.38) (31,546.61) (standalone} (A) 

2 Add: Depreciation and amortization a per statement of profit aiid loss account, Incase o 24,770,91 (7,560,63° 
Impairthent reversal, same needs to be deducted from prufit and toss, 

3 JAdd/Less: Loss’gain on sale of inlrasteneture assets 
- - 4 Adil Proceeds fluin sale of infrastructure assests adjusted for the following: 

* related debts settled or due 1a be settled from sale proceeds: 
direcily atiriluituble-iransaction costs; 
Proceeds reinvested or planned-ia be reinvésted as per Regulation 1S¢7)}a} of the Int regulations 

3 |Add: Proceeds from site of infrastructure assels not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan (142,72), (134.38) lo reinvest, if such proceeds are not intended to be invested subsequentty. fet of any profit’ (loss) recognised in-profit find loss account. * 
& |Add? Less; Any other item of nen- cash expense/ fin cash ingame (net. of actual cush flows (25,403.04 90,736.45 

for these items), if deemed aecessiry by (he Tavestament Manager, 
For exuripfe,tny decrease? increase in carrying amoutit of an asset or a Hobilily recegniged iv profit and toss income and expenditure on measurement of the asset or the Ijabitity-at thir values 

Interest cost ts per effective interest rate twethod, diferred tay lease rents Feconnised ha straight line basis, ete, 

7 [ Less: Repayment of external debt (principal) / redeemable prefirence shares / debentures, (304,20) (4,004,003 
vic. (excluding refinancing) J net cash sét aside te comply with DSRA requirement onder] loan agreements, ** 

8 _|Total Adjustinenis (1) 
149,526.96 1,12,658.71 9 [Net Distriliutable Cask Flows (C} = (A+R) 
84,003, 59° SE12.10 

* This inchides amount utilized for purchase of Property, Plant and Equijiment'’s and Intangible Assets ** As at 31-03-2024 this includes Fixed Deposit of Rs. 504.26 Lakhs lien marked in fiver of Bank of Mahacashtrs against Performance Bank 
Guarantee issued in favour of NHAI. 
Adjustriyctit to Net Distributable Cash Flows 
&. No No. 

sapaf 
For ihe year ended | For the year ended Particulars March 31,2024 | March 31,2023 Net Distributable Cash How for the year (From{€) Abive) 

$4,093.58 61,912.10 
2 [Less Actual Distri button during the. year 

(82, 549-93) (58,661,013 
| Balurice 

1543.05 2,450.09 
Add: Opening Surplus (Opening Cash adjusted with Net working Capital as on 31-0- 3 42023) 

3,896.29 - 
4 [ess Cash Set Aside For juovémnet.in net working capital ag on3 1-03-3024 

4254.05) * 
Bataiice Disiributabfe Cush low*** 

5,184.93 2.451.090" + Rs, 5,163.05 lakhs of Cash out of Balance Distributable cash as on 31st March 2024 has beon distributed to Trust in April 2034, 

%) 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
SEB] Registration Number :-IN/InvIT/20-21/0014 

Disclosures pursuant to SEBI circulars (SEBI Master Circular No, CIRSEB/HO/DDHS_Div3/P/CIR/2021/1673 
dated 29th Noveriber, 2021 issued under the InvIT regulations) 

¢. Statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCF) at SPV Level (NEPPL) 

(Allamounts in 2 Inkl unless aihenvise stated) 

For the year ended S.No. Particulars March 31, 2024 

(Andited) 
] Profit/ (Loss) after tax as per Statement of profit and loss/income and expenditure (1,693.38) 

(standalone) (A) 

2 |Add: Depfeciation and amortization as per statement of profit and loss account. Incase off 0.13 
Impairment reversal, same rieeds to be deducted from profit and loss, 

3 Aidd/Less: Loss/gain on sale of infrastructure assets . 
4 |Add: Proceeds fromm sale of infrastructure.assests adjusted for the following: . 

related debts setiled or due to be settled from sale proceeds: 
directly attributable transaction costs; 

proceeds reinvested or planned to be reiavested as per Regulation #8(7}(a) of the InvIT regulations 

5 jAdd: Proveeds from sale of infrastructure assets not distributed pursuant to an earlier plan to re- (0.50) 
invest, if such proceeds are not intended to be invested subsequently, net of any profit/ (less) 
recognised in profit and lass account, * 

6 |Add/ Less: Any other item of non- cash expense/ non eash income (net of actual cash flows for} 4,217.93 
these items), if deemed necessary by the Investment Manager, 
For example, any decrease! increase in carrying amount of an asset or a liability recognised in profit 
and loss income and expenditure on measurement of lhe asset or the liability at fair value: 
Interest cost a8 per effective interest rate method, deferred tax lease rents-recognised on a straight 
line basis, ete,** 

7 |Less: Repayment of extemal debt (principal) / redeemable preference shares / debentures, ete. - 
(excluding refinancing} / net cash set aside to comply with DSRA requirement under loan 
agreements, 

8 Total Adjustments (B) 2,217.57 
o Net Distributable Cash Flews (C) = (A+B)** $24.19 

* This includes amount utilized for purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment’ and Intangible Assets 
** The distributable cash flows are retained for working capital requirements of the Company. 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

GROUP INFORMATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS 
The consolidated financial statements comprise financial statements of National Highways Intra 
Trust (“the Trust” or “InvIT”) and its subsidiaries (Project SPV — National Highways Infra 
Projects Private Limited (NHIPPL) & NHIT Eastern Projects Private Limited (NEPPL)) 
(collectively, the Group). 

The Trust is an irrevocable irust registered under the provisions of the Indian Trusts Act, 1882 on 
October 19, 2020. It is registered under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Infrastructure 
Investment Trust) Regulations, 2014 on October 28, 2020 having registration number 
IN/InvIT/20-7 1/0014. 

‘The ‘Trust was setup by National Highways Authority of India (“NHAI” or the “Spensor”), an 
Tnfrasiructure Development Trust in India. The Trustee to the Trust is IDB] Trusteeship Services 
Limited (the “Tirustee”) and Investment Manager for the Trust is Nationa! Highways Infra 
Investment Managers Private Limited (“Investment Manager”). , 

The Trust has been formed to invest in infrastructure assets primarily being in the road sector in 
India. The Trust's road projects are implemented and held through special purpose vehicles 
(“Project SPVs"/ “Subsidiaries™). The units of the Trust were listed in Bombay Stock Exchange 
and National Stock Exchange on November 10, 2021. 

During FY 21-22, the Trust acquired 100% equity control in National Highway Infra Projects 
Private Limited (the “Project SPV") from the Sponsor with effect from November 03,2021. The 
Project SPV (NHIPPL) has entered into five concession agreements with National Highway 
Authority of India ((NHAI") on March 30, 2021 for Tolling, Management, Maintenance and 
Transter of five toll road projects for a period of 30 years from the. A ppointed Date. The Appointed 
Date has commenced on 16.12.2021. 

In previous financial year, Project SPV (NHIFPL) entered into three new concession agreements 
with National Highway Authority of India CNHAI”) en September 26, 2022 for Tolling, 
Management, Maintenance and Transfer of three toll road projects for a period of 20 years from 
the Appointed Date. The Appointed Date has commenced on 29.10.2022. 

During Current financial year, the Trust has invested in the equity share capital of the NHIT 
Eastern Projects Private Limited (Project SPV - NEPPL} & holding 100% equity share capital. 

The Project SPV (NEPPL)has entered into seven concession agreements with National Hi ghway 
Authority of India “NHAI"} for Tolling, Management, Maintenance and Transfer of seven toll 
road projects for a period of 20 years from the Appointed Date. The Appointed Date Has 
commenced on 01.04.2024, 

The registered office of the Trust is G-5 & 6, Sector-10, Dwarka, Delhi - 110075. 

The consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance With resolution 
passed by the board of directors of the Investnient Manager 27" May, 2024. 
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NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

a) Basis of Preparation 

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group cemprising of the Consolidated Balance 

Sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 

Comprehensive Income), the Consclidated Statement of Cash Flows. the Consolidated Statement 
of Changes in Unitholders’ Equity for the year then ended, the Consolidated statement of Net 
Assets at fair value-as at March 31, 2024, the- Consolidated statement of Total return at fair value, 

and the Consolidated statement of Net Distributable Cash Flows (NDCFs) for the year then ended 
and a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory notes have been prepared in 

accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard as defined in Rule 2(1)(a) of the Companies 

(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS”), and other accounting 

principles generally accepted in India to the extent not iticonsistent with the InvIT Regulations, 

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group for the Year ended March 31, 2024 has been 

prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard, as defined in Rule 2(1\(a) of the 

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended} (“Ind AS”) and other 

accaunting principles generally accepted in India to the extent not mconsistent with the Securities 
Exchange Board of India (Infrastructure Investment Trusts) Regulations, 2014 (“InvIT 

regulations”) (as amended) including SEB! Master Circular SEBI/HO/DDHS-PoD- 

2/P/CIR/2023/115 dated July 06, 2023 herein after referred to as “SEBI Master Circular”. Refer 

note 16 on presentation of "Unit capital" as “Equity” instead of compound financial instruments 

under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 32- Financia! Instruments: Presentation). The Group 

has applied the accounting policies during the periods presented. 

The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in India Rupees which is also the functional 

currency of the Group, and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs, unless otherwise indicated. 

Inipact of the initial application of new and amended IND ASs that are effective for current 

year: 

In the current year, the Group has applied the below aniendments to Ind ASs that are effective for 

an annual period that begins on or after April 1, 2023. 

(a) The Group has adopted the amendments to Ind AS 1 ~-“Presentation of Financial Statements” 
for the first time in the current year. The amendments change the requirements in Ind AS 1 with 
regard to disclosure of accounting policies. The amendments replace all instances of the term 
“significant accounting policies’ with ‘material accounting policy information’. Accounting policy 

information is material if, when considered together with other information included in an entity's 

financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of 

general-purpose Tinancial statements make on the. basis of those financial statements. 

(b) The Group has adopted the amendments to. Ind AS 8 — “Accounting Policies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors” for the first tirne in the current year. The amendment replace 
the definition of a change in accounting estimates with a definition of accounting estimates. Under 

the new definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in financial statements that are 
subject to measurement uncertainty”. The definition of a change in accounting estimates was 

deleted. : 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

b} Basis of Consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Trust and it’s 
Project SPVs" (NHIPPL - fromdate of acquisition i.e. November 3, 2021 & Project SPV - NEPPL 
- from date of incorporation i.e. April 19, 2023). 

Group consolidates entities which it owns or controls, Control exists when the Trust has power 
over the entity, is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity 
and has the ability to affect those returns by using its power over the entity. Power is demonstrated 
ihrough existing rights that give the ability to direct relevant activities, those which significantly 
affect the entity’s returns. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is 
transferred to the Group until the date control ceases. 

Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like 
transactions and other events in similar circtimstances. The Group combines the financial 
Statements of the Trust and its subsidiaries line by line adding together like items of assets, 
liabilities, equity, iricome and expenses. Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealized gains 
on transactions between group companies are eliniinated. 

¢) Business Combination/ Goadwill on Acquisition 

The Group acquires operational toll road SPV ftom the Sponsor. The key activity for these SPVs 
is toll collection and the maintenance of the toll roads. 

Based on evaluation vis-a-vis the guidance on definition of business under Ind AS 103 and also 
keeping in view the relevant guidance on similar fact patterns available under accounting standards 
applicable in other jurisdictions, the management has classified the acquisition of toll road SPVs 
as.business combinations. 

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. For each business 
combination, the Group elects whether to measure.the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at 
fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets, Acquisition related 
costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. 

The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the condition for 
recognition are recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date. 

Goodwill is initially measured at cost which is not amortised, however, it is tested for lmpairment 
annually. In the event of cessation of operations of a subsidiary, the unimpaired goodwill is written 
off fully. 

Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. An 
inipairment loss recognised for.goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods, Where goodwill 
has been allocated to a cash generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed 
of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the 
operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. , 
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Goodwill disposed it these circuinstances is meastired based on the relative values of the disposéd 
operation and the portion of the cash-genetating unit retained, 

Summary of Material Accounting Policies 

Current versus non-current classification 

Based on the time involved between the acquisition of assets for processing and theit realisation 
in cash and cash equivalents, the Trust has identified twelve months as its operating cycle for 
determining current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities jn the balance sheet. 

Revenue Recognition 
Revenue is recognised fo the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the. 
Group and the revenue can be.reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made, 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking, into 
account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf 
of the government. 

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised: 

Tolt Revenue - Toll Revenue from users of toll roads held by subsidiary company is recognised 
in respect of toll revenue accrued for respective toll road projects. Revenue from electronic toil 
collection is recognised on accrual basis. 

Interest income - Interest. income is recognised using the effective interest method. 

Dividends - Dividend income is recognised when the Group's right to receive the payment is 
established, 

Claims with National Highways Authority of India (NHAI") and other government authorities 
are accounted as and when the money is received ftom the respective authorities, in cases of 
monetary conipensations. 

Other items - Other items of income are recognised as and when the right. to receive the income 
arises, 

Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost, as applicable, less accumulated 
depreciation and cumulative tmpairment losses, if any. 

Historical cost includes purchase price, borrowing costs and any cost directly attributable to 
bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use, 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, a8 
appropriate, only when it is probable that the future econoinic benefits associated with the iten 
will flow to the entity and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Cost inclu 
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accordance with the Group's accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate 

categories of property, plant, and equipment when completed and ready for intended use. 

Depreciation on Plant and Equiprient is provided using straight-line method based on estimated 

useful life. Fhe estimated useful life of all the property, plant and equipment is ascertained by the 

management. using the best estimate on the basis of technical evaluation, which is depreciated 

based on useful life as prescribed in Schedule 11 of the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on 

additions/ deductions is calculated pro-rata from/ to the month of additions/ deductions. 

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of Property, plant and equipment are 

reviewed at cach period end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

The Group has estimated the following useful lives for its tangible fixed assets: 

Category of Assets | Estimated useful life 
(in years) 

Temporary Structure | 3 

Computer 3 

Office Equipment’s [5 

Furniture & Fixtures | 10 
Plant and Machinery | 5-20 

The estivnated residual value of the PPE has been taken as 5% as prescribed in Schedule Il'to the 

Companies Act, 2013. Fixed Assets amounting upto INR 5,000 are recognised in Statement of 

Profit and Loss in entirety in the year of purchase. 

Intangible assets 

Intangible assets are stated at original cost net of tax/duty credits availed, if any, less accumulated 

amortisation, and cumulative impairment, if any. 

Intangible Assets are stated at historical cost, as applicable, less accumulated amortisation and 

cumulative impairment losses, if any. 

The useful lives of intangible assets aré assessed. as either finite or indefinite. 

Rights under Service Concession Arrangements — Toll Collection Rights 

The Group has acquired rights for Tolling, Operation, Maintenance and Transfer of five toll road 

projects for a period of 30 years basis Toll Concession agreements with NHAL, group further 

acquired rights during the Previous F.Y. 2022-23 for Tolling, Operation, Maintenance and 

Transfer of three additional toll road projects for a period of 20 years wef. 29.10.2022 basis Toll 

Concession agreements with NHAI, and the same have been recognised as Intangible Assets in 

the financial statements, Further, the group has acquired seven concession agreements with 

National Highway Authority of India (“NHAI") for Tolling, Management, Maintenance and 

Transfer of seven toll road projects for a period of 20 years from the Appointed Date, The 

Appointed Date has commenced on 01.04.2024 and therefore the revenue and‘expenses of these 

seven road proj ots shali be recognised from next financial year. 
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Extension of concession period by the Authority in compensation for claims made by the Group 

are capitalised as part of Toll Collection Rights on acceptance of the claim. Where the Group has 
a contractual right to an extension in the concession period as per the concession apreement, the 

same is capitalized when the right to extension in the concession period is established at the 

estimated amount of eligible claims. 

Amortisation of Intangible Assets 

Toli Collection Rights are amortized basis a Consumption based model (using Passenger Car Unit 
(PCU) projections) over the tenure of the Concession Agreement. The projected traffic is based 
on independent traffic volume projections: amortisation is revised in case of any material change 

in expected pattern of economic benefits. 

Other intangible assets - Software purchased is amortized over a period of three to six years on 

straight line basis from the month in which the addition is made. The estimated useful lite is 

reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being 

accounted for on.a prospective basis. 

Employee benefits 
Employee benefits include provident fund, gratuity, compensated absences, and medical benefits. 

i. Short term employee benefits 
Employee benefits such as salaries, short term compensated absences, expected cost of bonus, 
ex-gratia and performance linked rewards falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering 

the service are classified as short-term employee benefits and are expensed in the period in 

which the employee renders the related service. 

i, Post-Employment Benefits 
Defined contribution plan: A defined contribution plan is a post-employment plan under 

which an entity pays fixed contributions and will have no legal or constructive obligations ta 

pay further amounts. The Group contributes to. provident fond and employees deposit linked 
jasurance scheme, and have no further obligations beyond making its contributions. The 

Group's contribution to the above funds are charged to the Consolidated Statement of Proftt 
and Loss. 

Defined benefit plan; The Group has an un-funded benefit plan for post-employment benefits 

in the forth of Gratuity, The value of obligation-under the plan is determined by the group based 

on best estimate of the present value of the estimated future cash flows towards the gratuity 

obligation. Defined benefit costs comprising current service cost, past service cost and gains or 

losses on settlements are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss as 

employee benefits expense. Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of any defined 

benefit plan aré recognised when the curtailment or settlement occurs. 

ii, Termination benefits 

Termination benefits such as compensation under employee separation schemes (wherever 
applicable) are recognised as expense in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Liability for the same is recognised at the earlier of when the group can no longer withdraw the 

offer of the-teymination benefit. 
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iv. Other long-term employee benefits 

The present value of the obligation under long term employee benefit plans such. as 

compensated absences is determined and is recognised in a similar manner as in the case of 

défined benelit plans. 

Long term employee benefit costs comprising current service cost and gains or josses on 

cirtailments and settlements, re-measurements are recognised in the Consolidated Statement 

of Profit and Loss as employee benefit expenses. Interest cost implicit in long term employee 

benefit cost is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss under finance cost. 

Leases 
‘The Group assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. 

At the date of commencement of the Jease, the Group recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and 

a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases 

with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases, which are accounted 

for as under. 

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets 

Short term leases are leases with a term of twelve months or less. For short-term and low value 

leases, the Group recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis 

over the term of the lease. 

Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs inchide interest calculated using the effective interest method, amortization of 

ancillary costs and other costs the Trust incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. 

Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. 

Financial Instruments 

Financial assets and {nancial liabilities are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the 

contractual provisions of the instruments. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that 

are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are 

added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as 

appropriate, on initial recognition. However, transaction costs directly attributable ta the 

acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss ("FY TPL") 

are recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss, 

If the Group determinés that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price, 

the Group accounts for that instrument al that date as follows: 

+ at the measurement basis mentioned above if that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price 

in an active market for an identical asset or Hability (1c. a-Level | input) or based on a 

valuation teclinique that uses only data from observable markets. The Trust recognises the 
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difference between the fair value at initial recognition and the transaction price as a gain 
or loss. 

e in all other cases, at the measurement basis mentioned above, adjusted to defer the 

difference between the fair value at initial recognition and the transaction price. Afier 

initial recognition, the Group recognises that deferred difference. as a gain or loss only to 

the extent that it arises froma change in a factor (including time) that market participants 
would take into account when pricing the asset or liability. 

Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities is described below. 

Financial Assets 

All recognized financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortized cost 

or fair value, depending on the classification of the financial assets. 

1. Classification of Financial Assets 

Financial Assets that meet the following conditions ate subsequently measured at amortised cost 

(unléss the same are designated as fair value through protit or loss (FV FPL): 

e ‘The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to 

collect contracttal cash flows; and 

» ‘The contractual ternis of instrument give rise on specified dates ta cash flows that are solely 

payments of princtpal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

Financial Assets ai FVYTPL is a residual category for debt instruments and all changes are 

recognized in profit or loss. 

2. Amortized cost and effective interest method 

Income is recognized on an effective interest method as per Ind AS. 109 for financial assets other 
than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL. Interest income is recognized in the Statement 

of Profit and Loss and is included in the “Other income" line item. 

3. Impairment of financial assets (Expected credit loss model} 

An impairment loss on financial asset is established when there is objective evidence that the 
Group will net be able to collect all amounts due according to, the original terms of the receivables. 

Impairment loss, if any, are recognised in Statement of Profit or Loss for the period. 

4, De-recognition of financial assets 

The Group derecognize a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and.substantially all the risks and rewards of 

ownership of the asset to another party. 
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On de-recognition of a financial asset in its. entirety, the. difference between the asset's carrying 

amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or lass 

that had been récognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognized 

in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognized in the Statement of 

Profit or Loss on disposal of that financial asset. 

b) Financial Liabilities 

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in.the case of loans and borrowings 

and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. 

Loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized costs using Effective Interest Rate 

method. 

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (F VTPL) are subsequently measured at fair 

value. 

De-recognition of financial liabilities 

Financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 

cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same 

lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability substantially modified, 

such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the 

recognition of the new liability. The difference in the respective carried amount is recognized in 

the Statement of Profit and Loss 

Financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 

cancelled or expires. 

¢) Classification as debt or equity 

Debt and equity instruments issued by Group are classified as either financial abilities or as 

equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a 

financial liability and an equity instrument. 

Fair Value measurement 

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 

orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardiess of whether 

that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the 

fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group considers the characteristics of the asset or Liability 

if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or 

liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in. these 

financial Statements is determined on such a basis and measurements that have some similarities 

to fair value but are not fair value, such as net réalisable value in Ind AS 2 “Inventory” or value in 

use in Ind AS 36 “Impairment of Assets”. 
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In addition, for financial. reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into Level 

I, 2 of 3 based on thé degree ta which the inputs to the fair -value measurements are observable 

and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are- described 

as follows: 

* Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or 
liabilities that entity can access at measurement date 

« Level 2 inputs other than queted prices included in Level 1, that are observable for the 
asset ot Hability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (dertved from prices); and 

+ Level 3 inputs for the asset or liability that are net based on observable market data 

(unobservable inputs). 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents in the Consolidated Balance Sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand, 

overnight mutual fund investments and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three 
monriths or less, which are subject to an insignificant tisk of changes in value. 

For the purpose of the Consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of 
cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are: 

considered an integral part of the Group’s cash management. 

Impairment of Non- Financial Assets 

The carrying values of assets / cash generating units at each reporting date are reviewed for 

impairment if any indication of impairment exists. If any indication exists, the Group estimates. 

the asset's recoverable amount. use. 

If the carrying amount of the assets éxceed the estimated recoverable amount, an impairment is 

recognized for such excess amount. The impairment loss is recognized as an expense in the 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. 

The recoverable amount is the higher of the fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. 

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value 
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects the current market assessments of the time value of 

money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimated future cash flows have not been 

adjusted. 

When there is indication that an impairment loss recognized for an asset (other than a revalued 

asset} in earlier accounting, periods no longer exists or may have decreased, such. reversal of 

impairment loss is recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Less. 

Taxes on income 

Current income tax 

The income tax expense or.credit for the year is the tax payable-on current year’s taxable-income 

based on, the applicable | income tax rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and. liabilj { 
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attributable, to temporary differences and to unused tax losses. The current income tax charge is 
calculated based on tax laws enacted ot substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. 

Deferred tax 

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method on temporary differences arising 
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial 
statements. However deferred income tax is not accounted if it arises from the initial recognition 
of an asset or liability that at the time of the transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor 
taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when 
the related deferred income tax asset/liability is realized or settled. 

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses 
only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilize those temporary 
differences and losses. 

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets and Capital Commitments 

Contingent Liabilities 
Contingent liabilities are disclosed in notes in case ofa present obligation arising from past events, 
when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a 
present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimate.is possible 

Contingent Assets 
Contingent assets usually arise from unplanned or other unexpected events that give rise to the 
possibility of an inflow of economic benefits to the entity. 

Contingent assets are recognized when the realisation of income is virtually certain, in which case 
the related asset is not a contingent asset and its recognition is appropriate. 

Contingent assets are reviewed at each reporting date. A contingent asset is disclosed where an 
inflow of economic benefits is probable. 

Provisions 
Provisions are. recognised when the Trust has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result 
of a past event, it is probable that an. outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows is prepared segregating the cash flows into operating, 
investing and financing.activities. 

Cash flow from operating activities is reported using indirect method adjusting the net profit for 
the effeets of 

® changes during the peried in operating receivables and payables, transactions of a non- 
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® non-cash items stich as depreciation, provisions, deferred taxes, unrealised foreign 

currency gains and losses; 

e all other items for which the cash effects. are investing or financing cash flows. 

Cash and cash equivalents (including bank balances) shown in the Consolidated Statement of Cash 
Flows exclude items which are not available for general use as at the date of Consolidated Balance 
Sheet. 

Distribution to unit holders 

The Group recognises a liability to make cash distributions to unit holders when the distribution 

is authorised and a legal obligation has been created. As per the SEBI InviT Regulations, a 

distribution is authorised when it is approved by the Board of Directors of the Investment Manager. 

A corresponding amount is recognised direetly in other equity. 

Earnings per Unit (EPU) 

Basic EPU are calculated by dividing the profit for the period attributable to unitholders by the 

weighted average number of units outstanding during the period. 

Diluted EPU are calculated by dividing the profit/(loss) attributable to unitholders by the weighted 
average number of units outstanding during the period plus the weighted average number of units 

that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential units into unit capital. 

Recent Pronouncements 

As on 31" March 2024, there are no new standards or amendment to the existing standards 
applicable to. the Group which has been notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs. 
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Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions 

The preparation. of the Group’s financial statements requites management to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and 

liabilities, and the accompanying. disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent Habilities. 

Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material 

adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. 

Judgements 
In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the following 

judgments, apart from these involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the 
amounts recognised in the financial statements. 

Applicability of service concession arrangement accounting to toll roads concessionaire 

arrangements 

The Group has determined that Appendix D to Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with 

Customers” relating to ‘Serviee Concession Arrangements’ ts applicable to the SPVs which 
provides an accounting by the operators of public to private service concession arrangements. The 

SPVs have entered into concession arrangement with National Highway Authority of india 

(NHAI) (the “Authority”) as per which the individual SPVs would participate in Toll Operate 

Transfer (TOT) of the toll roads infrastructure. After the end of the Concession arrangement, the 

SPVs have to transfer the infrastructure i.e. toll roads constructed to the Authority. 

Accordingly, the SPVs have recognized the intangible assets as per the accounting policy 

mentioned in Note (¢) Intangible Assets, 

Future revenue projections for the balance concession period 

The future revenue projections are based on the assuraptions made by the Group's management 

regarding future traffic growth and inflation factor for assessing user toll fee as supported by the 
studies from the third-party independent consultant for individual project done at reasonable 

intervals, 

The Group uses the future revenue projections for the follawing purposes: 

s Amortisation of Rights under Service Concession Arrangements (SCA) 

Intangible Assets-Toll Road Carriageway: 

Toll. Collection Rights are amortized on the basis of Consumption based model (using 

Passenger Car Unit (PCU) projections) over the tenure of the Concession Agreement. The 

projected traffic is based on independent traffic volume projections : amortisation is 
revised in case of any material change in expected pattern of economic benefits. 

Classification of uait holders Funds 

The Unit Capital has been presented as “Equity” in accordance with the InvIT Regulations instead 

cial instrument. Refer note 16 on preseutation of “Unit capital" as "E. 
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instead of compound financial instruments under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 32- 

Financial Instruments: Preseritation). 

Fair value measurements 

Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments 

(where active market quotes are not available). This involves developing estimates and 

assumptions consistent with how market participants would price the instrament. The Trust 

engages third party valuers, where required, to perform the valuation. Information about the 

valuation techniques and inputs used in determining the fair value of investments are disclosed in 

the notes to Standalone Financial Statements. 

Fair valuation and disclosures 

SEBI Master Circular issued under the SEB! InvIT Regulations requires disclosures relating to 

net assets at fair value and total retuins at fair value. In estiniating the fair value of investinents in 

subsidiaries (which constitute substantial portion of the net assets), the Group engages independent 

qualified external valuers to perform the valuation. The Investment Manager works closely with 

the valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The valuation 

report and findings are discussed at the meeting of the Board of Directors on yearly basis to 

understand the changes in the fair value of the subsidiaries. The inputs to the valuation models are 

taken. from observable markets, where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of 

judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such 

as weighted average cost of capital, tax rates, inflation rates etc. Changes in assumptions about 

these factors could affect the fair value. 

Useful lives of property, plant, and equipment 

Management of the Group reviews the useful lives of property, plant and equipment at each 

reporting date to ensure that the useful lives represent. the expected utility of the assets to the 

Group. 

Obligations relating to employee benefits 

The employee benefit obligation depends on several factors that are determined on an actuarial 

basis using several assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost/ (income) 

inelude the discount rate, inflation and mortality assumptions. Any changes in these assumptions 

will impact upon the carrying amount of employce benefit obligations. 
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Impairment of intangible assets 
Impairment exists when. the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its 
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use, 
The recoverable amounts for the intangible assets are based on value in use of the underlying 
projects. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from 
forecasts over the remaining SCA period of the projects. 

Major Maintenance Expenses / Resurfacing Expenses 

As per industry practice, the Project SPV (NHIPPL) is required to carry out resurfacing of the 
roads under the Concession. For this purpose, a regular maintenance along with periodic 
Maintenances is required to be performed. Normally, periodic maintenance includes resurface of 
pavements, repairs of structures and other equipment and maintenance of service roads. The 
maintenance cost / bituminous overlay may vary based on the actual usage during maintenance 
period. Accordingly, on the grounds of matching cost concept and based on technical estimates, a 
provision for major maintenance expenses is reviewed and is provided for in the accounts 
annually. 

The provisions for MMR as per indusiry practice has been made based on the first cycle of of 
overlay expected to occur in five fo seven years and not based on the total MMR cost over entire 
concession period. The discounting rate used for arriving at the present value for MMR provisions 
is government bond rate of 30 years for projects acquired in first phase and 20 years for projects 
acquired! in second phase. 

Expected Credit Loss on financial assets 

As per Ind AS 109, Financial Assets that are measured at amortised cost are required to compute 
the Expected Credit Loss (ECL). As at the reporting period. [Investment manager of the Group 
assessed the credit risk of the financial assets and concluded that no provision for ECL is required, 
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3 Property, Plant and Equipment 

{Alf amounts in Z lakh uniess otherwise stated) 
. Temporary Plant & Office Furniture & Particulars Structure Machinary Computer Equipments Fixtures Toa] Gross Carrying Amount: 

Balance as at April 1, 2022 - 0,50 - - 0.50 Additions 25.59 44.94 17.42 44.27 132.22 Less: Disposals - ; - - - - Balance as at March 31, 2023 25,59 45.44 17,42 44.27 132.72. Additions 10.99 13.58 43.60 48,32 26,75 143.23 Less: Disposais - 1.09 - - 1.09 Balance as at March 31, 2024 . 36.58 13.58 87.95 65,74 FLOZ 274.86 
Accumulated Depreciation: 
Balance as at April ¥, 2022 - 0.04 ” > 0.04 Additions 1.49 4,32 0.82 0.88 751 Less: Disposals - - - - - Balance as at March 31,2423 i49 4.36 0.82 0.88 755 Additions 10.71 0.08 22,29 9.97 5.27 48.31 Less: Disposals - 0.29 - - 0.29 Balance as at March 31 22024 12.20 0,08 26.36 10.79 6.15 58,57 
Net Carrying Amount: 
Balance as at Marelli 3 1, 2023 24,19 - 41.08 16.60 43.39 125,17 Balance asat March 31, 2024 24,38 13.40 61.59 54.95 64,87 2(9.29 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
SEBI Registration Number :- IN/Inv¥T/20-21/0014 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

4. Capital Work in Progress 

(All ameunts in Z lakh, unless othenyise stated} 
Particulars 

As at Asat . : March 31,2024 | March 31,2033 Plant and Machinery* 
19.76 - 

Total 
19.76 - * This is pertaining to Solar Power Plants which t under installation at toll plaza, 

Capital Work in Progress (CWIP ageing schedule 
As at March 31, 2024 Less than 1 Year| 1-2 Year | 2-3 Year More than 3 Year Total Project in Progress 19.76 - - - 19,76 Total £9.76 - . : 19.76 

As at March 31, 2023 Less than 1 Year! i-2 Year | 2-3 Year (More than 3. Year Tatal Project in Progress - - - ~ “ Total - - - “ - 

a 
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SEBI Registration Number :- IN/InvIT/20-21/0014 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2024 

5 Goodwill 

(All amounts in @ lakh unless otherwise stated} 
As at As at 

Niarch 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023 

PARFICULARS 

Gross Carrying Amount 
Balance at the beginning of the year 10,144.46 1014446 
Additions - - 
Less: Disposals - . 
Less: Impairment - - 
Balance at the closing of the year . 10,144.46 10,144.46 

The carrying amount relates to goodwill arising on acquisition of Project SPV {NHIPPI.) by the Trust and has been tested for iupairment against the respective cash generating unit (CGU). The calculation uses cash How forecast based on financial models which cover remaining 
‘future periods of respective concession periods of tol] assets. 
Based on a review of the future discounted cash flows of the intangible assets (Toll Collection Rights) held by the subsidiary (NHIPPL), the 
recoverable amount is higher than the carrying amount of the assets, and accordingly no impairment loss has been recognised in the staténient of profit and loss for the-year ended March 31, 2024, 



ns
 

NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
SEBI Registration Number :- IN/InvIT/20-21/0014 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

Other Intangible Assets 

(All amounts in ? Iakh unless otherwise Stated) 

Particulars Software Toll collection rights Totai 

Gross Carrying Amount: 

Balance as at-April 1, 2022 - 7,35,040.00 7,35,040.00 
Additions 2.16 294,966.66 294,968.82 Less: Disposals - - Balance as.at Mareh 31, 2023 2.16. 10,20,006.66 10,20,008,82 Additions 0.06 111,993.43 1,11,993.49 Less: Disposals . 7 - Balance 4s.at Marci.31, 2024 2.22 11,32,000.09 41,32,002.31 

Accuniulated Amortization: 
Balance as at April 1, 2022 - 1,055.61 1,055.61 Additions 0,25 17,352.87 17,553.12 Less: Disposals - > - 
Balance as at Mareh 31, 2023 0.25 18,698.48 18,608.73 Additions 0.68 24,722.06 24,722.74 Less: Disposals : - - Balance as at March 31, 2024 0.93 43,330.54 43,331.47 

Net Carrying Amouat 
Balance as at March 31, 2023 1.91 10,01,398,18 10,01,400.09 
Balanec as at Marci 31, 2024 1.29 10,88,669,.55 10,88 ,670.84 

Note:- 

1. In FY 2021-22, ihe Group has acquired rights for Tolling, Operation, Maintenance and Transfer of five told road projects for a period of 30 years basis Toll Concession agreements wilh NFAT, for a consideration of INR 7,350.40 Crore and the same bave been recognised as Iangible Assets in Gnaucia) statements. The Group Jurther acquired righis during the Previous FY 2022-23 for Tolfing, Operation, Maintenance and Transfer of three additional toll 
road projects for a period of 20 years basis Toll Concession Agreements with NHAI, for a consideration of INR 
2,849.66 Croré and the same have been addition in the intangible Assets in financial statements. 

2.Tolf Collection Rights has beeri amortized on the basis of Consumption bused model (using Passenger Car Unit 
(PCU) projections) over the tenure of the Concession Agreement i.e, 30 years and 20 years basis respective concession agreements for those Loll read projects. 

3..During the. current year, the Group has capitalised Initial Improvement Warks anounting to Bs, (119.93 Crores to Intangible Asset {For detailed note on initial improvement works refer note no. 3 4). 



_ NAT L HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
SEBI Registra tion Number ;- IN/InviT/20-21/0014 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statemeiits for the year éndéd March 31, 2024 
7 Other Financial Assets: Non Cuérent 

(All amounts in Z lakh unless albenwise stated) 

Ag at Asaf 

Mareh 3i, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Particulars 

Jnvestment-in Fixed Deposits 

Fixed Deposits with banks# 
9,916.99 9,469,909 Secirity Depasits “ 3:38 1.60 interest receivable on Debentuee reeovery expensé find 1.32 042 Interest receivable on fixed deposits ; 34117 185.43 Deposit - Debenture Retovery Expense Fund for NCD's 15.00 (5.00 

19,177.86 9,072.44 *The Fixed Deposits-are kept in Debt Servicing Reserve-Acconnt {DSRA) as per borrowing agreements with fenders and as per terms of tfe debenture inist . deed, to be ‘utilized at the end of tenure of long term borrowings from Senior Lenders and to maintain DSRA balance for Bebenture holders, hence classified as Other Financial Assets- Non Current itrespective of dale of maturity. 

§ Deferred. Tax Assets (Wet) 

CAI amounts int € adil umbess aikenyige stated) 

As at Ag at 
Mareh 31,2024 March di, 2023 

Particulars 

Deferred Tax. Assets arising on account of: 
- Expense disallowed as per Income Tax Act, 1961, allowable in fiture years - - Unabsorbed depreciation 

J, 19,086.98 72,562.41 ~Provision on Initial improvement 25,179.31 . 

Fotal (A) 
144,266.29 72,562;41 

Deferred Tax Linbilities arisingon acedunt of: 
~ Difference between Book & Tax base related to (ulangible assets & PPE 1,92,743.09 67,877,09 
‘Total (B) 

1,32,743.09 67,877.00 
Net (4-B} 

11,523.26 4,685.32 

Reconéiliation of Deterred Tux Asset/ (Liabilities} 

(AML unatnss in 2 lakh unless alenvise stated) 

Particulars 
, Avat Asat March 31, 7024 Mareh 31, 2023 Qpening Balatice - Deferred Tax Asset 

4,683.32 262,53 Deferred lax incomes (expense) during the period recognised in profit & logs . 6,837.88 4422.79, Ctosinig Bakince - Deferred Tax Asset 
11,425.20 4,685,327 

As at Marcel 31, 2024, based on the expected future piolitability ofthe NHIPPL & NEPPL. (SP ¥s), the manageiient jas recognised deferred tax assets on ie unabsorbed tax depreciation carried forward only and fot recognised Deferred Tax Assets on major maintadiance obligation and business losses for the period, as cntried forward business losseswill not. be available for utilisation within the time limit allowable as per the Income Tax Act based oa the fiture projections of the profitability of the entity in accordance with provision of lnd AS 12 "income Taxes", 

> Non Current Tax Assets (Net) 

(All amoung in & lakh unless otherwise stated) 

Agat Agat 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2623 

Particniars 

Income tax refundable (net of provision) 
22.38 12.06 

22,38 12,06 

10 Other won current assets 

CAI anoqaus in @ fod unless pi hertigy stated) 

Ag at Ag At Particulars 
March31,2024 — Mareli3i, 2023 

Capital advances 
565.47 - Advance paid to NHAI for acquisition of R3 asset* 15;69,988.18 Processing fees. paid for vindrawe foan 

. 95,43 . 

15,70;649.18 :. 

appointed date tor t! gtosietey ig With effect from Ist April 2024 , therefore the amouit. paid. to NHAT kas been classified as. capital advance, 

a 

*Thiis includes fr tas 15,69,988, 58 Lakhs periainisig to cosicession [ees paid to NHAI by NEPPL for the aciilsition of seveu projects The 
i 
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NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST: 
SEBF Registration Number :- IN/InvIT/20-21/0014 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2024 
11 Trade Receivables: Current 

(A! cunonnis in 2 fakh tess stherwise stoied} 
Particwars 

Asat : As at March 31, 2024 Mareh31, 2023 Considered good-unsccured 
385.20 350,87 Trade Receivabies - Credit Impaired (unsecured) 59,60 59.60 

444,80 410,47 Less:- Allowances for expecied credit loss 
(39.60) (59.00) 
385.20 350.87 ' The receivibles.are hypothecaied by way of first ranking exclusive charee ta secure senior lenders and non convertible debenture tiolders in Trust. 

Trade Receivables ageing schedule as an March 31, 2024 

Outstanding for following period from due date of payment. Particular. . - muewars 0-6 Months ° Monts 1 1-2 Years 4-3 Years More than 3 years Total 
Undisputed trade recciyabtcs 
1} Considered good 385.20 - . - - 385.20 
ii) Which have significant increase in 
credit risk 

ii) Credit impaired . . 59,60 - . 59.40 

Disputed trade reecivaiies 

i} Considered goad . - - - . . 
i) Which have sisnificant increase in 
credit risk 

iif} Credit impaired - - - - . . 

Total 385.20 - 59.60 7 74.35 
Trade Receivables ageing schedule.as on Mareh 31, 2023 

Ovtstanding for following period irom dne date of payment, Particutars 6G Months - 
BCMA 0-6 Months went : t-2 Yeurs 23 Years More than 3 years Toisl 

Undisputed trade receivables 
i) Considered pood 330.87 - - - . 350.87 
ii) Which have significant increase in 
credit risk 

itt) Credit impaired - 59.60 - - - 59.60 

Disputed trade receivables 

f) Considered good . - - - - . 
it) Which have signiticant increase in 
credit risk 

iil} Credit impaired . 4 . a - . 

Total 351,87 39.60 ” - - 410.47 
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(2 Cash and Cash Equivalents* 

1 

cry
 

= 
an

 

the year ended. March 31, 2024 

CAIN amouusts in [okt unless athenvise stated) 
. 

AS.at As at 
Particulars 

March 31,2024 Mareli 31,2023 Balances with Banks 
In Curzént Accounts 

1,260, 12 735.06 In Escrow Accounts 
46742 338,04 Draft in Hand 

- 8.14 Cash in Hatid 

15.17 793 Fixed Deposits (having original maturity of less than 3 months) 
6,163.15 10,000.06 

Overnight mutual fund** 

38,494.92 10,034.91 

46,400.78 21,124.08 *Cash and Cash Equivalents includes Rs, 6209.70 Lakhs 
improvement works.of Rl and R2 Projects, 
The balanees in escrow accounts are hypothecated by way of first tanking exclusive charge to secure sen ior in Trust. 

* Investment in Muttal Funds includes Rs. 15,000 Lakhs raised in 
against loans raised for leap projects. Further these investinents 
on 31-03-2024, 

Bink Batance Other than Cash and Cash Equivalent 

(March 31, 2023: Rs, Nil) which are unutilised baliace in Project SPY - NEWPPL for initiat 

lenders dad non convertible debenture holders 

current year from wnil issue for leap projects, io be utilised for creation of DSRA also includes Rs. 4106.06 Lakhs pertaining to one time issue related expenses wnutilized a5 

(AlLanonnts in 2 lakh unless otherwise sated) . 

As at Ags at Partieatlars 
March 31,2024 Afarch31, 2023 Bank Deposits with original ihaturity.of mare than 3 Months* 

“304.26 . Titerest Accrudd en bank deposits 
8.72 - 

512,98 - * Fixed deposits amounting to Rs, 304.26 Lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs. Nil) is fien marke against te Bank Guarantee issued to NHAI for R-2 Projects by the group, 

Other Financial Assets: Current 

d in favour of Bank of Maharashtra aid kept.as Margin Money 

CAN anrounis i 2 Ink unless otherwise stated) Partiowars 
As at As at 

March 31, 2024 Aareh 31, 2023 
Security deposits 

Titeres| reeeivabic on Fixed Deposits 

§ Other Current Assets 

454 2.92 
- ca) 

434 6.65 

(All omounts in 2 takh unless othenvise stnied} Particulars 
As at Asar Mare 31, 2024 Mareh jl, 2023 

Prepaid experses* 

470.02 882.86 OST Input 

523.36 64212 Processing fees paid for undrawn loan 
152.84 103.49 Advance to snpptiers 

1,157.33. 5,49 Others 

0K - 

2303.89 1,63-4,06 * Prepaid includes R und 3 expenses of Rs. Nil dering the current period and Rs. 290.72. Lakh in previous year. 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 

SEBI Registration Nuntber + IN/Inivl'T/20-21/0014 

Notes to the Consulidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

16 Linit Capitsl 

(AW aerounes ave int lakh unless aihenvise stated) 
Particulars zAs at March 31,2024 Ag at March 31, 2023 

‘- Na of Units Amount No of Units Amuinne 

Unit Capital - , 
Gnening balance 72,64,05 300 7A160432  59,52,00,000.00 5,99.442 82 
Add: Units issued during the vear 38.57,95,400 7.27,206:41 13,12,05.260 143,013.67 
Less: [ssuc expanses-(refer note below} : 41,717.26) - (852,17) Balauee at year endl T3T.22,00,000 167,093.47 7,604,085 200 “FAT GOESE 

*.58,57,95,400 units issued at Rs. 124.14 per tinit during evfrent financial year (15,12,05,200 unit issued at Rs 109. per unit in previous financial year). 
In current year the Trust offered an issue of 58,37,95,400 units af Nadonal Highways Infra Trust (NHIT"), for cash at a price af-124.14 per until (the “issue price”), 
agerepating lo Rs 7.27206.41 lakhs through Institutional and preferential placement in. accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (lnftastracture 
Investment Trust} Regulations, 2014 including. the rules, circulars and guidelines issued thereunder, 

In previous year the Trust offered an issue of 13,1 208 units of National Highways Infre Trust ('NHIT™), for cash at a price of 109.00 per unit (the “issue 
price’), aggregating to * Rs 143,013.67 hikhs through Institutional and prefercntial placement in accordance with (he Securities-and Exchange Board of India 
Cniastructure Investment Trust) Regulations, 2014 including the rules, circulars dnd guidclinés issued thereunder. 

issue expenses oF Rs, 1.717.16 lakhs (Morch 31,2023; Rs 852.17 lakhs) incurred in connection wilh issue of units have been reduced from the Unithalders capital in 
accordance wilh Ind AS 32 Financial dnstraments: Presentation 

Rights? preferenees and restrictions attached to Ui Capital 

Subject to the provisions of the inviT Regulations, the indcnlure af.fimds, and applicable rules, regulations and guidelines, the Tighls of the unit holders include: 

a) The beneficial ierest of cach unitholder shall be equal and limited to the proportion of the sumber of the units held by that unithelder to the total number of units. 
6) Right to receive incame or distributions with respect to the units held, 

c} Righe to attend the annual gencral meeting and other meetings of unit holders of the Trust. 
dq) Right to vote upon any mattersfresolutions proposed in relation fa the Trast. 

#) Right to receive periodic information having a bearing on the operation.or performance of the Trust in accordance with the InviT Regulations. 
fF) Righi to apply to the Trust to take up certain issues af meetings for unit balders approval. 

g) Right to receive additional information, iPany, in accordance with lavtT dovuments filed with Pigcement Memorandum, 

In accordance with the InvlT Regulations, no unit belders shall enjoy superior voting orany alher rights over any other unit holders, and there shall sot be multipie 
classes of units, There shail-be only one denomination of units. Not withstanding the ubove. subordinate units may be issued only io Hw Sponsor and ils Associates, 
where such subordinate units shall carry only isferior voting or any other rights éompare to (he other units 

Under the provisions of the InviT Regulations, not less than 0% ofthe net distributable cash slows of the Trust is required to be distrituted to the unitholders. and int 
accardance with suck statutery obligation the Trust has lortaulated a distribution policy io declare and distribule the distributable cash Maws 40 its uaithalders atleast 
once every [nancial year as approved by the Board of Directors af che Investment Manager. ‘The distribistions made by Trust ta its unithalders are based on the Net 
Distrihulable Cash Flows (NDCF) of the Trust ender the InvIT Regulations, ‘The distribution in proportion to the number of units held by-he wnithalders. The Trust 
declares and pays in distributions in indisn rupees. 
Limitation ta the Linbility of the nit holders 

‘The liability of each unit halders towards the payment of any amount {that may arise in relation to the Trest iieluding arly axes, duties, Sines, levies, Habilities, costs 
or expenses) shall be Limited only to dhe extent al the capital contribution of such unit holders and after such capital coniribution shall have been paid in full by the 
unit holders, the unit holders shall not be obligated ta make any further payments. 

The unit balders shall not have any personal ability or obligation with respeet ta the Trust. 

Classification of Unit Holders! Funds 

Under the provisions of the InviT Regulations, NHIT is requited Lo distribute to Unithoiders not legs than ainely percent ef thé net distrihutablé cush flows of 
NUIT for each Ainancial year, Accordingly, a portion of the unitholders' finds comains a contractual obligation of the Trast to pay to its Unidhokders cash distributions, 
The Unithoiders? finds could therefore have been classified as compound financial instrument which cantain both equity and Nability components in accendanee with 
Incl AS 32 - Financia! Instruments: Presentation. However, in aecurdanee with SEBI Circulars (Na. CIRVIMDIDFA 14/2016 dated 2)-Oet-2016 and No. 
CIRAMD/DEI! 27/2016 dated 29-Nov-2016) issued under ihe InvlT Regulations, the uniholders’ fimds have heen classified as equigy in order to comply with the 
mandatory requirements of Section H of Annexure A to the SEBI Circular dated 20-Qcl-2016 dealing with the minimuin disclosures for key finaneial stalements. In 
line with the nkowe. the distribution navahte to unit holders is rccaenised as.linhility when ihe sameis approved hy the Investment Manager, 

Petals of Unithotders Holding More Than 4% Units in ‘The Trast 

Nome ces . AsatMarch 3, M24 Asat March 3E 2123 
Name of Goitholders No of Units Ms No of Units 
Ontario Limited 32,80,50, 150 25.00% 18,16,01,300 
CPP fivestment Bourd Private Holdings Inc. 20,150 2a.00% 18,56, 08.300 

SBI Balanced Advantage Frust 6.31,60,260 481% 631,60,260 

National Highways Authority of India fNHAn 30.36,72,.000 13.48 1¥,52.02,600 13.86% 
As per recards of the Trust, inchiding its register of ‘unitholders and other declaration received from wnitholders regarding beneficial interest, ihe above unitholding 
tepresent both legal and beneficial ow nership of unils. 
The Trust fas not allotted any fully paid-up units by way-of bonus units nor hay it bought back any class of units from the date of incorporation til the balance sheei 
date. Further te Trust las not issued aay units for consideration other than cash during the year. 

Reconciliation of mumber of units outstanding 16 set out below: 

Ag at March 31, 2024 sis af March 31, 2023 

Nook Amount No of Liuits Amoutt 
Particnlars Comourits in % Lakh (am in Zoli. 
Number.of Units at the beginning of ihe year 72,64,05 200 7A4 165.07 39,52.00,000 6,01,152.06 
Units issued during the year 38,57.95.400 727,206.41 ‘43,013.67 
Number ait Units at the end of the year 1,31.22.00.600 44,71.372.08 7 Ab 165,67 
* Amount related to issue-expenses arenot deducted in the reconciliation of number of unit capital duistanding. 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
SEBI Registration Number :- IN/LayvIT/20-21/0014 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

L7 Other equity 

(ATL amounts in 3 lakh unless otherwise stated} 
Reserves and Surplus 

As At As At 
j P 

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 Retained Earnings 
j Baiance at the beginning of the year 
(2,469.86) 6,768.43 Total comprehensive income far the year 
29,419.57 . 25,689.57 Other Comprehensive Income for the year 

0.13 . Less: 

Distribution to unit holders* 
Interest 

53,701.68 34,183.66 Other Income 
789.60 W420 

Balance at the closing of the year 
(27,541.44) (2469-86) 

“The distribution relates to the distributions during the (inancial year along with the distribution related to the last quarter of FY 2022. 23 and does not include the distribution relating to the period February O1, 2024 to March 3 1, 2024 which will be paid after Mageh 31, 2024. The distributions by the Trust to its unit holders are based on the Net Distributable Cash Flows of the Trust under the SEBI invIT Regulations. 



NATIONAL HIGWAYS INFRA TRUST 
SEBI Registration Number :- INAnvI‘T/20-21/0014 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended Mareh.31, 2024 

{8 Borréwigs: Non Current 

CATT amouus in 2 lakh wntess athensise stated) 
Particulnrs 

Asot As at 
March 31, 2024 Marelt 3t, 2023 Secured 

WNon-Convertible Debenture 
150,000.00 1,78,000.00 

Less: Unamortized Borrowing Cost 
1,360.9] LA aa Total (A) 

1,48,639,09 148,588.20 Note:- Oflier terns aud. conditions of NCE 
i} Interest rate 7.90% p.a payable semi anrunlly, it} Terms of repayment Redemption of respective STRPP shall he made in equal instalments i) STRPP A -starting from cigth anniversary of deemed date ef allotment till thirleenth anniversary. ii) STRPP-B- starting trem thirteenth-auniversary of deemed date ofalloiment till eighteenth anniversary. iii) STRPP-C- starting from eighteenth anniversary of deemed date of alloument til (weatly fifth anniversary, Term Loan: 

From Barks 
721,927.70 145.987.43 From Financial [Institution 
3,05,000,00 - 

16,26,927-79 LASS 7 3 
Less: Current Maturilies of, Long Tenn borrowings (Refer Note 2 13] 

10,054.00 2900.00 
Less: Unamortised Borrowing Cost 

BF BS 417.30 
Totut (B) 

10,14,753,85 143,570.13 Grand ‘Total (= (A+B) 

TEG3,394.95 2,92, (58.33 
Doring the year ended 3st March 2024, she Trust has obtained the sanction of Rs, 877 Crores fiom the Axis banik for initial improvement works ef Round 2 Assets. 
Further Tnist has ebtained sanction of Rs. 9,000 Crores from banks and financial institution for ascquistion of Round 3 Assets and has taken a disbursemen! of Rs 
$,658 Crore during ite year. 

Loan from Banks inctude loin received from LDBY Bank which is Promoter of IORI Trusteeship Services Limited {ITSL) - Trustee of the Trust, therefore the 
(ansactions with IDBL Bank are disctased in Related Party ‘Transaction, 
Note:- Other terms aud conditions of Term Loans 
i} Laterest rate Benchmark Rate plus spread applicable on each reset dare for facility agreement. 

ii) Terms ef repayment Repayable in unstructired quarterly instalments with Inst repayment date upia March 31, 2041 & March 3 1, 2042 fur facility agreement of RE & R2 Assets seapectively, 
Repayable in unstructured quarterly instalments with Jast Tepayment date wpia Mareh 31, 2042 for facilily agreement of R3 Asset. 

Security for Term Loans : 
The Joan is sectired by, 
~ first part passe charge on ail immovable assets (ifany), movable assets and recelva bites of the Trust ineliding but not limiled to, (i) the interest and principal fepay ments an the leans advanced by dhe Trust to Project SP¥s Gi) dividends to be paid by Project SPVs to the Trust 
- first pari passu Security Interest on Trust Escrow account and all sub-accounts thereund er, including DSRA, - pledge of 100% equity shares of Project SPVs' (NELLPPL & NEPPL) in denateristized form held by the Trust - assignment of loans advanced by the Trust td Project SPVs (NHIPEL & NEPPL} aad securities created by the Trust including Uie assignment of tighis of 
substitution, leemination dnd invocation of provision of Escrow agreement in case of defaiit. : ~ hegalive len on immovable assets (including current assets anc cash flows) of the Project SPY¥s CMHIPPL & NEPPL) subject to sale of obsolete items of vars! 
ambulances, ald toll equipment vic, under normal business practice, subject to maximum cumulative valne of INR $ Crore ip any financial year for RI projects f INR 
2 Crore per project in any financial year for RO & R3. 

The sentor lenders of te Trust have atso been provided with a corporate guarantee from Project SPY (NHIPPL) to Suarantec upto (he secured obligations of tue Trust. 
The finds have been raised at ‘Trust level ftom unithalders and domestic lenders, and the sime have been lent to Project SPY (NHIPPLY for Payment of concession fee 
by NHIPPL io NILAL ‘The cashflows vir, toll collections are.lying in NHIPPL. Accordingly, corporate Bilarantee. amounting uplo the secured obligations of te Trust 
via Corporate Guarantee Deed dated 14.03.2027 and 08.01.2024, valid across the tenure Of the foan of the Trust Le, up 1 3103-204} and 31.03.2042 respectively, 
has been provided by the Project SPV ( NEI PPL} ta the senior lenders afthe Trust. 

, 

nN 
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Current Maturities of Long Teni borrowings (Refer Note No.l 8) 
10,054.00 

NATIONAL HIGWAYS INFRA TRUST 
SEBI Regisiration Numbex :~ EN/InvET/20-21/0014- Notes to the Consolidated Finducial Statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2024 

Nature of Securiiy for Non-Convertible debentures: 
The debeatire holders are secured by: 

a) a. first rinking:pari passu Security Interest over the Trust's immovable assets (iPany), both Present and fliture. The Trust does not awn an immovable property at 

1 Part p 
I 

y Propas 
the present time. In tie event, the Trust acquires ity, immovable property it fiiture, the Trust shalt Mongige said property within [80 (one hundred eiphyy days from 
the date ef acquisition of such. immovable assets. ‘The Debenture Trustee. hall be anitherised tao all acts; deeds, and entey ints hecessaly documents, agreement, 
amendmeits, and/or midifica tions, as may-ba required 4 give effect the sane, including carrying out the due diligence as may be requiced by Debenture Ty Tusiee; 
bh) a first ranking pari passu Security lnterest over the. Hypothecaled. Assets (inchiding Receivables), boil présént and future: and c} Negalive'Lien Underlaking 
d) corporate guarantee executed by ihe Project. SPV (NHIPPL) in-favour of the Debenture Trustee for guaranteeing the due repayment of the secured obligitions in 
accordance-wiih ihe terms of the Debenture Trust Decd, 

The non convertible debenture holders of the Trust acting through debenttre trustee have alsa been provided with a corporate gllarantes trom Project SPV (NHIPPL} 
to guarantee the repayment of «mount raised from non convertibte debenture holders by the Trust. The fitnds have been raised at Trust level tom debentichalders, 
have been lent to Project SPV (NEIPPL) for payinent of Concession. fee: by NHIPPL to NHAI. Accordingly, corporate Budrantee amounting uple the secre 
obligations via Corporate Guaranive Deed dated 21.10.2022 is valid. til all outstandiny: principal and acenied interest payable by the Trust are satisiied to the non 
convertible debenture holders of tlie Trust. 

There have been no breaches in financial covenants with Fespect te the borrowings from either scnier-lenders oy debenture holders, 

Other Fitaneid liabilities: Nan Current 

(All agiauats in & lakh unless ‘othentise stated) 
Particelars 

Asat As at 
March 31. 2024 March 31, 2013 Creditors.for capital supplies and services 

. 80.90 a 

80,90 - 
Provisions: Non Current 

CAD cutaunis ine 2 foi wees other whe stited) 
Particulars 

As at As at 
Murett 31, 2024 March 31, 2613 

Provision far enployees benefits 
Gratuity (urifinided) (Refer Note 39) 

2531 dat 
Leave Encashment Cuntunided) (Refer Note 39} 

33.39 6.95 
Provision for major maintenance (Refer Note 53) ‘ 

15,223.38 630744 
Provision far tnfrusinictire Upgracs (Refer Note 54) 

20,042.34 . Fotat 

35,923.32 6,518.81 
a) Nature of provisions for major atiintenance 

The- company is required to operate and maintain the prajeet tetlway during the entire concession period and hand over the praject bavk lo NHAI ag per the 
iMiintenance standards prescribect in concession Agrecnents. For this purpose, a regukir inadateranee alone with periadi¢ maintenance is required to be performed, 
Normally, periodic maintenance includes resurface. of pavemienis, repaits.of structures and other cquipmént.and riaintenance Ofservice roads, Ag per industry paatice, 
the periodic maintenance is expected id oteur oes it five to seven years: ‘The provisions for MMR as per Industry practice fias been made based an the first cyele of 
ofoverlay eXpected.to ogeiir id five to seven years and fof bised of the total MMR Cost over enlire concession Period, The discouning-rate used for arriving at the 
Present value for MMR provisions is eevernment barid rate of 30 years for projects acquired in first phase and 20 yenrs for projects. aequired in,secénd pitse. The 
mnsintananed cost { bitteminous- overlay may vary based on Ihe aclua usage during. maintenance period: Accordingly; an the Brounds of niitching cost Concept and 
based on technical eslimates, a provision for major maintenance expense is reviewed dnd is provided for in the financial siatenients-in enh reporting period, 
Considering thal the expense 16 be-incured is depended on various factors including ihe usage, wear dnd tear of the toll ron J; bituminous overlay, he, it is net 
possible to.¢stimate. the exact tinting end the quanti of thé cashflow. 

Detnils of movement in Provisions SE oT ntoveinent in Provisions 

(Ail amounts if 2 lakh ules atherwise stated} 
Particulars 

As.at As at : Muareh.3i, 2024 Maieh 31, 2023 
Opening Balarice 

6,407 dd 403.29 
Add: Accretion chiting the year: 

- - 
Provision tor Major Maintenance Obligation 

8,444,05 5,879.20 
Univwindirie fikange Cost On inajor Ingintenance provision 

470.79 BOS 
Less; Utilized durinw the year 

- - 
Closing Babiice 

. 
“ER Z2228° 630744, 

Borrowings: Current 

. 
tA amounta in & lakh unless, otherwise daied} 

Particulars 

AS at: Asat 
Murch.31, 2024 

Total 
10,055.00 



NATIONAL HIGWAYS INFR4 TRUST 
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22 Trade Payables: Carrent 

(Ail amounts in & inkh unless athecise stated) 
Particulars 

Asat As at 
Mirch 31, 2024 Maret 31, 2023 

Tatal outstanding, dues of mierd asd smail enterprises: 

275,99 (37.23 
Total outstanding, dues of creditors other than micro aud small enterprises (Outstanding for Jess than 12 months fom the due date of payment} 

A A790 M7107 
Total 

4,754.99 4008.40 
Note: 

Detoils of dues to micre and smail chitrprises as per MISMED Act, 2006. The group has certain dues ta Suppliers registered under Micro, Smail and Medium Enterprises Develapment Act, 2006 (MSMED Act’). The disclosures purstant te 
the said. MSMED Act areas follows 

Agate As at 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2033 

i) The principal amouat remaining unpaid te any supplier at the end of the year 

275.99 137.33 
b} Interest aecrued anid due thereon ta suppliers under MSMED Act on the above amount temaining unpaid {0 any supplier at the end of year, 

- ©) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 atthe MSMED Act, 2006, along with the 

amount of the payment made to the supplier beyood the appointed day during the year 
- . 

d) Tie amount of interest due and Payable for the period of delay in inaking payment (hich haye been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year} out without adding the interest. specified under the MSMED Act, 2006 

6) The anowat of interest acered and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year 
f) The amount of funtier interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date whe the interest dues above ara actually paid te the small enterprises, for the purpose of disallowaned ef 4 deductible expenditure under section 23 of he MSMEB Act, 2006 

Disclosure of payable to vendars.as defined under the “Miere, Smali and Meditun Enterprise Developmeit Act, 2006” is based on the information availible with the group regarditig the stains of registration of such vendors under the said Act, as per the intimation received from them on Tequests made by the group, 

Trade Payable ageing schedule asat March 31,2024 
(AIL amounts in ® Jakfy antes oihenvse sided) Outstanding for foltowing period from due date of payrient. 

Partieulars Not de* : . 
; 

ireulars : ™ Less tran 1 Year 1-2 Years. 2-3 Years More than’3 Yoars Tota 0 MSME - 37399 - - = 475.95 
i} Others 3,884.29 53402 60,70 - - 4479.00 
iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - ~ - - - 
iv) Dispited duds ~ Others ~ - * - - - 
* Trade Payables inclode unbilled parables amounting to Rs 3,884.28 Lakis. 
Trade Payable ageing schedule as at Mireh 3£, 2023. 

(All amousits in @ lakh unless otherwize sated} Quisianding for following period from due date af payment, Particutars Not dic* at ; mticutars “om Less than J Year £-2 Years 23 Years More than J Years Total 1) MSME - 137.23 - . . 137.33 
i) Others 2468,10 1,403.07 - - - “HSTLAT iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - - ivy) Disputed dues - Others - . - - - * Trade Payables include unbilied payables smounting to Rs 2.46810 Lakhs. 
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23 Other Financial Liabilities: Current 

{All amaunes in 2 lakh: unless athernise daied) 
Particulars Asal As at 

Maéireh 31, 2024. March 31, 2023 

Iuterest accrued but not due on NCD 5,162.05 4120.59 
Double toll Fee payable to NHAI 10,19 Wil? 

Security Deposit 4.19 alg 
‘Enployees payable 2,18 - 
Payable to NEIMPL 41.69 : 
Creditors for capital supplies and services 2,004,23 - 
Total Tabbed 3,284.95 

Provisions: Current 

(All omauints in T lakh wnless otherwise slated) 

Pariiealars As at As ai 

March 31,2024 Marel.3 1, 2023 

Provision for Employee Benefits 

Leave Encashment (unfinded} 201 0.55 
Gratuity (unfunded) 0.07 0.04 
Provision for Infrastructure Upgrade 79,402.58 - 
‘Total 74066 0.56 

25 Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 

(AN amounts in 2 lakh untess atherwye stated) 
Particulars Agar Agtut 

March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 
Provision for Income Tax 188,74 S08 
Less: Advance Tax & TDS Receivable (7.08) 
Total 181,66 8.98 

Revanciliation of Current Tax Liahiities 

Particulars Asat Agat 

March 30, 2024 March 34, 2023 
Opening Balance ‘8.98 161.77 
Add: Income Tax Payable for the year $86.30 473,80 
Less: Income (axes paid during the year (including earligr year raxes) (713.62) (626,68) 
Closing Balance 181.66 5.98 

26 Other Current Liabilities 

{AL amounts a @ lakh unites othensis: vated) 

Particulars Ags at As at 

March 31, 2034 March 31,2023. 

Statutory dues payable 462,78 726,85 

Uneamed Revenue - 312 
Advance received 0.45 5.00 
Employees payable > 6o+ 
Total 463.23 240.61 



NATIONAL HIGWAYS INFRA TRUST 
SEBF Registration Number : 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Stateme 

27 Revenue from operations 

- INAnvIT/20-21/0014 
nts for the year endéd March 31, 2024 

(All amounts in lakh unless othenvise stated} 
Particulars 

For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 March 3], 2023 

Saié of Services 
Revenue ftom Toll Collection 

94,390.77 68,708.93 Other Operative Revenue 
Interest on delay in Toll Remittance 

. 8.27 
Total 

94,390.77 717.20 
28 Interest income 

(AlLamounts in % lakh thitess othenvise stated) Particulars 
Fer the year ended For the yearended 
March 31, 7024 March 31, 2623 On fixed deposits with banks 

871.71 373.43 
Total 

871.71 373,43 
29. Profit on sale of investments 

(All amourts in & takh unless otherwise stated) Particulars 
For the year endéd For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 

Profit on redemption of Mutual Funds 
2,141.16 CFL? 

Total 

2,141.16 671.17 
30 Other Income 

(AH amedunts in 2 aids unless otherwise stated) Particulars 
For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 Other non operating income 

Liabilities no longer required written back 
32.06 - Other Income 

2747 326.11 
Total 

59.53 316.11 
31 Operating Expenses 

(All amounts in & fakh tudess otherwise stated) 
Particulars 

For the year ended For the year ended 

Operation and Maintenance Expenses 
Major Matnteiance Obligation 

Total 

Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

5,221.55 3,145.85 
8,442.05 5,879.20 

13,665.60 9,025.05 



NATIONAL HIGWAYS INFRA TRUST 
SEBI Registration Number :- IN/InvIT/20-21/0014 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 
32 Emptoyce Benefit Expenses 

(All amounts in Z lakh unless othenvise-stated) Particulars 
For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Salaries and wages 
961.98 222.98 Contributiod to provident and other funds (Refer note 39C7)) 65.87 15,27 Gratuity Expenses (Refer note 39(4i)A} 
21.09 4.42 Leave Encashment Expense (Refer iiote 39{ii)B) 
314.34 FSi Staff Welfare Expenses 
43,06 38.84 Eniployee Insurance Policy 
29.23 - Relocation and Transfer Expenses 
4.03 - 

Total 
1,156.60 259.05 

33 Finance Cost 

(All amounts in lakly unless othervise stated) Particulars 
For the yeat ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2623 

Interest on Long teria borrowings 
13,059.49 11,244.91 Interest on Debeitures 
11,882.48 5,129.59 Unwinding finance cost on major maintenance provision 470.79 24,95 Unwinding interest on infrastructure upgrade 2,396,83 - Otter Finance Charges 

213.58 221.87 
Total 

28,023.17 16,621.32 
34 Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 

(All amounts in lakh unless othesvise stated) Particulars 
For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 202¢ March 31,2023 

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 
48.30 751 Amortization on Intangible Assets 

24,722.74 17,553,[2 
Total 

24,771.04 17,560.63 

35 Audit Fees 

(All amounits in @ lakh unless Otierwise stated) Particulars 
For the year ended For the year ended 
Mareh 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 Statutory audit fees 

8.14 4,53 Limited review fees 
8.82 2.26 Tax audit fees 
1.53 0.94 Total 

18.49 7.73 Certification and other charges 
1.72. : 0.93 Total 
L72 0:93 Further an amount of Rs.3 lakhs (March 31, 2023: Rs 6 lakh) paid to auditor ds certification charges has been booked ‘as part of one time expenses in. the Unit Capital. (Refer note ne 16) 
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36 Other Expenses 

NATIONAL HIGWAYS INFRA TRUST 
SEBI Registration Num ber :- IN/AnvIT/20-21/0014 

tements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

(All amounts in lakh unless.othenvise stated) Partiéulars 
For the year énded 
Mareh 31, 2024 

For the year ended 
March 34; 2023 Advertisement-éxpenses 

Effective tax Reconciliation: 

19.81 35,75 Legal and Professional fees 
1,262.92 1,542.29 Community Engagement Prograrit 

39.84 - Director's sitting fees 
18.88 15.10 Travelling and conveyance 
81.43 19.30 Training and Seminar Expenses 
41.42 7.2) Guest House Expenses 
16.71 Telephone arid internet charges 
47.29 6.58 Power and fuel 

253.79 38.78 Environment, health and safety expenses 
64.22 13.06 Fee, subscription & taxes 

380,72 43.42 Recruitment expenses 
2,35 Bank charges 
2.12 1.53 Data Management Expenses 
1.50 3.00 Provision for expected credit logs 

- 39.60 Vehicle hite charges 
(86.02 63,58 Repair and maintenance expenses 
38.7] 14,71 Pretiminary Expenses wrilten off 
285 - Bad Debts Written OFF 

" 9.90 Directors Strategy Meet Expenses 
16.4] - Miscellaneous expenses 
$9.04 30.03 Total 

2,569.62 1,924.27 
37 Tax Expense 

(All amounts ia % lakh unless otherwise stated) Particulars 
For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2033 

Current Tax 
886.30 473.89 Provision for Taxation~Barlier years 
(2,52) 0.01 

883.78 473.90 Deferred tax expense/(eredif 
(6,837.88) (4,422.79) 
(5,954.10) (3,948.89) 

{All amounts in lakh untess otherwise stated’) PARTICULARS 
For the year eided For the year ended 
Mareli 31, 2024 March 31,2023 Accounting Profit before Incante Taxes 

23,465.47 21,740.68 Tax at India’s statutory income tax rate for SPVs (25.17%) (18,569.40) (£4,086:70) Tax at India's statutory income. tax rate for Business Trusts - Maximum 41,68 1,52 33,215.05 Marginal Rate (42. 744%) 
Tnerease/ {veduction) in ‘taxes on account of: 
Iiipact of deferred tax on reversible allowance/ disallowance of business 11,920.25 9,663.91 expense and income, as per Indian Income Tax Act, 1961 
Impact of exemption u/s 10(23FC) of the Indian Income Tax Act, 1961 (40,986.47) (32,741.15) available to.the Trust 
Income tax ¢ reported in the statement of profit.and loss (5.954.160) 



NATIONAL HIGWAYS INFRA TRUST 
SEBI Registration Number :- IN/InvIT/20-21/0014 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year endéd March 31, 2024 

38. Earning per Unit ; 
(All amounts in F taki tinléss otherwise stated) Particulars 

For the year ended For the year ended. 
March 32, 2024 March 31, 2023 

Basic and diluted EPU 
. Net Profit/ logs availabie for unitholders Gia & lakh ) 

29,419.70 25,689.57 Weighted average nuniver of units for EPL coniputation 73,36, 14,275.96 65,66,68,737:53 
EPU- Basie and diluted 

3.90 3.91 
Basic EPU amounts ate calculated by dividing the profit for the period/ year attributable to Unit holders by the weighted average number of units outstanding during the periods year, Diluted. EPU amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/(loss) atiributable to unit holders by the Weighted average autnber of units outstanding during the period/ year plus the weighted average number of units that would be issued on-cotiversion of all the dilutive piotential units into unit capital. 



NATIONAL HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
SEBI Registration Number :- IN/InviT/20-21/0014 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for 

39 Disclosure pursuant to Lid As 12" Employee benefits’ 
i) Defined contiibution plan 

the year ended March 31, 2024 

The group has provident fund whicl: is the defined contribution plan. The group is required to couttibute a specitied percentage of payroll costs to the recognised provident fund to Amd the berelits: The only obligation of the Broup with respect to these pions i& to make the specified contributions. 

An amount of Rs..65,87 lakhs (March 3£,2023.: Rs 15.27 lakhs being contribution made to recognised provident fund ig is recognised as expense. and ineluded under Employee. benefits expense (refer Nole 32) inthe Statement of Profit and Loss, 
(ii) Defined benefit plans: 
A Disclostire of gratuity 

a) Features of its defined benefit plans: 

The group has a unfunded defined bene tit gratuity plan. The gratuity plan is Gratuity Act’). Under the Aci, employee who has completed five years 

governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 ¢ the 
of service is entidled to specific benefit. The leyel of benefits provided depends on thie member's length of service and salary al retirement age. Every employee whe has completed five years or more of service Bets a gratuily on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary} for-each completed year of service as per the provision of the Act, 

‘The key features are as undey 

Plan Features 

i Benefit offered 

ii Salary Definition 

iii Benatit ceiling 
iv Vesting. conditions 
Vv Benefit eligibitity 
vi Retirement age 

15/26 = salary ™ duration of service 
Basic salary inchiding deamess allowance (iF any) 
Benehit ceiling of Rs. 20,00,000 was applied 
5 years of contiiuous service {not applicable in case of deatli/disnbility) 
Upon death or resignation / withdrawal or Tetirement 
0 Years (or) end of concession period, whichever és earlier 

‘The amounts recognised in Balance Sheet are as follows : {All amounts in % Tokh unless othenvise stated) Particofars 
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023 
Current Non-curvent [" Current Nov-current Graunity 

0.07 335.31 0.01 44] Leave eucashment 
2.41 33.39 4.55 6.96 ‘Total 
2.08 38.70 0.56 11.37 

i) Amount recognised in the statement of proBt and loss is as under: 

(Al anranuts in % lakh nuiess otherwise stated} Description 
As at 31 Marvel 2024 As at 31 March 2023 Current service casi 

‘30.77 442 Interest cost 
6.33 [ ” Net ingpact on profit (before tax) 

21.00 442 Actuarial loss/(pain} recognized during te year 
(0.13) : Amount recognized in total comprehensive income 20,97 4AZ 

(i) Change in the present value of obligation: 

(AlLamaunts in 2 lakh tinless otherwise stated) Description 
As at 31 March 2624 As at 31 March 2023 Present valve of defined bonefit obligation as at the 443 - Oegiining of the year : 

Current service cost 
20,77 4.42 Interest cost. 
0:33 - Benefits paid 

Acinariat loss/(painy 
(0.13) i Present valuc.of defined benefit Obfigation as at the end of 25,34, 442 the year 

(iii) Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation and the fair value of assets: 

(All aniaunts iu 2 lakh untess otherwise stated} Description 
As at 31 Mareh 2024 Ab at 31 Marely 2023 Present value of uwifinded obligation as at the end of the year 25.39 442 Eair value of plan asscts-ag at the-end-of the period finded - " Unfunded net liability tecpanizedag balance sheet 

25.39 4,42 



NATIONAL, HIGHWAYS INFRA TRUST 
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Notes to the Consolidated F inancial Statements for the year 

(iv) Breakup of actutrial (gain}loss: 

a] 

(vi) 

ended Marek 32, 2024 

(AL unounts in lakh nuiless oiherwisé stated) Description 
As sit 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023 Actuarial (gain)/logs from change in demographic assumption 

Actuarial (gainyioss from change in financial assumption 
Actuarial (gainVloss from experiance adjustment {0.13}, Total actuarial (gainytoss 

(0.13) - 
Actuarial assumptions 

Description 
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023 Discount rate 

738% 7.38% Rale of inorctise in compensation levels 7.00% 7.00% Retirement ape (years) 
60 60 

Notes: 

1) The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yield of Indian Government bonds as at the balance sheet date for the estimated terms of obligations. 
2) The estimates of future salary increases considered lakes into account the infl factors. 

Expected expense for the next anaval reporting period 

ation, seniority, promotion and other relevant 

(All antounts is 2 takh unless otherwise Stated) Deseripiion 
As at 31 March 2024 As at3t March 2023 Service cost 

32.14 12.16 Iierest cost 
1.83 0,33 Actuarial lass/(pain) 

" ~ Expected Expense for the next annual reporting periail 33.97 12,49 
(vil) Sensitivity analysis for Bratuily liability 

(AU amounts in T lakh uuless oihenyise slated) Description 
As at. March 2024 As at 31 Kaveh 2023 Unpact of change in discount rate 

Present vahie of obligation at the end of fie year 25,39 442 ~ Impact due to inerease.af 0.5 % 
ih?) (0.33) - Impact due to decrease of 0,5 54 

1,9] 0.37 Tripact of change in salary inerease 
Present value of obligation at the end-of the year 

25.39 tq7, - Impact due to increase oF 05 % 
1:9] G36 ~inpact die to decrease of 4% 

(1.75) (0.33) 
The above sensitivity amalysis is bascd ona change an assumplion while hiding all other assur 

may be correlated, When ¢: bendfit obligation to significant actuartal issumiptions ihe saine method (present value with the projected unit credit inethod at the end-of the reporting period) Has been 

is wilikely to occur and changes in some of the assumptions 

the defined benefit obligation liability recognized in the balance sheet. 

The methods and types of asstinptions used in preparing de seasitivity analysis did not ch 

(vill) Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation 

ptions constant. fn practice, this 
alcntating the sensitivity of the detined 

of the defined benefit obligation culcukated 
applied which was apptied while calculating 

ange compared io previous year. 

CAT ymounts jn % lakh untess otherwise stated) Deseription 
As at 31 Mawel 2024 As at 31 Marcl2023 Within next 12 months 

0.07 0.01 Between. 1-5 years 
3.28 o.t1 5 to 6 years 
0.58 6.23 Bévond 6 years 
21d 4.07 

Leave -cneashment 
Amount recognized in the staternent of profit and Joss is as under: 

AM amounts in 8 fakl unless otherwise staicil) Description 
As at-31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023 Cucrent service cost 

29,88 FS] lnterest cost 
0.55 : Actiarial loss/(pain) recognized during the year. G91 * Amount recognized in the-stalement of profit-aiid loss 3134 | Tal 
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40 Statenteat of Related Parties ; 
A. List of Related Parties ag per requirement of IND AS 24 —“Related Party Disclosures” 

Enterprises where Controt / significant influence exists 

National Highways Infra Projects 
Private Limited (NHIPPL') 

(Subsidiary Company) 

NAIT Eastern Projects Private 
Limited (NEPPL') 

(Subsidiary Company} 

B. List of additional related purties as per Regulation 2(1}(zy) of the SEBI laviT Reguiatiotis 
Parties tothe ‘Trust 

National Highways Infra Investment Managers Private Limited (NHIIMPL) - lvestment Manager (IM) of the Trust 
IDBI Tristeeship Services Limited (ITSL) - Trugteé of the Trust 

National Highways Authority of India (NHAI)- Sponsor 

National Highways InvIT Project Managers Private Limited (NHIPMPL)- Project Manager 

Promoters of the Partics to the Trust specified abave 

Goverment of India (acting Uirongh Mitistry of Road, Transport & Highways (MORTED - Promoter of NHIMPL 
IDG Bank Limited (1B) Bank) - Promoter of (T'SL ; 

Government of Indin (acting through Ministry of Road, ‘Transport & Highways (MORTH) - Promoter of NHAL 
National tlighways Authority of India (NHAI)- Fremotér of NHIPMPL 

Direetors of the parties to the Trust specified sbove 

Directors of NHIIMPL 

Mr. Suresh Krishan-Goyal 

Mr, Shailendra Narain Roy 

Mr, Mahavir Prasad Sharma 

Mr. Pradeep Singh Kharala 
Mr. NLRCV.VOMLR. Rajendra Kumor 

Mr. Sumit Bose 

Mr. Bruce Cane (Ceased to be Director wie. O07. 11.2023) 

Mr, Amit Kuumar Ghosh (Ceased to be Director wef 15.11.2023) 

Ms. Kavita Sate (Ceased to be Director weet, 08.11.2023) 

Mr. Pushkar Vijay Kulkami (Appointed as Director wet 08.11.2023) 

Mr, Debapratim Hajara (Appointed as Director wee.f 08.11.2023) 

Mr. Vinay Kinmar (Appointed a5 Nominee Direetorw.e.l. 27.03.2024) 

Ms. Usha Monad (Appainted as Woman Independent Director wet 16.04.2024) 

Directors of NHIPPL 

Mr, Suresh Kristian Goyal 

Mr. Shaifendra Narain Roy 

Mr. Mahavir Prasid Sharma 

Mr, Muralidhara Rao Bugaihe 
Mr. NCR-V.V.MLR, Rajendra Kumar 

Direetors of NEPPL 

Mr. Suresh Krishan Goyal 

Mr, Mathew George 

Mr. Mahavir Prasad Shara (Appointed as Director w.e.t 15.04.2024) 

Mr. Shallendra Narain Ray (Appoinied as Director w.e.f 15.04.2034) 

Directors of ITSL 
Mr. Pradeep Kumar: Jaiti 

Mg. Jayashréé Vijay Ramde 

Mr, Pradeep Kummer Malhotra 

Nis. Baljinder Kaur Mandal 
Ms, Jayakumac Subramoniapiilai 

Directors of NEFAPMPL 

Mr. Akhil Khare 

Mr. Ashish Kumar Singh 
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Nates to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

C. Transaetions with Related Parties during the year 

{AL amounts in Z lakh uatess otherwise stated) . Year ended Year ended Porticalars 31st Maren 2024 31st Marc: 2023 
National Highways Intra Lavestmetit Managers Private Limited (NHOMPL) 
Investment Manager Fee 

1,360.00 1491, 17 Advance Investment Manager Fee Paid 
4,93 86.06 Expense incurred by NHIIMPL on behalf of NHIT 
15,35 39.79 Expenses ineurred on behalf of NEPPL by NHIIMPL. 
35,00 - Other Support Serviees to NHIPPL. 
22.96 3.12 Expenses incurred by NHIPPL for NHIIMPL Behalt 
0:65 - Reimbursement of Expenses 

- 0.07 
Nationat Highways Authorily of india (NHAI 
Issue of units of Trust la NAL 

1,09,08 [.07 21.366,83 In(erest and olher income distribution 
8,641.92 5589.34 Payment relaied to aquisition af inangible assets 

- 284,966.66 O&M Expenses 
96.03 1,152.32 Double tall fees 

“$28.00 679,17 Reimbursement for Initial Improventent Works 
3,146.59 - independent engineers fees 
228.56 45,38 

IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited (TSh) 
Payment of Trisiee Fee 

9.60 P2373 Other fees related to Round | & 2 Assets 
130 3.54 Other Fees related to Rouad 3 Assets ("Praject Leap") 
[7.58 

[PBI Bank Limited 

Secured Lan giver to NHIT 
£9,006.00 - Interest Expeuse ineurted on Loan given to NHIT 

4.38 - Repayment of Principal Amount 
0.00 - Loan Processing Fees Paid to them 
41.30 - 

National Highways InVIE Project Managers Private Limited (NHIPMIPL) 
Project Manager Fees 

1,168.20 991,20 

DB. Suoumary of Transactions wilh Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) 

(ATL amounts in 2 lakh woless athervise sate} = : . Year ended ¥ear citded 
Nanie of KMP and Nature of Transaction 31st March 21124 31st March 2023 

Mr, Suresh Krishan Goyal - Reimbursement of Experses 
0.79 6.39 Mr. NLP. Sharma - Directors Sitting, Fees 
8.00 640 Mr, Shaitenura Namin Roy + Directors Sitting Fees 
8.00 640 Mrs. Ajanta Sen ~ Short Term Employment Benefits 

- LB Mr. Arun Kumar Jtia ~ Short Tenn Employment Benefits 69.35 . Mr. Arun Kumar Jha ~ Reimbursement of Expenses 
3.3] . Mr. Bhanu Shama {C3} - Short Tenn Employment Benelitg 
ray 39) Mr. Bhanu Sharma(CS) — - Reimbursement of Expenses 
G47 - Ms. Aashima Aganwal(C8)- Shart Tenn Eniployment Benerits 6.28 Ms. Aashima Agarval (C3) Reimborsement of Expenses 
058 
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, Closing Balances with Related Parties 

(All amounts fn 2 lakh unless Othectise stated) Pariicutars 
As at March 31, 2424 As.at Mareli31, 2033 National Hishways Authority of India (NAT) 

Tssue of units of Trust to NHAL 
O&M Expenses payable 
Double toll fees payable 
Independent Engineers Fees payable 
Amount Payable for Initial Improvement Works 

National Highways Indra fnvestinent Managers Private Limited (NEUIMPL) Advance [IM Fee 

IM Fee Payable 
Payable by NHIPPL for Other Support Services 
Expenses: Payable 
Amott Payable by NEPPL for expenses Incurred on their behalf by NHUMPL 

IDG] Trusteeship Services Limited 
Trustee Fee Payable 
Other Pees related i6 Round 3 Assets {"Prajeet Leap" 

IDG! Bank Limited 
Outstanding Secured Loan Amount 

Natiginul Highways InVUr Projecd Managers Private Limited NHIPNIPL)}. Project Manager Fees Payable 

2,27,003.91 
71798 
10.19 

4315 

829.65 

4.93 

16.69 

25.00 

1.73 

2.68 

9,999.99 

540,00 

1,17,922.83 
880.35 
151.17 
276.03 
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41 Disclosure is per Ind AS.115, "Revenue-from contracts with customers" 

A 

_ nm
 

o 

Disageregation-of revenue 
Revenue recognised juainly comprises of revenue from toll collections, caims-with NHAT, coniract revenue, Set out below is the disaguregation of the Group’s revenue-from contracts with custdmers; 

{AGL suivounts in % lakh uolese alenwte stated} 

For the year For ¢he year ended 
Description 

ended aie mi 
Mareli 31,2024 Mareh 31,2023 Operating revenue 

(a) Toll income (User Fee) from Highways 
94,390,277 68,708:93 (b) Interest on delay in Toll Remittance 

- 8.17 
Total revenue 

94,390.77 68,717.20 
The ‘table below presents disaggregated revenues from contracts with customers baséd an nature, amount and timing: 

Types of Types of Services For ihe year For the year ended 

S.No, Products by by Timing: etd March 31, 2023 Nature 
March 38, 2024 , iT Services At the point ia 94,390.77 68,717.20 tine 

Assets and Habilities relnted to contracts with eustamers 
The following table pravides information about receivables, contract assets and contract liabilities Irom contract with customers: 

As At As At 
Description 

Mareli 31,2024 | Marél.31,2023 
Current Current 

Contract asseis 

Trade. receivables: 
~ Receivables under service coneession ATTN gemsiits 

384.20 350.87 
Total 

385.20 350,87 
Performance Obligation 
Income from toll eoHection 

The performance obligation in service of tall collection is recorded a8 per rates notified by NHAL and approved by management and payment is seuerlly due al the time of providing service, 

Contract revenue 
; The perfornaiice obligation under service concession agreements (SCA is due an'completion-of work ag per terms of SCA, 

. Disclosure as per Appendix - C.& Def Ind AS LIS - " Service Coiedssivn. Arrangements” All the below service concession arrangement have been accounted lundet intangible asset model 

Till year étided Marcli 31, 2024 
Naate of Concessionaire, 

Start of End ‘of Concession Period of Coneession 
Concession period Beried undcr” ——stitee dhe appointed under contession coricession dite 

agreement Agreement (in days) 
(Appotited Date) National Highways Infra Projects Private Limited 

16.12.2071 15.12.205] 837 National Highways Infta Projects Private Liniited 29.10.2092 28.10.2042 520 
Tae above TOT projects shall have Jollowing rights’/ obligations in aceardaace with the Concession Agreenivnt entered inte with the. respective Goverament Authorities 
a. Right 10 use.the Specified Asseis 
b. Obligations ic provide ar rights to except provision of services 
c. Obligations to detiver o ights.tg, receive at the Gad of cotivession 
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42 Capital Management 

For the purpose of the Group's capital management, capital includes issued nit capital and ail other reserves attributable 
Group. 

The primary objective of the Group's capilal management is to ensuite that it maintains a strar 
support its business and maximise unit holder value. 
The Group manages its capital stricture and makes adjustments to it in fight of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial 
covenants, To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend p: 
pravisions af SEBI InviT Regulations which require distribution of at least 99%oF tlie net distributable cash Hows of the Group to unit holders), return 

ng credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to 

ayment / income distribution ta unit holders (subject to the 

capital to unit holders-or issue new units. The Group monitors capital using 4 géaring ratic, which is net debt divided by total capital 
Group’s policy is to keep the gearing ratio aptiman, 

CAM amounts iu 2 lakh noless otherwise stated) 

Particulurs AS at As at 
March 31,2024 | Marck 31, 2023 

Net Debt-Components: 

Long Term Borrowings (Non-Curtent portion) 11,63,304,94 2,92,158.33 
Current Maturities of Long-Ferm Borrowings 10,05-£.00 2.000,00 
Trade Payables 

4,754,99 4,008 40 
Other firancial liabilities 7,305.43 5.284 05° 
Less;.Caslt dnd Cash Equivatents (46,400.78) (71,124.98) 
Less: Other Finangial Assets-comprising DSRA FDs (10,687.46) (9,670.84) 
Net Debt (6 

14,28,42 1.12 272,656.76 
Capital Components: 

Linit Capital 
14,67,093,47 741 604.32 

Initial Settlement Amount 6.10 0.10 
Other Equily. (27,544.44) (2,469.86) 
Total Capital (ii) 14,39,552.13 739,154.56 
Capital and Debt (git) = (i) + (i) 25,67 973.25 10, 11,791.32 
Gearing Ratio (DAG 43,94% 26.95% 

to the unit holders of the 

plus net-debt, The 

Fiaaneial Covenants: 

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Board of Directors of Investment Manager, amongst other Lines, airs to ensure that il mects ftiancial 
covenants allached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings thal define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants 
would pennit the lenders to calf foaus and borrowings. There have been so breaches in the financial covewants of uty interest-beariig loaus and 
berrmving in the current year, No changes were made im the objeclives, policies or processes for managing capital during te years ended March 34, 
2624 and March 3), 2023. 

43 Financial Risk Management Objectives and Polivies 
The Group is in the process of formulation af ts risk munagement policies with an objective of identification and analysis of risks: faced by tie Group, to 
set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits, Risk management. policies shall be reviewed regularly to retleet 
changes in market conditions and the Group's activities. ; 
The Board of Directors of Investineat Manager has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk management 
(ramework. 

Ta performing its operating, investing ad financing activilics, the Group-is exposed to the Credit risk, Liquidity risk and Market risk, 

AEarket Risk 

Market risk is the risk that the fiir valué 6f ficure cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because Of chinges in iiarket prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk. Financial instruments affected by aiarket risk iticlude loans and borrowings, Reccivable and Payables and Investments measured at EVTPL,, 
The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the-position as al March 3! , 2024 and March 31, 2023. 
The sensitivity analyses have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to floating interest rates of the debt are all 
constant. 

The following assumptions have béen made in calculating the sensitivity analyses? 
The sensilivity of the relevant profit or loss item is ihe effet. of the assumed changes in respective market risks, This is based on the financial assets and financiil- Liabilities held at March 31, 2024 & March, 31, 2023, 
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Foreign Currency Risk 
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because af Shanges im foreign excha Group- transaets business primarily. in Indian Rupees only, and heneg, the sensilivity of profit and. loss of the Group-to a possible change in foreign exchange rites ig non-existent a3 dn 31" March, 2024 and 31st March, 2023. 

Interest Rate. Risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk-that tHe fair value or fature cash flows of 3 financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market Exposure to risk of changes in ntarket imerest rates generally relates primarily to long-term debt-oblizations with floating interest rates. 

The following table provides a break-up of the Broup fixed and floating rate borrowings: 

(All anountsin 2 lakh unless otherwise stated} 

Asat March 31, Particulars 

2024 
‘As at March 31, 

203 Floating Rate Borrowings 
10,26,927,70 145,987.43 | 

Sensitivity analysis based on average outstanding Debt: {All amounts ia 2 lakh noless otherwise stated} 

As at March 31, Particulars 
3024 AS at Mareh 31, 

2023, hicreasé or decrease in interest rte by 25 basis pots 2,567:32 364,97 

Price Risk 

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash fows of a financial instrument will (uetnate heeause of changes in market prices-Cother thar tose arising [ror interest rate risk or currency risk), 

Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligagons under a financial instrupent or customer contrac respect to credit risk arising from other inaneial assets of the Group, which comprise Balances with banks, Trade Investinents, The Group's exposure to credit risk arises fom default of the counterparty, with maximum exposure equal fo the earryin instrument, 

The carrying yalue of financial assets represents the maxim credit risk. The maxinwin exposure to credit risk was Rs. 57,481 31,154.04 Lakh as at Marelt 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 respectively, being. the-(otal carrying value af Trade receivables, Investments, Batances with bank, bank deposits arid other financial assets, 

Liquidity Risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that-an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obfigations associated with financial ltabitities that are settled by delivering eash or anotlicr financtal agsets. 
The Group is exposed to liquiility risk due to bank borrowings and trade’and other payables, The Group measures risk by forecasting cash lows. 
The Group's approach (0 managing lighidity i& to ensure, as far ny possibile, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to navet its liabilities without incurring tnacceptalile losses or risking daniage to the Group's reputation, The Group ensures that jt has sufficient finds ta meet expected operational expenses, servicing of financin! obligations, 

In addition, processes and policigs reluted to such risk are overseen by senior manhgement, Management monitors the through rolling forecast on the basis ofexpected cash flows. 

t, luading to a financial toss. With 
Receivables, Loans and Advances and 

2 amount of these 

“35 Lakh and Rs. 

Group's net liquidity position
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the group's financial liabilities based On contractu 

gistration Number ‘~ IN/InvIT/20-21/0014 
d Financial Statemen ended March 31, 2024 

al undiscounted paymenis, 

(Ali sandunts in F-lakl unless othervise stated) As at 3143-2024 Carrying <1 vr. 1-3 Yrs, 3 Yrs. AMoUTE 
Term Loan 

10.24,909,85 19,054.00 26,862.00 9,87,893.85 Non-Convertible Debentures 148,639.00 - + 1,48,639,09 Trade Payables 
5754.09 4,754.99 - - Other Finaricial Liabilities 7403.43 7305.43 - . Total 

11,85,509.36 22,114.42 26,862.10 11,36,532,94 

As at 31-03-2023 Carrying <I Yr, 1-3 Yrs, 23 Yrs. Amourit 
Term Loan 

145,570.14 2,000.00 §,000,00 1,37,570,13 ¢ Noa-Convertible Debentures 1.48.588.20 - - 148/588 20 Trade Payables. 
4,008.40 4,008.40 : - Other Financidl Liabilities 5.28495 5,284,095 : ~ Tota 

303,451.67 11,293.36- 6,000.00 2,86,158.33 
44 Diselosure pursuit to IND AS 36 “Inpairment of Assets 

Based on impairment testin 2 done which invalves teview of the funmie discoun ied cash ows of the subsidiary, the recaverabl, canying amount of he investment inade in the subsidiary and accordingly, the reporting date, In case of 
No provision lor impairment i 

goodwill based on impairment testing recover, 
iS required to be rec 

45 Financial Instrument by Category 

no provision (or impairment. is required to be re 
ec amount is higher (han the 
cophised in the books as on able amount is higher then the carrying value as on the reporting date, hence Seuised in the boaks as on reporting date. 

(All amounts in 2 lakh untess alherwise siatcd) As at 31st March, 2024 
As ad Stat Marek, 2023 

Particulars Aniortized Cost Mt AL FVOCGI Amortized Cost ar ALFVOCI FYYPL 
FTVPL Assets: 

Trade Receivables 385,20 - - 350,87 - Casit and Cash Equivalents 46,400,78 - - 21,124.08 - . 
Bank Balances Other than 512.98 7 . 7 . ; 
Cash & Cash Equivatents i 
Other Financial Assets 10,182.49 . * 9.679.009 - * 
Tatal 57,481.35 - - 34,154.04 “ - 
Liabilities: 
Borrowings it,73,4¢8,94 - ” 2,94, 158,33 - “ Trade Payables 4,754.09 - - 4,008.40 - . 
Other Financial Liabitities 7,305.43 - > 5.284,95 ” : 
Total 11,85,509.36 - - 3,0345 1.67 - - 
Defaults and lreaches 
There are-no defaults during the year w. 
borrowings. 

WU) respect io repayment of principa | and payment of interest and no breaches of the terms and conditions of the 
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The carrying amount of al! financial assets and labilities appearing in the financial slatemenis is reasonable approximation of fair values. Fair-value of 
the finaiicial assets and liabilities’ is the amount at whith the instrument could be exchanged in 3 curresit transaction between willing patties, other than 
ina forced or liquidation sale. 
The Group is required to present the Stalenwent of total assets at fair value and Statement of total returns at fair value as per SEBI Circular No, 
CIRM DDE ILA2016 dated Ostober 20, 2016 asa part of these financial statements - Refer Statemeni of Net assets at fair value aad Statement of 
Total-Returns at thir value 

Fair Value Higrarehy 
The Group uses the foliowing hierarchy for-fair-value measurenicat of the Group's financial assets and Vabilities: Level ! - Gtioted prices {unadjusted) inactive markets for identicatasscts or liabilities, Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted Prices included within Level | that are observable for the asset or liability, either a] ireetly tie. as prices) of indirectly 
(i.e, derived from prices), 
Level 3 + Inputs for the assets or liabitities that are not based on observadle market data (unobservable inputs}. 
Fair value of fingneind assets and financistl abilities that are not measuredat fir value (but fair value disclosures are required) 

{All arpounts in @ lakh wiless otherwise stated} Carrying Value Pair Vatue Particulaes Agat AS at Ag at As at Sist March, 3st March, 2023 Sist Mareh, 2024 3ist March, 2023 Financial Assets at Antortized Cost: 

Trade Receivables 
385.20 350.87 385,20 330.87 Cash and Cash Equivalents 46,400.78 21,134.08 46,900.78 21, (24.08 

Bank Balances Other than 
Cash & Cash Equivalents 512.98 . 512.98 . Loans & Advances 

. - - - Other Fingneial Assets 10,182.40 9679.00 10,182.49 9,679.09 Fatal 
57,481.34 ST, £54.04 57,481.35 31,154.04 Financial Liabilities at Amortized Cost: 

Borrowings* 
11,73,448,94 2,94, 158.33 L1,75,448.94 2.94,158,33 Trade Payubles 

4,754.99 4,008.40 4,754.99 4,008.40 Other Financial Liabitities 7305.43 3,284.95 7,305.43 5,284.95 Total 
185,509.36 305,451.67 11,85,509,36 303,451.67 The carrying value of financial assets and other financial liabilities measured at Amortised cost are considered to be same as thelr Fair values largely dne 

io their short tern nature. 

*The carrying value of borrowines approximates the fair value as ihe instruments are at Prevading marked rate 
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Statement of Con Hngent Liabilities/Coutin gent Assets 

(Al pttoumts in 2 Lakh unless otherwise stated) 
Asat As at 

Particulars 
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2033 

Contingent Linbilities : 
Stamp Duty of Concession agreement on Belgauin Kagal 
Project (refer note (a} below} 

6,990,00 - Carporate Guarantee issued in favour of Senior Lenders & 
Debenture Trsutee of the Trust (refer note (c} ) 

4,37, 700,00 3,50,006,00 Contingent Assets 
Stamp ‘Duty én Concession agreement on Belgaum Kabal 
Project (refer note (by below } 

6,990.00 - 
a) Stamp Duty on Coacession aigreanent on Belparen Kagat Project - The group has received notice from Office of Deputy Registrar of Stamps, 
Government of Karnataka: As per this notice additional stamp duty of Rs 69,90 crore has been imposed on the group for the concession agreement entered 
into for Belosum-Kagat road, 
Stamp legislation in certain.states tinelitding Karmuataka) also specifies that copy of the main document in respect of any property, or any business Within the 
state also needs to be siampad with original amount of stamp duty, if the original document tag not been stamped with full amount of the stamp duty 
applicable tor place of busingss, 
As regards to the applicability of stamp duty on Concession Agreement, it may please be noted that there is no specific entry in respect of the cancessiog 
agreement. Such agreements are stamped under (he residuary category of tlle agreements and a nominal amowuil was paid on such ggreements, We we given 
fo understand that the Karnataka State Govt. has given instructions ta procure copies of licence ‘Agreement of toll esliceting agencies in Tespect of roads 
passing through state of Kamuiaka, We have further been issued 9 natice for Teeovery of shorliatt-in stamp duty. Various judicial pronoyneements by various high courts have divergent views and the issue iy debatable and there is no clarity on the same. The group is comesting this impésition of deficit stamp duty on concession agreement natice with Govemment ef Kamataka, We are also in receipt of 
Copies of letters sent by NEAL to the Kamataka State Govt clarifying the issuc. The group is in the process of fil ing injuction with the Dharwad berth of 
Kamataka High Court. 

b) Contingent Assets 

Stuap Duty on Concession agreement On Belgaum Kagal Projeet- in the event of the samp duly becoming payabie, it shall be reimbursed by NHAL as 
confirmed by them vide letter No. NHADF RAANVIT/202 |-2CLEN OSTRSDUE- 106870) dated 28.09.2021. Since no provision has been reeagnised in 
the books with respect to stunp duty, the reimbursement has not been Tecogniged as an asset Covisidering tite guidance ii Mid AS a7, 
¢) Corporate Guarantees 

3!" March 202¢ Rs 437,706.00 Lakh 
31" March 2023 Re 3,50,000.00 Lakh 

The Project. SPY company (NHLPPL) has issued Corporate Guarantees amounting to Rs, 2,000 Crore or secured obligations on 14.03.2027 and Rs.877 
Crore or secured obligations an 08.01.2024 in favour of Senior Lenders, Rs. 1,500 Crore 9r secured obligations on 21.10.2022 in favour of Bebenture 
Trustee of the Tryst-tor the benefit oF NCD holder: 

The group dering previous year hus caried out a fair valuation of Corpdrate Guanuces referred above from an independent extemal valuer. Tasis such 
vuluaiion report and management estimate, Fair value of Corparate gurntec is estimated to be Nil, 

Financial Information of Investment Mirnager 
The summary financials of irivesittent Manager are not disclosed Atongwilh these financials as its pervert is not materially eroded: 
The. Cade on Social Seturity. 2620 (Code) relating to employee benefits during employment and host-employment benefits revived Presidential assent in 
September 2020. The Cede has been published in ihe Gazette of India, However, the date on which the-Code will come into effect has not ‘been notified The 
Group wil! assess the impact.of tle Code when it comes into effect and will recard any related impact in the period the Code becomes effective, 

Withholding Tax.leabibty.for interest acerued but pot due on non convertible debentures The Trust bas issued publicly iisted non convertible debenhires CNCDs") swith interest payable on semi-annual basis, Interest on these NCOs was due far 
Puy Ment on 25 April 2024 and for the purpose OF payment of interest, record chite was 10 April 2024 and debenture-holders cxisting ay on 10 Apeil 2024 are. 
entitled to the eoiipoui interest,-Trust has recorded Jiabilily of interest acerued till. 3 lst Mareli 2024 and there is-no ereditin fivour of any payee at the time of 
creating such provision as entitled payee will be identifiable as on record date ie, an 10 April 2024, 

As on the year end March 2024, there is Uncertainty wilh respect te. the-iltimate reciptent of interest income, and such uncertainly would only becorie clear 
on the record date Le, 10 April 2024 when the abl igation of payment of interest.by WHIT arises and therefore Trust has not withheld ‘ny taxes at the time of 
creating these provisions, 
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Distribution made 

(AH aniounts in 2 lakhauless othoryise statud} 
— 

Por the year ended For the year ended 
Particulars 

Maecis 31, 2024+ Mareh 31, 2033 Jaterest 

43,240.46 29,985.39 
Returm-oF capitat 

- - 
Dividend 

. . 
Other income af the Trust 

602.92, 240,39 Total 

42,843.38 ; 30/225,78 
“The disizibution refates to the distributions during the finaigial year dong witlt the distribution related to the last quarter of FY 2023-23 and does not 
inehide the distritntion, relating to the period February OF, 2024 to March 31, 2024 which will be paid afer Match 31; 2024, The distrihutions by the Trust 
to.its emit holders are based onthe Net Distributable Cash Flows of the Trust under the SEBI IiviT Regulations, 

Deisils of Projeet Management Fees and Invesinent Management Fees 

Details of fees paid te project manager and investment manager as required pursuant to SEBI Circular Ne, CIRMEYDFH27°0) 6, dated 29ih November 
2016 areas under: 

Project NEwiagerment Fees: 
The project nyanager National Highways InVIT" Project Managers Private Limited CNHIPMPE*} for NHIPPL (Rt & R2 assets) and is entitled to fixed fees 
based on the Project Unplementation and Management Agreement (PIMA) signed by both the parties dated 30th March 2021 a8 amended on Sih March 
2024. NHIPMEBL is also Project. Mansger for NEPPI, (R3 Assets) wieF ts April 2024 as per deed of adherence signed on 7h March 2024, : 
Investment Atmagement Fecy: 

1) The Investment Manager's fee ng per agreement dated 21st October 2020 will initially be Rs. 1,100 Lakh (Rupees Eleven Hundred Lakhs) per annin, 
ii} The Tavestinent Management Agreement is revised and the fee with effect trom Ist April 2023 has been agreed at Rs 1.800 Lakhg (Rupees Bighteca 
hundeed lakhs) far the Finanedal Year 5-24. 
fii} The management fee sel out in panigraph (if) above shall be subject to esealstion.on an annual basis at the.rate of 10% of ihe Management fee for the 
Previous year. 
iv] Any applicable taxes, vegs or charges, as the, case niay be, shail be. in addition te the mangement fee and shalt be payable by National H ighways Inita 
Trust (NHIT) to the Hvestinent Manager (NHIIMPL) ; Payment off frequency: Payment of mébagement fee shall be Inade by National Highways Infra Trust (NUIT) to the Investment Mangiger (NHTIMPL) in 
advaneg ana quarterly basis othe beginning of exeh quarter of a financial year. 

Provision for Majer Maintenance 

; The proup has a.contractual obligation to maintain the performance standards of the Project Highways in respect ofridiag quality and allied measures as per 
the performance Perancters stipulated under the Tespective Concession Agreements: Cost of such, obligation is measured at the best ‘estiinate of the 
expenditure required ta.suitlé the obligation at the balance sheet date and recognised aver ihe period at the end Of whieh ihe overlay is estimated to be camied 
out using Discounted Cash Flows meilind with the diseount tale laken as the fiske(tce iilerest- rate i.e, the discounting rate used for arriving at the present 
value for MMR provisions ig goremnient: bond rate of 30 years for projects acquired in first phase and 20 years for Projects aequired in second phase, The 
group has recognised finance cast on ingjor maitienance provision for the year ended Marel 31, 2024 amounting-to Rs, 470-79 Lakhs (PY. Rs, 24.95 
jakis), The provision for Major- Maintenance Obligation as at March 3 1, 2024 fas Been recognised in the financial statements ai Rs 8,444.05 Lakhs iP ¥, 
Rs. 6307.44 Lakhs), 

laitiaT Iniprovement Works 
As per the concession agreement between NHIPPL and NHAI, the concessionaire is obligated ta undertake initia! inprovement works’ ag Specified in 
Schedule B. including sériain improvement works required initially and tien 10 extend requiired repairs maintenance, regular upkeep ¢f ihe Project Flighway., 
These obliguiions will require. outhow of ccanamic Tesources and will be fulfilled over the period of tite, Therefore; a provision shiall be recopnised and, 
meastited as.per Ind AS 37 for contraciral obligations toward the Fair Value.of future upgrade services and. Correspondingly the group shall capitatize the 
present value of provision for upurade services io the intangible asset at the time oP acquisition, 
Ad the time of acquisition of SPV there was uncertainty with respect to.the cost estimates for the initial improvement work ta be doite and the Broup wis in 
discussion with NHAL tor de-scoping of vériain work, Further, as-per Ind.as 38, an intangible asset-can be recogtiised if-and only, if the cost of the asset can. 
-be measured reliably, 

Since the cost for initial inhproverent work was mot abcertainable until 1st Dec 2023 (under Ind. AS 38) because of discussiali around de-sconitig of vatious 
works, no Tellable estimates ‘could. made for the Fair Vahie- of ihe’ said scope. This was further substantidled with the techniedl nate Prepared by the 
technical départmeit basis their discussion artd meetings wih NHAL and various veridars. Considering thay the manageinent has now ascertained te casts 
based on contracts awarded And the: sign off received fra the PME, (estimated as required under Ind AS 38) bas how , based an discussions with its 
technical consultants, capitalised the initia: impfovernent “works amounting to Rg, (;21,997,39 Lakhs (Uniliseointed Valuc) on Ist Dec 2023; 

December 2023 with corresponding impict in Statement af Profit and Loss. a amortization of initial ‘improvement work and uinwinding of imefest on provision ef initial impravenient respectively, 
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Statement of Commitments 

(Al amounts in 2 lakh tinless otherwise stated) 
. 

Asat As-at 
Particulars 

Mareh 31, 2024 Minch 31, 2023 Estimated amount.of contracts temaining té be executed on capital account and not provided far 
49,693.13 - Total 
G98 TT : Segment Reporting 

The activities of the Group mainly include. investing in infrastructure assets primarily in the SP¥s operating in the raed sector to generate cash flows for 
distribution to unit holders, Based: on the guiding principles given in Ind AS-- (G8 “Operating Segincnis”, this activity falis within a single operating 
S¢gment. Further, the entire Operations of the Group are only in Indi and hence, disclasure of secondary? Seagraphical sezment information dacs dot arise, 
Accordingly, requirement of providing disclosures under Ind AS 10g does notarise, 

Salient aspects of the Tolling Concesston Arrangement 
The Project SPY (NHIPPL) has-entered into five concession agreements with National Highway Authority of India CNHAT") on Mareh, 30, 2021 for 
Tolling, Management, Mainienanee and Transfer of five toll road projects fra period of 30 years From the Appointed Date. The Appainted Bate has 
commenced on 16.12.2021, The toll roads covered under the concession Ogreement as follows: 
- Palanpur’ Khemana — Abp Road Project (from kn 6014090 to kin 646-4000} of NH-27, conhecting the states of Gu; - Abu Road. Swaroopganj Project (trom km 6464000 to kin 6774000) af N#-27 , in tie state of Rajasthan + Maharashtra Kamatika Bofder (Kagal)—~ Belgauny Project (fram km 6464000 ia km 6774000) of NH-48, connecting the states of Karnataka and 
Malarashira 
- Chitorparh- Kota & Chittorgarh Project (fron: kon 89) +929 to kim 10524429) of NH-27 , in the stale of Rajasthan 
+ Kothikela Bypass- Kumool Highway Project (irom km 1354469 to km 2] 14000) of NH-dd , connecting the slates of Telangana and Andina Pradesh 

jest and Rajasthan 

In previous financial year, Project SPV (NHIPPL} entered into three new concession agreements with National Highway Authority of India CNHAPY on 
Septeirber 26, 2022 far Tolling, Management, Maintenange and ‘Transfer oF three tall road projects fora porind of 26 years from the Appoinicd Date. The 
Appointed Date has commenced 0129, 10.2022, The toll roads covered vder the boncession agceement as foligws: 
~ Agra bypass Seetion (from kar 0.000 te kn 32,800) of NH-I9 in the slate of Uttar Pradesh - Borkhed?-Wadner-Deodhari-Kelnpur Sectioa (from kin 36.600 fo km 175.000) of NE-44 in the state of Maharasittra » Shivpurt— Jhansi Section (from km 1305.087 to km 1380.387) of NH-27 in the states of Madhya Pridesh and Uttar Prades). 
The project SPV (NHTPPL) is required t9 operate and maintain the Project Project Facilities in accordance with the provision af the Agreement, Applicable 
Laws and Applicable permits, 

The Project SPV (NEPPL has entered into seven concession agreements with National Highway Authority of India CNHAL for Tolling, Management, 
Maittenance and Transfer of seven toll road projects fara period of 20 years icin the Appointed Dale. The Appointed Dale hug conmmenced an O1,04. 2024 
and therefore the fevenne and expenses. of test seven rod projecis shail be recognised from hext financial year, The toll roads covered under the concession 
Agreeinent are as follows: 

-Chichra = Kharagpur Projest ; Chicka ~ Kluragpur section of NH 49 With 4 total length of 56,12 kms, in the state of West Bengal: 
“Rewa -Lekhnadon Project : Rewa —Katni — JaSalpur — Lakhnadan section of NH 30and NET 34 with a total length of 306.34 kms, in the state of Madhya 
Pradesh; 

-Kachugaoy Kaljhar Project: Kachugnon ~ Rakhaldubj Bus Junction = Kaljbar section of NIH 27 with a total length oF 14.17 kins, in the state of Assam -Kaljhar — Patacharkuchi Project : Kaljhar — Patacharkuchi section of NH 27 witha total length of 27,30 kms, in-the stare of Assam: 
-Lakhoadon— Mahagaon (Mohgacn) —~ Khawasa - Lakhnadon— Mahagaon {Mohgaon) —- Khaywasa section OF NH 44 with a total length of 107,35 kins, fa 
the state of Madhya Pradesh, 
~Orai ~ Barah Project : Orai~ Barah seetion of. NE 27 wilh o total length of 62,90 kins, in the state of Utlar Pradesix, and -Chitradurga Bypass — Hubti Project! Kansataka Project : Chitradurga Bypass — Chitradurga — Davanagere — Hayeri — Hublé section of NE 48 wilh d total 
fength of 214.47 kms, in the stute at Kamataka. 

The Group acquired rights for Tolling, Management and Maintenaiee’ of the seven toil roids wnder the concession agteentent signed. with NEAL for 
considendtion af INI. 13,69,988.18 Lakhs . and the same have ‘been recognized in current year findocial statements ag Capital Advaite to NHAL ag 
appointed date for the project is wef 01.04.2024, 

The Group is required to Operate and martain the Project’ Project Facilities in accordance with the provision of the Concession Agreement, Apali 
Laws and Applicable pennits. 
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58 Material Developments 
The group is in tie process of changing the imme of one of it's SPV fom National Highways Intia Projects Private Limited-to NHIT Wester Projects 
Ptivate Lintited and has obtained necessary sharcholders approyil for the same, The procedural formailities are under process with Ministry of Corporaie 
Affairs. 

The Trust has invested the amount of Rs. 240,616 Lakh in the equity share capital of the NHiT Eastern Projects Private Limited (Project SPV's - Tl) daring 
the year. NEPPL aegitired righis for Tolling, Management and Maintensnce of the seven toll roads under the concession agreement signed with NHAL for 
consideration of INR 15,69,989,18 Lakins , Appointed date-for the froject is wef 01.04.2024, 

59 The Board of Directors of the-Lavesiment Manager has declared distribution for January 2024 of Rs. 0.631 per unit which comprises of Rs. 0.606 per unit as 
interest and Rs, 0,025 per unit as other income on surplus funds at the Trust level in, their meeting held on dih March, 2024, Farther, the Board of Directors 
of the Investtitent Manager has declared distribution for February 3024 & March 2024 af Rs. 0.705 per unit which comprises of Rs. 0.587 per unit ag 
interest.and Rs. 0.018 per unit as viher income on surplus funds aLthé Trust level in their meeting held on 27h May, 2024, The Board of Directors of the Investatent Manager has declared distribution for Quarter 3 of FY 2023-24 of Rs, |.697 per unit whieh comprises of Rs, 
1.693 per unit as interest-and Re. 0.004 per unit as other income-on surplus funds-at the Trust level in their meeting held on 3nd February, 2024, 
The Beard. of Directors of the Investinent Manager had declared distribution for Quarter 2 of FY 2023-234 af Rs. 1.816 per unit which compriscs of Rs. 
1,774 per anit as interest and Rs. 0.042 per unit‘as other income on surplus finds st the Trust level in their mecting held on &th November, 2033 and the 
Board of Directors of the Thvestmént Manager had declared distribution For Quartee LofFY 2023.24 of Rs. 1754 Per unit Which comprises of Rs. 1.742 ‘per 
unit as interest and Rs, 0.012 per unit as other itcome on surplus finds arthe Trust fevel In their meeting held on ft August, 2093, 

60 Financial Ratios as.on March 31, 2024 and Marcli 31, 2023 
5. No Particulars 

Asat Agat 
“ae 

March 31, 2024 Miareh 31, 2023 Curent Asset ratio , eae 
ity 

a 

: (Current Assets {Current Liability) 
o 2.00 Deli- Equity ratio 2 ‘ 

52 
(Debtf Equity) 

o8 aie 
+ Debt service coverage ratio 

15d 519 
; (Net Operating Cash flows Debt Serviee Obligetian) 

“ _ Interest service.caverage ratio 4 : = 
1.84 2 

(ERT /Finanée Cost) 
§ a 

a Netwarth (Unit Capital + Other Eauity) 
14.39,552,13 7.39.134.56 

& Asset Cover Ratio 
201 a2i 

: Relucn on Equity (ROE ratio) 
+ 408, , 

: : 

2.70% 
ay 

; (Net Profit Equity) 
70% 3.82% 

8 Tota! Debt to total assats 
O43 0.28 

Es Net profit alter tax 
29,419.70 25,680 57 

1 Outsianding redeemable preftronee shares (quantity and value) - - 4 li Capital rederiiption reverye/debonture Tedeniption reserte - 
“ - 

| 12 Long tn debt to working capital 
(27.66) 2167 

13 Eamting per unit 
3,90] 351 

14 Thyentary tumover ratio 
NA Na 

\5 ‘Trade teecivable turnover ratio 
245.04 195,85 

16 Trade payable tirnover ratio 
ag 3,353 

17 Current liability ratio 
0.08 0.04, 

18 Bed debt to account receivable ratio 
- a Net Capital turnover ratio 

19 (Total Income / Net Working Canitaly 
2.30) 5.16 

20 Operating margin % 
THad% 73.39% 

Nei profit after tax ratio 
. . 

2 

19% 659 

! (Net profit / Total Income} 
30.1% 46.65% 

Return on capital employed ratio 22 
. + 

. 
I J 0, 

a, 

{(Net Profit-tefore Tax plus Finance Costy (Equity + Debi) ie 471% 
Retury on investment 2 

82% 1Ip 
3 (Incame on tnvestment Average Cost of favestment) 

8.82% 117% 



6r 

62 

63 

6d 

NATIONAL HIGWAYS INFRA TRUST 
SEBI Registration Number :- INAnvIT/20-2 1/0014 Notes to the Consolidated Financiai Statements for the year ended March 31, 2024 

Assets pledged as Secirity 

Under security provisions for external lenders, the shares of SPVs' ie, NHIPPL & NEPPL held by NHIT (Trust) are pledged io extemal lendersta Trust. 
Wheréas the loans provided by Trust to NHIPPL & NEPPL are assigned to the extemal levders. Also it may be noted that the shares are not pkdged ‘te 
debenture holders, The carryiig amounts of assets pledged as secutity for cient aed non current borrowines are ; 

Particulars 

As at 3Ist Marcel: 2024 As at Fist March 1423 Current 
Financial assels 

First Charge 

Trade receivables 
385.20 350.87 

Cash-and cash equivalents 
46,400.78 2114.08 

Other financial assets 

517.52 6.65 
Noun Financial assets. 
First Charge 
Other current. assets 

2,303.89 1534.06 Total current assets pledged as security 
49,607.39 23,115.65 

Non Current 

Other financial assets 

1Q177.86 967244 
Non -current tax’assets (Net) 

22,38 12.06 
Total non current assets pledged as security 

10,200,24 9,684.50 Total assets pledged ng sceurily 
59,807.63 32,500.16 Key sources of estimation 

Teported amounts oF income. ard expenses of the period, the reported balances of asset and abilities and the disclosures relating lo contingent linbiligas as 
of ihe date of the financial statements. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisisns to accounting eslinales 
ipclude aliowanee for doubta! louns /other receivables, fair value meisurement ete, Difference, iPany, between the aciual results and estimatés is recegnised 
i the perind in whiek the results sre knows. 

‘The preparation of Consolidated financial statements in conformity with ind AS requires the Group to makes estimates and agsuinptious that aflect the 

Disclostre pursuaat to Tul AS 13 “Borrowing Costs” 
Borrowing cost capitalised during ihe year Ra, Nil [March 31, 2023 - Ry. Nil] 

Default an breaches 
There are-yo defaults during ihe year with Fespect to repayment of principal and Payment of interest and no breaches of the terms and conditions of the 
borrowings. There are no breackes during ihe year which permitted ender to denmand aceclerated payment, 

I 
i 
A
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Additional regulatory taformation required by Seliedule HI Details of benami property luetd 
No proecedings have been initiated on or are pending against the. group for holding benami Property under ihe Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Ac, 1998 
(43-of 1988} and Rules made thereunder, 
Witfal defautter 
‘The group is not deefared witfut defautter by any bank or financial institution or government or afly Sovernment authority. Compliance with mumber of layers of companies 
‘The grotip has complied with the number of layérs prescribed under the Companies Act, 2073, Undisclosed inconte 
There is no income surrendered or disclosed ag income during the current or Previous year in the day asgessmonts under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that tas 
not been recerded in the books of account, 

: The group have not received eny find from any Person(s) or entity fies), including foreign entities (Funding Party} with the understanding (svhether recorded 
in writing or otherwise) that the Trust shall 
(a) directly or indireeily leid or itivest in other persons or entities identified in any tanner whatsecyer by or on bebalf of the Funding Party (Uttimate 
Botieficizries) or 

(b) provide any guaranec, sccufily of the like on bebolf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries The group have not advance or loaned or invested (either fram borrowed find or share Premium or any ciher souree or kind of Find} by the cOMpany to oF in 
ary person{s) or cntity fies), including foreign entitios (Funding Party} with the uaderstinding (whether recorded fn writing or olhenvise) that the Trust shall: 
(a) directly or indirectly Tend or invest in other persons or entilles identified in any Manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate 
Beneficiaries) or 

(b} provide any Suarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Benefigiaries Details of crypto ctrrency or virtual currency 
The group has not traded or invested in erypio Currency or virtual eurrency during the eurrent or previous year, Valuation of Property, plant and equipment ane in tangible asset The group has vot revalued its property, plant and equipment or inlangible assets or both during the enrrent or previous year. The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contract for which there were any material foresecahte losses, Relatfunship with struck off companixs, 
The group does not have any transactions with the companies struck off under Section 244 of companies Act 2013 and therefore no further diselosure 
required thereander, 

Comparatives figures have been reclussified/regrouped wherever Necessary to confinn ta the current period classification, 

For AR. & Co, 
Chartered Accountants 
Finn Registration no, 002744C 

For and on behalf Board of the National Highways Infrt Lavesiment Managers Private Limited (Investment Manager of National Highways Infea T rust) 

[KA CA Mohd. Again Whsari 

shun Goyal Maluvir Parsad Sharma 
Partaer : 
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. BEN: 02721580 DIN? 03158413 
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Mathew George Place : New Delhi 
Chief Finacial Officer 
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